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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (“STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally
small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the
Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents
of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (“Directors”) of BCI
Group Holdings Limited (“Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, collectively referred to as “Group”, “we” or
“our”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief, the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRESE

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

For and on behalf of the board (“Board”) of Directors of BCI
Group Holdings Limited, | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 May
2021 (“Year” or “2021”") to the shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”).

During the year ended 31 May 2021, the Group recorded
a decrease in revenue of approximately 51.5% from
approximately HK$50.4 million for the year ended 31 May
2020 to approximately HK$24.4 million for the year ended
31 May 2021 and recorded a net loss of approximately
HK$39.5 million for the year ended 31 May 2021 as
compared to that of approximately for HK$36.5 million
for the year ended 31 May 2020. Such loss was mainly
attributable to (i) the outbreak of coronavirus disease 2019
(“COVID-19") since January 2020, which were severely
affecting the operating environment for bar and club,
entertainment and catering business in Hong Kong; (ii)
record an impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets for the year ended 31 May 2021;
and (iii) record a written off of trade and other receivables
for the year ended 31 May 2021; and (iv) record a one-off
loss of share based payment for the year ended 31 May
2021.

Being one of the leading market players in the bar and
club market in Hong Kong, the Group aims to provide
a premium entertainment experience to our customers
and a more sophisticated high-end and contemporary
bar, offering a variety of entertainment such as live band
show, international disc jockey (“DJ”) performance and
large-screen televisions broadcasting a variety of sports
events.

At present, the Group is operating (i) three night clubs and
sports-themed bar, namely Mudita, Faye and Paper Street;
(ii) one entertainment studio, namely Maximus Studio.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRES

It is foreseeable that the global economic uncertainty
caused by the COVID-19 and global political
instability will continue to exist in the coming year,
and it has and will severely affect the operating
environment of most industries in Hong Kong,
including the food and beverage industry to which
the Group belongs.

However, taking into account the abovementioned
challenges, the management of the Group is
confident that opportunities still exist and the Group
believes that it can continue to succeed and utilise
its competitive advantages.

At present, the management of the Group decided
to slow down its business development in order to
better utilise its resources in existing business and
newly launched sport-themed club and bar, and to
reserve funds to prepare for the economic reboots
in one hand, on the other hand, the management
have been studying the possibility of other ancillary
business to support the business of the Group and
explore new opportunities.

The Group is committed to strengthen our core
capabilities to keep on improving its business
performance and operating results so as to cope with
these challenges and to present satisfactory results
and bring favourable returns to our Shareholders.

On behalf of the Board and the management of the
Group, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to all our staff for their unremitting efforts during the
year ended 31 May 2021 and to all shareholders
for their full support. | would also like to express
my heartfelt thanks to all shareholders, investors,
customers, suppliers and business partners for their
valuable support.

Wong Chi Yung
Chairman and chief executive officer
Hong Kong, 27 August 2021
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Financial Highlight
M RE

KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION FTERBEHR
Year ended 31 May
BZS5A3MBLEE
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FETT FAET
Revenue Wz 24,427 50,397
Finance income B & WA - 249
Changes in inventories GEZ®H (5,127) (10,206)
Non-cash items: FELEH:
Fair value change on financial assets at BERAFEGFTAERD
fair value through profit or loss TMEEATHEED - (15)
Equity-settled share-based payments NIREEE R G B AR
pANE (15,676) =
Depreciation of property, plant and W -WmE R
equipment HREIE (4,131) (3,916)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CTRAEEENE (12,790) (17,537)
Impairment loss on property, W -WE R
plant and equipment %R B B (3,988) (2,090)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets {55 B A A 7 B 6L 1 5 9B (8,369) (8,555)
Written off of trade and other receivables il $5 & 5 & & #b f& I 3B (1,951) (2,988)
Written off of amount due from a related T S5 FE U 8 B
company N AR IE - (172)
Provision for loss allowance on B 5Kk EMEWRIEBEE
trade and other receivables BHE (226) (476)
Loss before income tax br TS B AT B 18 (39,476) (36,624)
Loss and total comprehensive income FAEER
for the year 2HE R =B R (39,486) (36,494)

For the year ended 31 May 2021, the Group’s revenue was
approximately HK$24.4 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 51.5% when compared with that of the year
ended 31 May 2020.

The Group recorded a loss and total comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 May 2021 of approximately HK$39.5
million, while there was a loss and total comprehensive
income of approximately HK$36.5 million for the year ended
31 May 2020. Excluding those non-cash items, including
but not limited to, the fair value change on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, equity-settled
share-based payments, depreciation of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (net of the repayment
of lease liabilities), impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, written off of trade and
other receivables, amount due from a related company and
loss allowance on trade and other receivables, the adjusted
profit and total comprehensive income were approximately
to HK$0.6 million for the year ended 31 May 2021 as
compared with that adjusted loss and total comprehensive
income approximately to HK$18.8 million for the year ended
31 May 2020.

The Board did not recommend payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 May 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWER DN

Currently, the Group is operating (i) three night clubs and
sports-themed bar, namely Mudita, Faye and Paper Street;
(ii) one entertainment studio, namely Maximus Studio.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 May 2021 and up to the date of this
report, the Group had been principally engaged in the
operation of club, entertainment and catering business in
Hong Kong.

Operation of club and entertainment business

During the period under review, the Group operated four
night clubs and sports-themed bar (namely, Volar, Mudita,
Faye and Paper Street), and an entertainment studio
(namely, Maximus Studio) to cover different segments
of the club and entertainment market. Volar targets
customers with strong spending power and aims to provide
a premium entertainment experience to our customers,
however, the “social distancing” and “no dine-in restriction”
measures implemented by the Government in response
to the COVID-19 have significantly affected the food and
beverage and entertainment industry in which the Group
operates. In addition, the Group was unable to secure a
satisfactory and mutually agreeable rent reduction from
the landlord to renew Volar’s lease that is due to expire
on 31 March 2021. Taking into consideration of the above
factors and the current economic environment, the Group
decided not to proceed with a renewal of the lease
and Volar was closed down by the end of March 2021.
Mudita aims to be a more sophisticated high-end and
contemporary bar with no dance floor, offering a variety of
entertainment such as live entertainment shows as well as
international DJ performance. Maximus Studio is working
to achieve a lifestyle designed by our customers and is a
place to build the greatest self. Faye aims at to provide
combined experience of club and sport-themed nature to
its customers while Paper Street aims at providing a casual
and comfortable environment for its patronage. The revenue
generated from the operation of club and entertainment
business decreased by approximately HK$24.0 million, or
approximately 54.2%, from approximately HK$44.2 million
for the year ended 31 May 2020 to approximately HK$20.2
million for the year ended 31 May 2021.

Operation of catering business

For the year ended 31 May 2021, the Company owned a
restaurant under “Tiger” brand, Tiger San, a casual dining
restaurant aimed to provide a contemporary Japanese
dining experience in a relaxing atmosphere for its
customers.

BrEEERLR

B AEEL2H =R EtEeMkEFHE
2% 'E Mudita * Faye }& Paper Street : (ii) — [
1R 2% b 0 Maximus Studio °
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Tiger San was closed down in mid-May 2021 due to its
unsatisfactory performance resulted from the outbreak of
COVID-19 since January 2020.

The revenue generated from the operation of catering
business decreased by approximately HK$2.0 million, or
approximately 32.5%, from approximately HK$6.2 million
for the year ended 31 May 2020 to approximately HK$4.2
million for the year ended 31 May 2021.

The outbreak of COVID-19

Subsequent to 31 May 2021 and up to the date of this
report, the Group noted a continuous downturn on its
operating performance. The management noted that the
COVID-19 caused material disruption to the Group’s club,
entertainment and restaurants operation, which adversely
affected the Group’s business, financial condition and
operating performance. The Group has been actively
adopting cost control measures including re-prioritising
work plans to improve liquidity position, closely monitoring
the market situation and timely adjusting the business
strategies in view of the development of the Epidemic.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 May 2021, the Group’s revenue was
generated from the operation of club and entertainment
and catering business in Hong Kong. For the year ended
31 May 2021, the Group operated four night clubs and
sports-themed bar (of which Volar was closed in March
2021), one entertainment studio and one restaurants
located in Hong Kong. The restaurants, namely, Tiger San
was closed down in mid-May 2021 due to its unsatisfactory
performance resulted from the outbreak of COVID-19 since
January 2020.

The Group recognised its revenue from (a) the club and
entertainment operations when (i) the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products; (ii) services when
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group or other products were
delivered (including tips, cloakroom fees and service
income from an entertainment studio) to its customers;
(b) the restaurant operations when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the food and beverage
products; and (c) entertainment income when services have
been transferred to the customer.

Tiger Sani 202145 A # A B 7 B 20204 1
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12 BCI Group Holdings Limited

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWER DN

The table below sets forth the breakdown of the revenue by
club and entertainment operation and restaurant operation
for the years ended 31 May 2021 and 2020:

TR HAE Z=2021F K2020F5H318 1E
FEReMRIRZLEEUNREELES H
/) Uk 25 BF 48

Year ended 31 May
BZ5A31ALEE

2021 2020
20214 2020 4
% of total % of total
HK$’000 revenue HK$'000 revenue
1k 48 I 25 14 48 I 75
FET B FE T B 7k
Club and entertainment AT R IR B
operation 20,212 82.7 44,150 87.6
Restaurant operation BEE 4,215 17.3 6,247 12.4
Total @t 24,427 100.0 50,397 100.0

The revenue generated from the operation of club and
entertainment business decreased by approximately
HK$24.0 million, or approximately 54.2%, from
approximately HK$44.2 million for the year ended 31 May
2020 to approximately HK$20.2 million for year ended
31 May 2021. Such decrease was mainly due to the
reduction in the business hours of our outlets during the
reporting period under review caused by the coronavirus
pandemic.

The revenue generated from the operation of catering
business decreased by approximately HK$2.0 million, or
approximately 32.5%, from approximately HK$6.2 million
for the year ended 31 May 2020 to approximately HK$4.2
million for the year ended 31 May 2021. Such decrease was
mainly due to the closure of Tiger Room in February 2020
as well as the reduction in the business hours of Tiger San
during the reporting period under review caused by the
coronavirus pandemic.

BrEEERLR
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Changes in inventories

The changes in inventories mainly represented the cost
of beverage and food ingredients used in the Group’s
club, entertainment and restaurant operations. The major
beverage and food ingredients purchased by the Group
include but is not limited to liquors, champagne, liqueurs,
frozen food, dried food, etc. The changes in inventories
was one of the components of the operating expenses
which decreased by approximately HK$5.1 million, or
approximately 49.8%, from approximately HK$10.2 million
for the year ended 31 May 2020 to approximately HK$5.1
million for the year ended 31 May 2021. Such decrease was
mainly due to the closure of Tiger Room in February 2020;
and decrease was generally in line with the decrease in
revenue for the year ended 31 May 2021.

Other income and gains

The Group’s other income significantly increased by
approximately HK$17.2 million, as compared with the
corresponding period in 2020. Such increase was mainly
due to the subsidies amounting HK$5.3 million received
from the government of Hong Kong as a result of the
outbreak of COVID-19 and the rent concession in the sum of
approximately HK$12.8 million obtained from our landlords
during the year.

Advertising and marketing expenses

Advertising and marketing expenses primarily consisted
of advertising and promotional expenses such as the cost
of engaging resident and guest DJs and the expenses
incurred for engaging a public relations company for
the provision of marketing and promotion services to the
Group’s club, entertainment and restaurant operations.
The advertising and marketing expenses decreased by
approximately HK$3.7 million, or approximately 50.9%,
from approximately HK$7.3 million for the year ended
31 May 2020 to approximately HK$3.6 million for the year
ended 31 May 2021. Such decrease was mainly due to the
lesser expenses incurred for public relation services and
advertising and marketing services resulted from reduction
in the business hours of our outlets during the year ended
31 May 2021.

FEEH
GECZEHTERASEENEHM RERE
EEEMARBEEMBOKA KEBIKE
NEERBERMEBE(METBRMNNE B
BMA 2REMALERRE-FEZ
PRHALEREINAR —EAKE D BE
FE2020F5 AR LEFEMNHNI02EEE T
WA K518 BB JT sk £949.8% & B & 2021
FEABMALFEENHSIEEB T MDD
T & & B B Tiger Roomi20204F 2 A # %
R EEE2021F5 318 I FE WS R
DI

H Al WA R W&

AN £ EHE MU A 20204 B B K 18 1800 49
172888 - B@AE M EEHMRE2019
BURESREBENEEMERRKE TSR
WS IEEETARFEFRARMOE
IR THHESER(EBATNARI28EE
B IT) e

EERTHERMX

EEETHHEERIIEREESERESR
A (NEFHSEEEREH R/ A) R
BEAEAGARNEBENSAH REREE
EEREEHAEEREMELENRA S - E
ERMEHERT B E2020F65A31H 1k
FENHNIIEEBTRLNITEEE LR
#950.9% = & £2021F5A31H It FE W #3.6
BEATL - BERLEIEREAREE20214F
SAIAIEFEHBRMPIEE ZESHERD
BHRAHEBERBEARES RS # ER
EHELEMRAI MDA -
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Employee benefits expenses

Employee benefits expenses primarily consisted of all
salaries and benefits payable to all employees and
staff, including the Directors, headquarters staff and
operational staff in each outlet. The employee benefits
expenses decreased by approximately HK$5.5 million, or
approximately 32.9%, from approximately HK$16.9 million
for the year ended 31 May 2020 to approximately HK$11.4
million for the year ended 31 May 2021. Such decrease
was mainly due to the (i) closure of Tiger Room in February
2020; and (ii) the reduction in the business hours of our
outlets during the year ended 31 May 2021 which resulted
in less salaries borne by the Group.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Depreciation represented the depreciation charge for
property, plant and equipment (including, among others,
leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment)
and right-of-use assets. Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated so as to write off their cost net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The total depreciation decreased by
approximately HK$4.6 million, or approximately 21.1%,
from approximately HK$21.5 million for the year ended
31 May 2020 to approximately HK$16.9 million for the year
ended 31 May 2021. Such decreased was due to expired
of Volar tenancy agreement on March 2021 as well as two
new renewal tenancy agreement during the year with rent
reduction in monthly payment.

Other expenses

Other expenses mainly represented security expenses
for the clubs, credit card commissions, repairs and
maintenance costs, cleaning expenses, professional fee and
entertainment expenses. The other expenses decreased
by approximately HK$1.5 million, or approximately 9.3%,
from approximately HK$15.7 million for the year ended
31 May 2020 to approximately HK$14.2 million for the year
ended 31 May 2021. Such decrease was mainly due to less
operating expenses which less operating restaurants during
the year as well as temporary closure or less operating
hours of our entertainment outlet during the year ended
31 May 2021.

Loss before income tax

As a result of the cumulative factors discussed above,
the loss before income tax increased from approximately
HK$36.6 million for the year ended 31 May 2020 to
approximately HK$39.5 million for the year ended 31 May
2021.

BrEEERLR
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Loss and total comprehensive income for the year

The loss and total comprehensive income increased by
approximately HK$3.0 million, or approximately 8.2%,
from approximately HK$36.5 million for the year ended
31 May 2020 to approximately HK$39.5 million for the year
ended 31 May 2021. In the financial year, the outbreak of
the Epidemic since January 2020 and continuing social
unrest had brought negative impact on the economy,
resulting in a decline in asset prices. Losses for the year
include provision for impairment of non-cash items such
as right-of-use assets, property, plant and equipment and
other financial assets as well as one-off equity-settled
share-based payments amounting to approximately
HK$30.2 million. With the combined effect of the above, the
Group’s loss and total comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 May 2021 had increased as compared to that of
the year ended 31 May 2020.

FINANCIAL POSITION, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group recorded net cash used in operating activities of
approximately HK$14.7 million for the year ended 31 May
2021 and net cash generated from operating activities of
approximately HK$19.5 million for the year ended 31 May
2020. Such decrease in net cash generated from operating
activities was primarily due to (i) the increase in trade and
other receivables; and (ii) the decrease in trade and other
payables.

As at 31 May 2021, the Group’s total cash and bank
balances (including cash and cash equivalents and
restricted bank deposits) were approximately HK$20.4
million (2020: approximately HK$23.5 million). The
current ratio (calculated by current assets divided by
current liabilities) of the Group had been stable, reaching
approximately 0.6 times as at 31 May 2021 and 31 May
2020 respectively. The gearing ratio (calculated by total
debts divided by total equity) of the Group was Nil (2020:
Nil).

As at 31 May 2021, the Group obtained total unutilised
banking facility of approximately HK$59.8 million granted
from bank for the working capital.

FREERZEHWEAE
BEREEKZEBHREZ202065H31H
IEFENLHILSEEBTLEMBI0E B
T A8 2% EEH E 20215 A31HIEFEH
H35BEBB T  RAMBFE - 82020F
1TABRERBRFEL S ZHKLESRE

e BYEEERTR - FEBBERERE
FREBEE(WFERAEEE VX BEXR
BEUARAEMEmMEE R ARESE AR
B ER Y — RN R) 2R E B #4302
BEAT BRXLIRZHARTE K&
BHZEZ2021F5A31MBIEFENEELREER
W BREEEH E202085A831BILFEME
#hn e

MBERR RBDESRUBER

AEBREZ2021F5A31H IEFEHEL
CEHARSFEN4TEE S L ME
E2020F5A31ALFEHGBRETHAE
BEFENI0BEAR T FHAKEETEHA
BERE2FERLETERANONESREM
FERREEN: RG(HE 5 & EMEMNKRE
B e
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The shares of the Company were successfully listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange on 7 April 2017 (“Listing
Date”). Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “2020
Placing” below, there was no change in the capital structure
of the Group since 7 April 2017. The capital structure of
the Group comprises of issued share capital and reserves.
As at 31 May 2021, the equity attributable to owners of
the Company amounted to approximately HK$3.4 million
deficiency in assets (2020: approximately HK$19.9 million

equity).

LISTING OF SHARES

Based on the offer price of HK$0.34 per offer share, the net
proceeds from the Listing, after deducting the underwriting
commission and other estimated expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$43.9 million.

On 11 May 2018, the Board resolved to change the use of
the net proceeds as set out in the section headed “Future
Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus of the
Company dated 24 March 2017 (“Prospectus”). Details
of the original allocation of the net proceeds, the revised
allocation of the net proceeds, the utilisation of the net
proceeds as at 11 May 2018 and the remaining balance
after the revised allocation of the net proceeds were set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 11 May 2018
(“May 2018 Announcement”).

On 18 March 2021, the Board, having regard to the
prevailing circumstances, decided to make further
adjustments to the allocation of the remaining adjusted net
proceeds.
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EXRERE
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The table below was extracted from the announcement [ X & B &K QX A]2021FE3 A 188 W A &
of the Company dated 18 March 2021 (“March 2021 ([20214%63 8 A %)+ I 5 & #2018 5 A
Announcement’), which sets out the details of the RQAEFHARAEHABAEREFEN DK
allocation of the adjusted net proceeds as described inthe 7 2021F3 A 18H & AEMEREFHEHOFE
May 2018 Announcement, the utilisation of the adjusted net BN U EEBETE R FERANEHAZMRE
proceeds as at 18 March 2021 and the revised allocation of RIBF M D KM FE -

the unutilised adjusted net proceeds:

Revised

Original allocation of

allocation of Utilised Unutilised unutilised

adjusted net adjusted net adjusted net adjusted net

Uses of the adjusted net proceeds proceeds proceeds proceeds proceeds
BHBIT#

AEAW

EEMRR EEAN AERAH LREHRS

BRBRE LKREFS LRAEHRS NEFEN

RARMBREZTERE FENAE RERE NEFE i)
HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BEET BEET BEET

Continuing to expand and diversify BEEARZ L

the outlet network of the Group KEEMPERE 18.8 15.5 3.3 3.3
Upgrading the club facilities of the Group ~ RRFA REEH € FT R 16.1 9.0 7.1 3.0
Increasing marketing effort of the Group ~ MAREEHEHEHE 3.7 3.7 = =
Enhancing corporate image of the Group ~ RAZXAEEM L EF R 1.0 1.0 = =
General working capital of the Group KEE-REEES 4.3 4.3 = 4.1

43.9 33.5 10.4 10.4
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During the period from the Listing Date to 31 May 2021, the
Group has applied the net proceeds as follows:

Adjusted allocation

B r-HmEHEET2021FE5A318 EH8E - K
CEEEBEMEREFERBEATAR

of net proceeds

in accordance

with the adjusted

plan (as disclosed

in the May 2018

Announcement

and March 2021
Announcement) Amount utilised Amount unutilised
up to 31 May 2021 as at 31 May 2021 as at 31 May 2021

HZ202155R8

NERELAER

T E(Em2018%5A

RER2021538

NERBRR)
MAERERE RAF5ANEH  ROA1E5A1EH
LREAE EBREE ABREE
HKS million HKS million HKS million
BEET BEET BEET

Continuing to expand and diversify the outlet BEBARSTARAAEEN

network of the Group PG B8 4 188 155 33
Upgrading the club facilities of the Group RAXSEMERRNE 120 107 13
Increasing marketing effort of the Group NATKEREENE 37 37 =
Enhancing corporate image of the Group RAXSEAMPERR 10 10 S
General working capital of the Group FEE-HheEE 8.4 84 =
Total @t 439 393 46

As at 31 May 2021, approximately HK$4.6 million
(representing approximately 10.5% of the net proceeds)

had not yet been utilised.

18 BCI Group Holdings Limited
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The future plan and the planned amount of usage of net
proceeds as stated in the adjusted plan were based on the
best estimation and assumption of future market conditions
at the time of preparing the May 2018 Announcement
and March 2021 Announcement while the net proceeds
were applied based on the actual development of the
Group’s business and the industry. An analysis comparing
the business objective stated in the Prospectus with the
Group’s actual business progress as at 31 May 2021 is set
out below:

Business objective and strategy ~ Business plan and activity

FHABRRM EBHEREE
(1) Upgrade club facilities Renovate and refurbish Fly

KRABAEMBARFERMBREFE
MEslBASBENERBR2018F5ARE
K2021FESARERERARM AN KEMF
MBREEL MABSRBEFENERAEE
EBRTENEBRRETUSRA -BRER
FIE %% EREARNEBEE202145H31H
EREBEROLLEBES>TEHI DT

Actual business progress up to 31 May 2021
BE0NF5ANAHNERERER

s Execute planned renovation at Fly (currently known as Mudita) ¢ Renovation and refurbishment of Fly (currently known as

Renovate and refurbish Volar and Paper Street
o Setup project team

¢ Engage contractors for the renovation and refurbishment

¢ Engage designers for the concept of renovation and
refurbishment

o Carry out renovation and refurbishment

(1) HEemRE BERBHRY
o 1Ty (B BMudita) i3 812

%18 R 857 Volar [ Paper Street
o RUBAEK

o ZRABHENREREFIE
o ZRZAMHERERBFIRNOMS

o REBERAFIE

Mudita) was completed in October 2018. A further small scale
of renovation was carried out and completed in May 2021.

o We have set up a project team and obtained quotation from
various contractors and designers.

o Asmall part of renovation and refurbishment of Volar were
carried out during the period between December 2019 and
February 2020.

o Paper Street was carrying out a small renovation work during
the period between December 2019 and February 2020 in order
to enhance the customers' satisfaction.

¢ We have reinstated the volar upon expired on tenancy
agreement.

o Fy(RBMudta) VBB RBH TREER01BE0ATK -
REEBEIRR0NESARB LT «

o AMERVEREN VESKABERRASHRGHE:

o R019FE12AZ00F2ABEHAE NS AVolarEE REH
Ik

o R019F128 2202052 A B HE | 35 Paper Street&)
IR UREEFPRHEE-

o VowrBREEBEERRRENERM -
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Business objective and strategy ~ Business plan and activity
AHBERRRR ERGURES

(2)  Continue to expand and

diversify the outlet network for ¢

the club operation
L}

Establish sports-themed bars

Execute planned establishment of the first sports-themed bar

Explore opportunities with cooperation partners and conduct
feasibility studies for the second sports-themed bar

(0 BEEARZALRAEH RREFIEEE
SENFERE o HHHFRENEDTREL

(3)  Continue to expand and

(3) BEEARZALEARE

20

diversify the outlet network for ¢
the restaurant operations

ERECBENABERUE _REDIRECENT
gidiE

Set up a standalone restaurant in Tsing Yi

Execute planned establishment of a standalone restaurant in
Tsing Yi

Set up a standalone restaurant in Sheung Wan

Execute planned establishment of a standalone restaurant in
Sheung Wan

Set up food court restaurants

SENFERE .

Set up a project team and conduct a feasibility study

EEXRR-RELEE

EEXRR-RELEE

ELRRR-RBELZE

BT AR LRRR-REURE

RRXREZEE

BCI Group Holdings Limited

RUBEER LEATAERE

BrEEERLR

Actual business progress up to 31 May 2021
BENANESANBHERERER

A sports-themed bar, namely Paper Street, has been opened on
20 July 2018.

We had signed a new lease agreement with landlord for our
second sports-themed bar which will be located in Central.
During the reporting period under review, we had commenced
the decoration of the second sports-themed bar. The second
sports-themed bar were commence business in April 2021,

HMBR018ETA0RF % 4 APaper Street N EH +
BEE-

AMEEINBAN TR _FEHTRECRINAL
b -NOEREER AMCHRELE_HEGLIEE
B E-HEPTBALEANAEIARGES:

A standalone restaurant in Tsing Yi was opened on 16
December 2017, we had closed the restaurant on mid-May 2021
upon expired on tenancy agreement.

A standalone restaurant in Sheung Wan was opened on 15
June 2018 and its lease contract was early terminated in
mid-February 2020.

We have set up a project team and conducted a study of
potential location regarding pedestrian traffic, convenience,
demographics, size, structure and competition.

AMERVITENRAAEERER-BEIEE-RAE
BERRE BRERNES AR AEEYEE:

AMERNBF6RSRERAR-BUEE £EAE4
HERNNF2ARIRFLL

AMERIBREN YHEEMLENARE BHE A
ORE A0 BRREFENTE
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It is expected that the remaining net proceeds will be fully
utilised by 31 May 2023 in accordance with the revised
intended use as stated in the March 2021 Announcement.

Details of change of use of proceeds are set out in the May
2018 Announcement and March 2021 Announcement.

The unutilised net proceeds from the Listing are placed in
the bank accounts of the Group.

Placing of New Shares under General Mandate (“2020
Placing”)

2020 Placing on 30 June 2020, the Company entered into
the Placing Agreement as supplemented by a supplemental
agreement dated 21 July 2020 (collectively referred to as
“Placing Agreements”) with the placing agent, pursuant
to which the Company has conditionally agreed to place
through the Placing Agent, on a best effort basis, up to
160,000,000 placing shares (“Placing Shares”), to not less
than six Placees who and whose ultimate beneficial owners
shall be Independent Third Parties at a price of HK$0.13
per Placing Share. The Placing Shares were allotted and
issued pursuant to the general mandate granted to the
Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 9 October 2019. All the conditions precedent under
the Placing Agreements have been fulfilled and completion
of the Placing Agreements took place on 18 August
2020. For details of the 2020 Placing, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 30 June 2020, 21
July 2020 and 18 August 2020.

The net proceeds from the 2020 Placing are approximately
HK$20,334,000 which was fully utilised as the general
working capital to support the operation of the Group at the
date of this report in accordance with the intended uses
previously disclosed.

BRI B REF RGN 202355 A31H
Z AR IE2021 3 A 2 & o A it &0 8 18 3T #
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EEEEMFSARERENFIBEHN2018%F5
RRAER2021F3RRER -

AEROETAERBEFRIFTRNAE
BERITRR

RE-REEEEFRDT20205EES
=N

2020 4F fit & £ 1E 1 2020F 6 A30H © AR A
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ZhHEBLEEREREEBEREER D
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain risks involved in the operations of the
Group’s business. Set forth below are some of the major
risks that could materially and adversely affect the Group.

1)

22

In order to expand and diversify our outlet network,
we expect to establish more sports-themed bars
and set up more restaurants in Hong Kong. The food
and beverage and entertainment industry in Hong
Kong is highly competitive. Our ability to successfully
open new outlets is subject to a number of risks and
uncertainties, including identifying suitable locations
and/or securing leases on reasonable terms, timely
securing necessary governmental approvals and
licences, ability to hire quality personnel, timely
delivery in decoration and renovation works
securing sufficient customer demand, securing
adequate suppliers and inventory that meet our
quality standards on timely basis, reducing potential
cannibalisation effects between the locations of our
outlets and the general economic conditions. The
costs incurred in opening of new outlets and the
expansion plans may place substantial strain on our
managerial, operational and financial resources.
As such, we cannot assure that we can always
operate the expanded outlets network on a profitable
basis or that any new outlet will reach the planned
operating levels. If any new outlet experiences
prolonged delays in breaking even or achieving our
desired level of profitability or operate at a loss, our
operational and financial resources could be strained
and our overall profitability could be affected.

BCI Group Holdings Limited SMEBEERAT
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As we lease or license all of the properties on
which our outlets operate, we are exposed to the
fluctuations in the commercial real estate market.
There is no objective way for us to accurately predict
the rental rates in the commercial real estate market
in Hong Kong, and our substantial lease liabilities
expose us to potentially significant risks, including
increasing our vulnerability to adverse economic
conditions such as COVID-19 impact, limiting our
ability to obtain additional financing and reducing our
cash available for other purposes. Any non-renewal
(whether as a result of the landlord’s or licensor’s or
our decision) or termination of any of our leases or
licence or substantial increased rentals or licence
fees could cause us to close down the relevant outlet
or the need to relocate to another site, depending
on our business needs or performance from time
to time. In such events, we could face a drop in
sales, write off leasehold improvements, and could
incur relocation costs for renovation, removal and
resources allocation, which could in turn result in
financial strain in our operations and diversion of
management resources.

For each of the year ended 31 May 2020 and 2021,
our purchases from our largest supplier accounted
for approximately 49.7% and 39.6% of our total
purchases, respectively. We make purchases from
our largest supplier under individual purchase order,
and have not entered into any long term contract with
it. If our largest supplier for any reason reduces the
volume supplied to us or cease to supply to us, we
will need to find alternative suppliers on similar sale
terms and conditions acceptable to us. If we fail to
do so in a timely manner, the operations of our clubs
will be interrupted, our costs may increase and our
business, financial condition, results of operations
and growth prospects may therefore be materially
and adversely affected.

2)

3)
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To address the above risks and uncertainties, the Directors
will closely monitor the progress of the expansion plan and
to operate the expanded network on a profitable basis. The
Directors will continue to review and evaluate the business
objective and strategy and make timely execution by taking
into account the business risks and market uncertainties.

The risk from COVID-19

1) The outbreak of COVID-19 suspending or limiting
services in Hong Kong, the business activities of
the Company generally been suspended or slowed
down. The Directors expect the Company to record
a significant decrease in sales and may have an
adverse Impact on the Group’s financial performance
for the year of 2021. The Group is closely observing
the development of the outbreak of the COVID-19
while carrying out cost control measures to alleviate
the overall impact of the outbreak on the business
operations and financial position of the Group.

2) The continuing spread and prolonged occurrence
of COVID-19 could have an adverse effect on the
tourism Industry in Hong Kong. All these factors may
have adverse impact on our business, operation,
financial condition and prospects. The Group is
closely observing the development of the outbreak
of the COVID-19 and the effect on the tourism
industry. The management will closely monitor the
development and change its policy and/or menu
to match the taste of both the tourists and local
customers.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

The Group did not hold any significant investment for the
year ended 31 May 2021.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did
not carry out any material acquisition nor disposal of any
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 May 2021.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company, or
by any of the companies now comprising the Group for the
years ended 31 May 2020 and 2021.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Since most of transactions are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, the Group is not exposed to significant foreign
exchange exposure.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have any capital commitments as at
31 May 2020 and 2021.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 May 2021, save as disclosed in the Prospectus,
the May 2018 Announcement and in this annual report,
the Group does not have any future plans for material
investments or capital assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
as at 31 May 2020 and 2021.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 May 2021, the restricted bank deposit of
approximately HK$17.9 million (31 May 2020: approximately
HK$17.0 million) were pledged to secured bank borrowings.

EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION

As at 31 May 2021, the Group employed 41 employees
(31 May 2020: 62 employees). Employee benefit
expenses (including Directors’ remuneration, wages,
salaries, performance related bonuses, other benefits
and contribution to defined contribution pension plans)
amounted to approximately HK$11.4 million for the year
ended 31 May 2021 (31 May 2020: approximately HK$16.9
million). Brief summary of the remuneration policy of the
Group is set out in page 38 of this annual report.

OUTLOOK

The global economic uncertainty accompanied by
the coronavirus pandemic has affected the operating
environment for retail and food and beverage business in
Hong Kong. Notwithstanding that the degree of impact of
the COVID-19 will depend on the duration of the pandemic
and the prevention and control measures taken by the
Hong Kong government, the catering business in Hong
Kong will still be facing a lot of uncertainties in the year of
2021. However, the Group expects that given the COVID-19
is where contained whereby prevention measures are
relieved, the revenue generated by the Group will improve.
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As mentioned in the chairman statement by our chairman, it
is foreseeable that the uncertainty caused by the COVID-19
and global political instability will continue to exist in
the coming year, and it has and will affect the operating
environment of most industries in Hong Kong, including the
food and beverage industry to which the Group belongs.

At present, the management of the Group decided to slow
down its business development in order to better utilise
its resources in existing business and newly launched
sport-themed club and bar, and to reserve funds to prepare
for the economic reboots in one hand, on the other hand,
the management will study the possibility of other ancillary
business to support the business of the Group and explore
new opportunities.

In order to cope with these challenges, the Group is
prepared to strengthen its market position by (i) upgrading
our club facilities on an as-needed basis depending on
the condition of our equipment and facilities; (ii) refining
business strategies to cope with the continuing challenges;
(iii) actively negotiate with business partners including
suppliers and landlords on mitigative measures during such
unabated difficult period; (iv) enhancing our operational
efficiency and further strengthening our cost control
measures; and (v) diversifying our business into ancillary
business (now undergoing stage of planning and trial run)
of selling of cigars and high-value alcoholic beverages
including liquors, Chinese spirits, liqueurs and wine in our
clubs, bars and elsewhere, if appropriate.

The Group is committed to strengthen our core capabilities
to keep on improving its business performance and
operating results so as to cope with these challenges and
to present satisfactory results and bring favourable returns
to our shareholders.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEEEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chi Yung (£ & &), Mr. Wong Chi Yung, aged
38, has been appointed as a non-executive Director and the
chairman of the Board on 1 March 2021 and re-designated
and appointed as executive Director, chairman chief
executive officer and compliance officer of the Company
on 12 July 2021. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor's degree
of Business Administration in Finance and Management
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
Mr. Wong has extensive experience in accounting
and corporate finance. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of Polyfair Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8532). He was a licensed representative under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”) to carry out Type
6 regulated activity (advising on corporate finance) in INCU
Corporate Finance Limited (from July 2016 to April 2021).
He was also an executive director (from April 2015 to July
2016) and a non-executive director (from July 2016 to
June 2019) of China Information Technology Development
Limited (stock code: 8178). Mr. Wong is the nephew of
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny, substantial shareholder of the
Company as well as the former executive Director, chief
executive officer and compliance officer of the Company
who resigned from such positions on 12 July 2021.

Ng Shing Chun Ray (& &%) formerly known as Ng Shing
Fan Ray (R 48%), aged 50, has been appointed as an
executive Director on 2 November 2018 and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ng obtained a
bachelor of laws degree and a diploma in legal practice from
the University of Bristol, United Kingdom in June 1993 and
October 1995, respectively. He was admitted as a solicitor in
Hong Kong in December 1997. Mr. Ng started to operate and
manage food and beverage and entertainment companies
since June 2008 and has over 12 years of experience in the
food and beverage and entertainment industries.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pong Chun Yu (BE#RF), aged 43, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 22 January
2021. He is also the chairman of the audit committee and
remuneration committee and a member of the nomination
committee. Mr. Pong is an associate member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors and fellow member of Hong
Kong Institute Certified of Public Accountants. Mr. Pong
is currently a consultant of Sun Entertainment Culture
Limited, a company principally engaged in movie, concerts,
music and artists management business. He was the
financial controller of Sunny Side Up (Never) Limited, an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Sun Entertainment
Group Limited (stock code: 8082), from December 2016
to November 2018. Mr. Pong graduated from the Hong
Kong Baptist University in 2000 with a bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration (Accounting).

Mr. Hui Wai Hung (&F # %), aged 31, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 16 February
2021. He is a member of each of the nomination committee
and audit committee and remuneration committee. Mr. Hui
obtained a degree of Bachelor of Commerce in Accounting
and Finance from the University of New South Wales, Sydney,
Australia in 2015. Mr. Hui has experience in retail and food
and beverage sectors over 5 years.

Mr. Jiang Qiaowei (E&E&), aged 27, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 16 February
2021. He is also the chairman of the nomination
remuneration committee and a member of each of the
audit committee and remuneration committee. Mr. Jiang
graduated with a Bachelor of Computer Science from
Susquehanna University, United States in 2016. Mr. Jiang
also obtained a Master degree of Business Administration in
Finance from La Salle University, United States in 2018 and
a degree of Bachelor of Public Policy Management from the
Education University of Hong Kong in 2020.
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The Board is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance by emphasizing transparency,
independence, accountability, responsibilities and fairness.
The Board strives to ensure that effective self-regulatory
practices exist to protect the interests of the shareholders
of the Company and to enhance long-term shareholders’
value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance
Code (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules throughout the year. The Company
has applied the principles of, and complied with, the
applicable code provisions of the CG Code during the
year ended 31 May 2021, except the deviation mentioned
in the paragraph headed “Chairman and Chief Executive”
below. The Board will keep on reviewing and updating such
practices from time to time to ensure compliance with legal
and commercial standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating strategies,
monitoring performance and managing risks of the Group.
At the same time, it also has the duty to enhance the
effectiveness of the corporate governance practices of the
Group. Under the Board, there are three board committees,
namely the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee. All these committees perform their
distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference (available on the Company’s website) and assist
the Board in supervising certain functions of the senior
management.

Pursuant to Rule 5.66 of the GEM Listing Rule, the Directors
have also requested any employee of the Company or
director or employee of a subsidiary of the Company who,
because of his/her office or employment in the Company
or a subsidiary, is likely to possess inside information in
relation to the securities of the Company not to deal in
securities of the Company when he/she would be prohibited
from dealing by the code of conduct as if he/she was a
Director.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings.

Having made specific enquiries with all the Directors and all
the Directors have confirmed they have complied with the
required standard of dealings under the code of conduct
for Directors’ securities transactions during the year ended
31 May 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At present, the Board of the Company comprises five
Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Chi Yung
(Chairman and Chief executive officer)
(appointed as non-executive director on 1 March 2021
and re-designation as executive director on 12 July 2021)
Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Pong Chun Yu (appointed on 22 January 2021)
Mr. Hui Wai Hung (appointed on 16 February 2021)
Mr. Jiang Qiaowei (appointed on 16 February 2021)

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages
27 to 28.

The Board has the responsibility of leading the Company.
They are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board is accountable to the shareholders of the
Company for the strategic development of the Group with
the goal of maximizing long-term shareholder value, while
balancing broader stakeholder interests.
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The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings, & £2021F5A31HLtFE SE=2HFEE
audit committee meetings, remuneration committee F&€ &% ERZEC S S FHZEg e
meetings, nomination committee meetings and general FH - REBZEBCCEMBREREHILHERH
meeting for the year ended 31 May 2021 is set out in the  Zl 20~ :

following table:

Audit  Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee General

Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting

(attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/

total no. of total no. of total no. of total no. of total no. of

Name of Directors meeting held) ~ meeting held) ~ meeting held) ~ meeting held) ~ meeting held)

Ezgel ERZEEE WHMzEE R#ZEE S N1

(HEe2 ¢e5(LKE3 ¢SE(LKEE ¢e:5(LRes (HEES

Y/ B ¢ V4 Bii e/ B ¢ V4 5ii e/ B

- £3:3 R 389 R R EEEE
Execufive Directors HITEE

Mr. Wong Chi Yung (appointed as non-executive T % 2 % 4 (32021 &
director on 1 March 2021 and re-designaton ~ 3A1BEZTAEHH

as executive director on 12 July 2021) EZUR01%7A128 N/A N/A NJA
BAftRHTES) 55 10 TR TER TER
Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray REREE 12113 44 44 44 101
Mr. Wong Kui Shing Danny (appointed on TEMEE(R20215
16 February 2021 and resigned on 2R16REZEY N/A
12 July 2021) RONETR12B H{E) 4f 10 1 10 AR
Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester (resigned on 16 REBEE
February 2021) (R2021F2R 16 A B ) /6 33 33 33 111
Ms. Lau Sze Yuen (resigned on YEmut
16 February 2021) (R2021F2R 16 A B ) /6 33 33 33 111
Non-executive Director FHITEF
Mr. Kan Sze Man (resigned on BIR%E
16 February 2021) (R2021F2R16A B ) /6 33 33 33 111
Indlependent Non-executive Directors BUFHIEE
Mr. Pong Chun Yu (appointed on ERTEE N/A
22 January 2021) (R0 E1A2AEZ ) i 10 22 2 AR
Mr. Hui Wai Hung (appointed on ShEEE N/A
16 February 2021) (R0t E2 A 16REZ ) 6/6 111 1 111 TER
M. Jiang Qiaowei (appointed on EBEEE N/A
16 February 2021) (R0t E2 A 16REZ ) 6/6 111 1 111 TER
Mr. Wong Sui Chi (resigned on BB E
16 February 2021) (R2021F2R16A B ) /6 33 33 33 111
Mr. Li Lap Sun (resigned on 16 February 2021) ~ Zu# %4
(Ro021%52A16BF ) 6/6 33 33 33 l
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy (resigned on REZEE
16 February 2021) (R2021F2R16A B ) /6 33 33 33 o
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All Directors are provided with details of agenda items for
decisions making with reasonable notice. Directors have
access to the advice and services of the company secretary
who is responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures
are complied with and advising the Board on compliance
matters. Directors are also provided with access to
independent professional advice, where necessary, in
carrying out their obligations as Directors, at the expenses
of the Company. Directors who are considered to have
conflict of interests or material interests in the proposed
transactions or issues to be discussed would not be
counted in the quorum of meeting and would abstain from
voting on the relevant resolutions.

All Directors assume the responsibilities owed to the
shareholders of the Company for the well-being and
success of the Company. They are aware of their duties to
act in good faith and in the best interests of the Company.

The Board is responsible for maintaining proper accounting
records so as to enable the Directors to monitor the
Company’s overall financial position. The Board updates
shareholders on the operations and financial positions
of the Group through quarterly, half yearly and annual
results announcements as well as the publication of timely
announcements on other matters as prescribed by the
relevant rules and regulations.

The Company has three independent non-executive
Directors, at least one of whom has appropriate financial
management expertise, in compliance with the GEM Listing
Rules. Each of the independent non-executive Director has
made an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of
the view that all independent non-executive Directors meet
the independence guidelines as set out in Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines.
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According to the Company’s articles of association, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
the Company after his appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, which
stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Accordingly, following the resignation
of Mr. Wong Kui Shing Danny as chief executive officer of
the Company and replaced by Mr. Wong Chi Yung, there
will be a deviation from the code provision A.2.1 by the
Company as Mr. Wong Chi Yung is also the chairman of the
board.

Notwithstanding the aforesaid deviation, the Board
considers that the present structure will not impair the
balance of power and authority between the Board and
the management of the Group as the Board assumes
collective responsibility on the decision-making process
of the Company’s business strategies and operation.
Nevertheless, the Company will continue to review its
operation and seek to re-comply with the code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code by splitting the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer at a time when it is appropriate to
increase the independence of corporate governance of the
Group.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all the non-
executive Directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. Each of the non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for three years but
subject to termination in certain circumstance as stipulated
in the relevant service contracts. At each annual general
meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being or,
if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one third, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years. Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the first general meeting of members
after his appointment and be eligible for re-election at such
meeting and any Director appointed as an addition to the
existing board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION T EERBEE

The Board is responsible for performing corporate ESF2EBHERBITLEEABRE YERED
governance duties and has adopted written terms of EEABARMNEEMBESRE -
reference on its corporate governance functions.

8
514

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate # % TEEABEITENBERSE

governance functions include:

0 developing and reviewing the Company’s policies (i) FITEEBRAARANEEEARE K
and practices on corporate governance; R

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous (i) WA KEEEEERSAETEENEFI
professional development of Directors and senior REBEELR:
management;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and (i) B LEBARAFTNETEAEZREE
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory BMEFEMERERER
requirements;

(iv)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of (iv) #IT BRI KEEEREREZTEAN
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable BrFAIRERFMRIE): &
to employees and Directors; and

(v)  reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG (v) BHEAAREBETLEEARTINER
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance REEEARETPHNBEEEE-
Report.

Up to the date of this report, the Board has performedthe #HEAREHH EFeCBREERES

corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms BT E(E AR E -
of reference.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity
of Board members can be achieved through consideration
of a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will
be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

Based on recommendations from the nomination committee
of the Company, the Board will set measurable objectives
to implement the Board Diversity Policy and review such
objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness
and ascertain the progress made towards achieving those
objectives. The nomination committee of the Company will
review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure
its continued effectiveness from time to time.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”)
was set up on 14 March 2017 to oversee the remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management.

Within terms of reference in compliance with code provision
B1.2 of the CG Code, the primary objectives of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure
of the Directors and the senior management and
determining the remuneration packages of all Directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible to ensure that no Director or any of
his associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions.

During the year ended 31 May 2021, the Remuneration
Committee held four meetings.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members
namely:

Mr. Pong Chun Yu (Chairman)
(appointed as member on 22 January 2021 and
appointed as chairman on 16 February 2021)
Mr. Hui Wai Hung
(appointed on 16 February 2021)
Mr. Jiang Qiaowei
(appointed on 16 February 2021)
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy
(resigned on 16 February 2021)
Mr. Wong Sui Chi
(resigned on 16 February 2021)
Mr. Li Lap Sun
(resigned on 16 February 2021)

All the members are independent non-executive Directors.
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REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE GROUP

The remuneration policy of the Group is designed to ensure
that remuneration offered to the Directors and/or employees
is appropriate for the respective duties performed,
sufficiently compensate them for the effort and time
dedicated to the affairs of the Group, and is competitive and
effective in attracting, retaining and motivating employees.
The key components of the Company’s remuneration
package include basic salary, and where appropriate, other
allowances, incentive bonus, mandatory provident funds
and share options granted (if any) under the share option
scheme of the Company. Details of the share option scheme
of the Company are set out on pages 73 to 76 of this annual
report.

The emoluments payable to Directors are determined with
reference to the responsibilities, qualifications, experience,
duties, performance of the Directors, prevailing market
conditions and remuneration benchmark with directors of
listed companies of similar size and industry nature. They
include incentive bonus primarily based on the results of
the Group and share options granted (if any) under the
share option scheme of the Company. The Remuneration
Committee performs review on the emoluments of the
Directors from time to time. No Director, or any of his
associates or executive, is involved in deciding his own
emoluments.

Employees’ remuneration packages are determined
with reference to the responsibilities, qualifications and
experience, duties and performance of individuals as
well as prevailing market compensation packages. The
packages are reviewed annually and as required from time
to time.

The Group will spend resources in training, retention
and recruitment programs, and encouraging staff for
self-development and improvements. The Group keeps
monitoring and evaluating the performance of managerial
staff, aiming to achieve continuous improvements and
correction of deficiencies.

The Group believes that direct and effective communication
is essential for the establishment of good relations between
the management and employees. The Group receives
comments and suggestions from employees through
internal networks and the suggestion box, and adopts and
analyzes related comments and suggestions, and rewards
those providing recommendations.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”) on 14 March 2017 for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors
and succession planning for the Directors.

Within terms of reference in compliance with Code Provision
A5.2 of the CG Code, the principal duties of the Nomination
Committee include reviewing the Board composition,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors, assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and viewing the Board Diversity Policy.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Wong Chi Yung, Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray, Mr. Hui Wai
Hung, Mr. Jiang Qiaowei and Mr. Pong Chun Yu, shall retire
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. No Directors proposed
for re-election at the forth coming AGM has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than normal statutory obligations.

During the year ended 31 May 2021, the Nomination
Committee held four meeting.

Directors’ and the Five Highest Paid Individuals’
Emoluments

The Directors’ fees and remuneration and the emoluments
of the five highest paid individuals during the year are
disclosed in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

The contributions to pension scheme of Directors for the
year are disclosed in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted the following policies for the
nomination of Directors:

Selection Criteria

In assessing and selecting candidates for Directors,
the Nomination Committee shall consider the following
non-exhaustive list of factors:

° the candidate’s character and integrity, professional
skills and experience;

o the potential contributions that a candidate can bring
to the Board in terms of diversity of gender, age,
culture and educational background etc.;

o whether the candidate meets the required
independence criteria as set out in the GEM Listing
Rules;

° whether the candidate is willing and able to devote
sufficient time to fulfill the duties of being a Director;
and

° such other perspectives appropriate to the

Company’s business.

Nomination Procedures

he evaluation, recommendation, nomination, selection and
appointment or re-appointment of each proposed Director
shall be assessed and considered by the Nomination
Committee and the Board against the Selection Criteria and
the Board Diversity Policy.

In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board, after the Nomination Committee receives the
proposal to appoint a new Director or the nomination from
a shareholder, the Nomination Committee shall evaluate
the candidate’s eligibility to serve as a Director based on
the above criteria in combination with his or her personal
profile. If multiple candidates are involved, the Nomination
Committee shall prioritize them according to the Company’s
needs and candidates’ respective qualification.
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In the case of the re-appointment of a Director at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution
of the Directors and their services, their participation and
performance within the Board and whether such Director
still meets the above selection criteria.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members
namely:

Mr. Jiang Qiaowei (Chairman)

(appointed on 16 February 2021)
Mr. Hui Wai Hung

(appointed on 16 February 2021)
Mr. Pong Chun Yu

(appointed on 22 January 2021)
Mr. Li Lap Sun

(resigned on 16 February 2021)
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy

(resigned on 16 February 2021)
Mr. Wong Sui Chi

(resigned on 16 February 2021)

All the members are independent non-executive Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) on 14 March 2017 with written terms of
reference in compliance with Code Provision C3.3 of the
CG Code that set out the authorities and duties of the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee performs, amongst others,
the following functions:

o Review financial information of the Group

o Review relationship with and terms of appointment of
the external auditors

. Review the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management system.
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During the year ended 31 May 2021, the Audit Committee
held four meetings. The Audit Committee oversees the
internal control system of the Group, reports to the Board
on any material issues and makes recommendations to the
Board.

The Audit Committee comprises three members namely:

Mr. Pong Chun Yu (Chairman)
(appointed as member on 22 January 2021 and appointed
as chairman on 16 February 2021)

Mr. Hui Wai Hung
(appointed on 16 February 2021)

Mr. Jiang Qiaowei
(appointed on 16 February 2021)

Mr. Wong Sui Chi
(resigned on 16 February 2021)

Mr. Li Lap Sun
(resigned on 16 February 2021)

Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy
(resigned on 16 February 2021)

All the members are independent non-executive Directors
(including one independent non-executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise).
None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

During the year ended 31 May 2021, the Audit Committee
has held meetings with the Company’s auditor to discuss
the auditing, risk management, internal control systems,
the effectiveness of the internal audit function and financial
reporting matters of the Group. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the Year, the first quarterly report for the three months
ended 31 August 2020, the interim financial report for the
six months ended 30 November 2020 and the third quarterly
report for the nine months ended 28 February 2021,
including the accounting principles and practice adopted
by the Group.

BrEEERLR

&
BRITOREZ - BERZBECEEAEENRNI
THER AMEFEREEMERFTERK
EEeRHERER -

ERZEgRBE=2KE B

BIRFEE(EE)
(R2021F1B22BEZEAKE TR
2021 F2 A6 HEZEATFE)

B M I S
(R2021F2A16 HEZ 1)

ESR AL
(R2021F2A16 HEZ 1)

iR R
(R2021%F2 A16 H B 1T)

FTUHAKE
(FRh2021%F2 A16 H B L)

HEELE
(FRh2021%F2 A16 H B L)

FMEREARBINATES(BER—RA
BESEEXERKEF XM B EERBE
ENBIULFATES) MEFEZEEK
ERARARBREINEZBMOAMAIERH-

HEC021F5A3MBIEFE BEREEHE
KRR ZEMEBARAEETRAERERZ
EREE RIZEHER ABBFZBED
ESMHRBEREEE - BEREESEEH
REBZAFEEESMBHRE - B E2020
FeANALE=ZMAAME—ZFTERSE - H=E
202011 A30R IENEA A M BB %5 3k &
MEE20021F2828BH It A AANE=FE
HBE REASBMEMAZ SR RBEH -



Corporate Governance Report

AN\ gy
TRERHME

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend
Policy”) that aims to provide the guidelines for the Board to
determine whether dividends are to be declared and paid
to the Shareholders and the level of dividend to be paid.
Under the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to propose
a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board shall take into account, among others,

o the Group’s actual and expected financial
performance;
o the Group’s expected working capital requirements,

capital expenditure requirements and future
expansion plans;

° retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each member of the Group;

o the Group’s liquidity position;

° the general economic conditions and other internal
or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the
Group; and

o any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company
shall remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the
Board and is also subject to any restrictions under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the GEM Listing
Rules, the laws of Hong Kong and the Company’s articles of
associations and any other applicable laws and regulations.
The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend distribution
record in the past may not be used as a reference or basis
to determine the level of dividends that may be declared or
paid by the Company in the future.
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The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy
and reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to
update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any
time, and the Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a
legally binding commitment by the Company that dividends
will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or
from time to time.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and
effective internal control systems in order to safeguard the
Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests, and review
and monitor the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control and risk management systems annually so as to
ensure that internal control and risk management systems
in place are adequate. The Company also has a process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks
to the achievement of its operational objective. The risk
management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objective, and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. This process is subject to continuous improvement up
to the date of this annual report. The day-to-day operation
is entrusted to each individual department, which is
accountable for its own conduct and performance, and is
required to strictly adhere to the policies set by the Board.
The Company carries out reviews on the effectiveness of
the internal control systems from time to time in order to
ensure that they are able to meet and deal with the dynamic
and ever-changing business environment.

The Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the business of the Group, it would be
more cost effective not to appoint external independent
professionals to perform internal audit function for the
Group.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed and considered
the internal control and risk management systems to be
effective and adequate, and in compliance with the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the annual consolidated financial statements of the
Company which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs, results and cash flows of the Group for the Reporting
Period.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of annual and interim
reports, inside information announcements and other
disclosures required under the GEM Listing Rules and other
statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Management has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable
the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
Company’s consolidated financial statements which are put
to the Board for approval.

The Directors were aware that the Group incurred a net
loss of HK39,486,000 for the Year and as at 31 May
2021, the Group’s net current liabilities and net liabilities
were approximately HK$21,820,000 and approximately
HK$10,995,000, respectively. These conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

Notwithstanding the above conditions, the financial
statements were prepared based on the assumption that
the Group can be operated as a going concern.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Company discloses information in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules, and publishes periodic reports
and announcements to the public in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of the
Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely,
fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling
shareholders, investors as well as the public to make
rational and informed decisions.

BEMEREZ
EEZPHAREAAERELARAFERA
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WK A AR R B E -

BEENEBARAEBRAFEE KKX2021F5 A 31
B &% 18 % /& 18 39,486,000 7T - 1M A& £ B
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The Group has put in place the procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information. The Group discloses inside information to
the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the
information falls within any of the safe harbours as stated
in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the
public, the Group ensures the information is kept strictly
confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary
degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that
confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would
immediately disclose the information to the public. The
Group is committed to ensure that information contained in
announcements or circulars are not false or misleading as to
a material fact, or false or misleading through the omission
of a material fact in view of presenting information in a clear
and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both
positive and negative facts.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and facilitating
communications among Directors as well as with
shareholders and management.

Ms. Sun Shui was appointed as the company secretary
of the Company on 16 February 2021 and is responsible
for overseeing all the company secretarial matters of the
Group.

Ms. Sun confirmed that, she has taken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company on
their reporting responsibilities and opinion on the Group’s
financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2021 is set
out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report” in
this annual report.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-
audit functions performed by the external auditor, including
whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential
material adverse effect on the Company.

The fees paid/payable to BDO Limited in respect of the
audit services and non-audit services for the year ended
31 May 2021 are set out as follows:

B A BREM K A% BU AT A

AARIERHMUEBRETCHERALR
HAEBEHZ2021F5A0318 1L FE M B R
RIEEWNER  ERAERE % AR

H—#-

ERZBESRAEZRIEREMNEZAER
ERNBERBMETNEMNFEZRE &
BRZEERREERHARAELEEW
BEBAINNEE-

HE2021FE5A31BILEREEN BN FE
BY EERXCTMESMERAREREE
ZHBRAEH T

Fee paid/payable

e ENEH

HK$'000

FET

Audit services =% R 7% 500
Total 45t 500

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in a programme of continuous
professional development (“CPD”) to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Reading materials on relevant topics will be issued to
Directors where appropriate. During the year ended 31 May
2021, all the Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses.

ABREEEXRRRE

BRECEZTATHNNTAIEXABSE 2
RESFL2HSEEEXER((SEEER
EJ).:%&’LA?*)?&&E?F)T{}S‘Z#Z%HE&&HEM’
B EABEREAEECAEFEZEAEMEY
éﬁﬁ%—Z’%iﬁTﬂ%%'@{fﬂjE%ﬁozﬁﬂﬂ
REEBRTMESHEHNEEETENEE
B - AQARNEEHZRE = HEAEBLE
BRI B E2021FESA3IB IEFEE S ARQ A
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During the year ended 31 May 2021, all the Directors have & £2021F5831HIEEE 2B EEH D
participated in the CPD and the relevant details are set out 2 MFFEEELAE  GRIFBEHI DT

below:

Name of Directors CPD Participation

EEpgg BHEEESERR
Yes/No

=&

Executive Directors HITEF

Mr. Wong Chi Yung TEEEE Yes &

Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray RAEEFE Yes &

Mr. Wong Kui Shing Danny (appointed on FHEREE(R2021E2 16 A EE F

16 February 2021 and resigned on 12 July 2021) /202147 S 128 & {T) N/A 38 F
Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester REHEELE(R2021FE2 A 16 B B T)

(resigned on 16 February 2021) N/A A i3 A
Ms. Lau Sze Yuen (resigned on 16 February 2021) % B 1 & + (A 202142 516 H & 1) N/A A i
Non-executive Director FHTEF
Mr. Kan Sze Man (resigned on 16 February 2021) 8 £ & % & (KA 2021F2 516 H & 1) N/A A i
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHNTEE
Mr. Pong Chun Yu (appointed on 22 January 2021) &k F %5 £ (74202151 22 B E % £) Yes &
Mr. Hui Wai Hung (appointed on 16 February 2021) 7F # i %5 £ (72021 F2 A 16 H E £ 1) Yes 2
Mr. Jiang Qiaowei (appointed on 16 February 2021) & & 5 £ A (72021 F2 A 16 H E &£ {T) Yes 2
Mr. Wong Sui Chi (resigned on 16 February 2021) & ¥ & % &£ (X 202142 A 16 B & 1T) N/AZ 8 A
Mr. Li Lap Sun (resigned on 16 February 2021) A (R2021F2 A 16 B & 1) N/AZ 8 A
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy (resigned on hBE LA (R2021F2 16 B & 1)

16 February 2021) N/A S i3 A

Participation in CPD includes attending seminars, reading g% xEHNL2EaE2NTNe  BE
relevant materials in relation to the business of the Group, EAEEER BERE  GEMFHE A%

directors’ duties, latest development of the GEM Listing  sr3E R EMEHRESE T AENEEME -
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

The Company has not made any change to its constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 May 2021. A
consolidated version of the Company’s constitutional
documents is available on the Company’s website and the
website of the Stock Exchange.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhance investor relations. It is
committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of
corporate information to its shareholders and investment
public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest
business developments and financial performance through
its annual, interim and quarterly reports. The corporate
website of the Company (www.bcigroup.com.hk) has
provided an effective communication platform to the public
and the shareholders.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to
provide our shareholders with detailed information about
the Company so that they can exercise their rights as
shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to
ensure its shareholders are kept well informed of key
business imperatives. These include annual general
meeting, annual report, various notices, announcements
and circulars. The annual general meeting and other
general meetings of the Company are primary forums for
communication between the Company and its shareholders.
The Company provides shareholders with relevant
information on the resolution(s) proposed at general
meetings in a timely manner in accordance with the GEM
Listing Rules. The information provided is reasonably
necessary to enable shareholders to make an informed
decision on the proposed resolution(s).

ERXHNERED

HEC021F5A31B IEFE AR A I &Y
HEEXHELEEIMNESR AR ERXH
B 4R A R AN A A AN A &) A9 kK B XS P 49 U
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDER TO CONVINCE
AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law (2018 Revision). However,
shareholders are requested to follow article 64 of the
Articles of Association of the Company which provides that
extraordinary general meetings should be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date
of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the secretary for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after
the deposit of such requisition. If the Board fails to proceed
to convene an extraordinary general meeting within 21
days of the deposit of the requisition, the requisitionist(s)
may convene an extraordinary general meeting himself/
themselves, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

BrEEERLR

BRREMBRRIFIIAEHNEF

eSS AR EQRBFEEBIA)LEAS
BRRERAGREZFABZENE R
M - BRRAEBARBDAEAZERAR Fo64
e REEHBRERFIAGA B — BRI LR
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDER TO PROPOSE
PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person
for election as a Director of the Company are laid down
in Article 113 of the Company’s Articles of Association.
No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for
election to the office of Director at any general meeting,
unless notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director and notice in writing by
that person of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the Head Office or at the Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrar. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under the Articles of Association of the Company
will commence no earlier than the day after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of
such general meeting and the minimum length of the period
during which such notices to the Company may be given
will be at least 7 days.

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company,
for the attention of compliance officer, by email:
edwin108@bci-group.com, or mail to Floor 14, Bupa Centre,
141 Connaught Road West, Sai Ying Pun, Hong Kong.

FHARRREATSEEEZNER

FEEABRRREALIZ2ZARFAEENRTE
R ARAABERZAAFE 3K BRI —
MEEREZEEZZALTRESENEER
AR - Z2EEERALEZERPER
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MESSERHEANER
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group regards corporate social responsibilities as
one of the core values of its business operations for
sustainable development. The Group persistently strives to
operate its business in an economic, environmentally, and
socially sustainable manner. The Group is keenly aware of
the importance of balancing its business needs with the
stewardship of the natural environment, the need to meet
market demand for resources, and the need to achieve a
harmonious development of society.

The Company presents this Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Report (“Report”) for the year
ended 31 May 2021 (“Reporting Period”), in accordance
with the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” as set out in Appendix 20 to GEM
Listing Rules and based on the material aspects of the
Group and stakeholders.

The Report has complied with the “comply or explain”
provisions set out in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 20 to the
GEM Listing Rules. We value your feedback regarding
the review and our overall sustainability practices. Please
provide your comments by email to info@bci-group.com.

This Report serves to provide details of the Company’s ESG
policies and initiatives of its major operating segment in
Hong Kong, which is principally engaged in the operation of
club, entertainment and restaurant business.

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Company’s
ESG strategy and reporting, monitoring and managing
the ESG related risks. The management is responsible for
evaluating effectiveness of the ESG risk management and
internal control systems and the management confirms
that these systems are effective to mitigate our ESG
related risks. Assessment of ESG status and progress
are conducted on an ongoing basis. To understand the
concerns of various stakeholders, the Company has
engaged and discussed with various business functions and
management personnel, and identified the following material
aspects and has managed them strictly in accordance with
the Group’s policies and guidelines and in compliance with
the relevant legal and regulatory standards.
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During the Reporting Period, to the best knowledge,
information and belief of the Directors after having made all
reasonable enquiries, no member of the Group had been
involved in any material breach, or non-compliance, with
any applicable environmental laws or regulations, or laws or
regulations relating to employment, employee’s health and
safety, labour standards, product and service responsibility
or corruption that had a significant impact on the Company
or the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group measured and
managed its environmental performance in several aspects
throughout its operations.

A) ENVIRONMENTAL

Emissions

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of
club, entertainment and restaurants in Hong Kong.
Throughout the operating process, the relevant
emission includes noise emission, light emission and
air emission.

i) Noise emission

The operation of our clubs, namely Volar,
Mudita and Faye, naturally generates music
in the evenings. To minimize noise emission,
the Group installs noise pollution materials
and structure. The locations of our clubs are
not in residential crowded areas. Volar and
Faye are located at Lan Kwai Fong, a night
entertainment district in Hong Kong, whereas
Mudita is located at Ice House Street in
Central.

The Group is not aware of any incidents of
non-compliance with laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group
relating to noise emission.

RBEEHE REFFEL A EERNEM
R BELREE AESELIBEMAKE 2
HEEMEAEZRKXTETEMNERREZX
REZHR RERB EERERLE 5
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i)

iii)
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Light Emission

The light emissions should not and do not
cause any disturbance to the public since
all the featured events are conducted inside
our club. To minimize light emission, the
Group has complied with all the relevant
laws, ordinances, rules and regulations in
Hong Kong in our structural construction and
operation to ensure all the lighting systems
are properly installed.

The Group is not aware of any incidents of
non-compliance with laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group
relating to light emission.

Gas Emission

As cooking process involves the usage
of fuels, restaurant operation inevitably
generates exhaust gases. To protect the
vicinity environment, all of the Group’s
restaurants have strictly complied with the
oil fume and cooking odor requirements as
stipulated by Air Pollution Control Ordinance
(Chapter 311 of the laws of Hong Kong). The
Company is committed to executing effective
gas emissions control through the installation
and use of appropriate and efficient filtering
equipment as well as organizing the regular
inspection, maintenance and repair of the
ventilation system.
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The sources of the greenhouse gases and the
relative emissions for the Company during the
years ended 31 May 2020 and 2021 are cited
as below:

Group’s annual consumption
of fuel and energy Unit

Fuel and Energy

AEBRHRER
R R B8R FHEEENQ
Electricity kWh
BN T FL B

Group’s intensity of
greenhouse gases emission
per year
FEERERBFHREE

Total amount for greenhouse

gases emission
BRERBETRE
Greenhouse gases emissions tCO2e/HK$'m
intensity

BERBHEREE BW_fAltREE

Note:

The above calculation is based on the reference and tools
provided by Environmental Protection Department. The
website is https://www.carbon-footprint.hk/node/52.

Carbon dioxide in tonnes

— & thx UAREE &)

HZE2020F R2021E5 831 15

- NARARERENRIR KB
BERRIERINT ¢

2021 2020

2021 % 2020 F

Total Total

consumption consumption

BEHER mHEE
389,173 436,282
198.6 222.6

8.1 4.4

SEBET

B
LB ERREREE R #

H2EERRKRIAGFE- B A
https://www.carbon-footprint.hk/node/52 ©
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iv)

The Group’s greenhouse gases emissions
intensity is calculated by dividing the total
greenhouse gases emissions by the Group’s
total revenue of club, entertainment and
restaurant business. The Group's total
revenue of club, entertainment and restaurant
business for the year ended 31 May 2021 was
approximately HK$24.4 million.

The Group’s greenhouse gases emissions are
mainly produced from indirect emissions due
to electricity purchased from The Hong Kong
Electric Company Limited.

AEEMAERBHEREER
REERERERERAAE
EemM RLeREEXFNE
Wt E - & E 202145 A31H
HFEE AEBETH RERE
EEBENAWE BN2448 &
BT e

AEENARERBHEREIER
BERMEAERERARBEN
BEHNEENHEEHER-

Sewage Discharges iv)  JFKHEM
During the Reporting Period, all of the Group’s RmEBE NEERMEGMR
clubs and restaurants have been granted EECDCEEAERFMNTRE(SE
with the water pollution control licenses by BDRREREBEBKGRE
the Environmental Protection Department of Bl ER o B D5 K INE IR
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region VB AEENTELREREM
(“Hong Kong”). To minimize the environmental ERRBEENRE  ABRTK
impact from the sewage discharge, the THHRAIEZEEE - 8 ZE2020
Group has also installed adequate, efficient FN2021F5A31B IEFEMFE
and appropriate equipment to ensure the KEFEFEIMT
sewage has been properly processed before
discharge. Water consumption statistics of the
years ended 31 May 2020 and 2021 are set
out as follows:
2021 2020
20215 2020 £F
Group’s annual consumption Total Total
of fuel and energy Unit consumption consumption
AEBERBERER
FHEBEN BHEHFEE BEHFEE
Water consumption cubic meter 3,402 4,930
FEKE S OK
Water Consumption Intensity cubic meter/HK$'m revenue 139.4 97.8

BKRKEEE
Note:

The Group’s water consumption intensity is calculated by
dividing the total water consumption by the Group’s total
revenue of club, entertainment and restaurant business.
The Group’s total revenue of club, entertainment and
restaurant business for the year ended 31 May 2021 was
approximately HK$24.4 million.

BCI Group Holdings Limited SMEBEERAT
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Use of Resources

The resources used by the Group are principally
attributed to the consumption of electricity, water and
paper at the back office and outlets.

Electricity is consumed during the daily business
operations from using electrical equipment. To
promote an environmentally friendly office, the Group
promotes and advises several measures such as:
i) employees are encouraged to switch the electric
equipment to energy saving mode such as the
automatically power down of printers and computers
after a period of inactivity and turn off lightings before
leaving the office and outlets; and ii) temperature
switches are adopted to maintain the workplaces at a
reasonable temperature.

Although non-significant amounts of water is
consumed through the business activities, the
Group also encourages water saving by driving
water-saving habits and posting green messages in
the workplace to remind the employees to use water
effectively.

The Group implements measures for reducing
the paper consumption such as: i) double-sided
printing and reuse of single-sided printed papers
are encouraged; and ii) encourage to use more
e-channels to disseminate corporate information.

BRER
AEEMERNEREZRE
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B)

SOCIAL
Employment

Employee is the foundation of success of the Group.
The Group is an equal opportunity employer and
no discrimination is tolerated on the basis of age,
gender, race, colour, sexual orientation, disability or
marital status.

The Company also prohibits any kinds of
discrimination at the workplace, which generally
refer to the gender, pregnancy, marital status,
disability, family status, and race in the practices
for human resources. Other than the policies for
anti-discrimination, the Company provides fair
opportunities for all staff members.

The total number of employees and the distribution
on demographics as of 31 May 2020 and 2021 have
been depicted as below:

B)

HE

5

BERARERDOHESL  AREA
AFREET BRILERFH M
B I OB M R ok 48 R
R 80 £ 7 LR °

RKARMBEIEETESHERMTERD
KR BESRANDEROMER &
2 BEEMRR-BR RERR LR
e BMRIERBEIN RRBA/ME
BERHKTERE -

HE2020F N2021F5H310 @ REHE
MEBGHDMBRIT

Total number of employees and distribution

2021
2021 £

No. of

Gender % 5l employee

BEEAR

Male
Female

27
14

P
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BEERERD M
2021 2020 2020
2021 % 2020 F 2020 F
Occupied Occupied
percentage No. of percentage
(%) employee (%)
s B2k FRiEBE D
(%) EBEAH (%)
65.9 32 51.6
34.1 30 48.4
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2021 2021 2020 2020

2021 % 2021 F 2020 F 2020 F

Occupied Occupied

No. of percentage No. of percentage

Job type ITEER employee (%) employee (%)

FriEE o FiEE 2

BEAH (%) EBE A (%)

Full Time ] 37 90.2 35 56.5

Part Time i 4 9.8 27 435

2021 2021 2020 2020

2021 % 2021 % 2020 2020 £F

Occupied Occupied

No. of percentage No. of percentage

Age range FHRE employee (%) employee (%)

FriE B 2k FRriEBE D

BEA™ (%) BEEAH (%)

17-30 172 3075% 15 36.6 32 51.6

31-40 31E405% 12 29.3 13 21.0

41-50 41 E505% 10 24.3 9 14.5

51-64 51 £ 6475% 4 9.8 8 12.9
Total number of & B 2 2

employees 41 100 62 100
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The Group aims to provide a harmonious and
respectful working environment for the employees
through competitive remuneration packages
including basic salary, commissions, holidays, group
insurance and mandatory provident fund that are
comparable to the market standard and structured
to commensurate with individual responsibilities,
qualifications, experiences and performance.
Periodical review is conducted and the appraisal
results provide basis for annual salary review and
promotion appraisal.

The employment contract specified the terms
including scope of work, wages/allowances, working
hours, rest days, dismissal and other benefits and
welfare to the staff. To stay competitive, the Group’s
base salaries are in line with the industry norms.

Health and Safety

The Group realises that ensuring the health and
safety of employees are very important to the
business operations of the Group and therefore we
make every effort to build and maintain a working
environment which is free from workplace health and
safety incidents.

The Group follows safety manuals issued by the
Occupational Safety of Health Council which set out
work safety measures to prevent common accidents
which could happen in the outlets. Managers are
responsible to ensure compliance of safety, hygiene
and fire requirements by conducting checks and
inspections of the premises regularly such as fire exit
passageway shall be kept clear from obstruction.
Fire extinguishers and other equipment shall be kept
at the correct location and that they are accessible
and remain free from obstruction.
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The Group has engaged a third-party security
company for the clubs which will provide a team of
10 security staff, working under the supervision of
the club managers. The roles of the security team
cover performing patrolling, attending the scene and
liaising with customers to stop any potential fights in
case of arguments or any fights or other suspicious
circumstances, and reporting fights, drug use, theft
and harassments to the police when necessary. The
Group has established safety and anticrime manual,
which is implemented strictly by the security team.
The club managers are responsible for coordinating
with the security team.

The Group implements headcounts and identity
checking procedures at the entrance of the premises
of the clubs to monitor the number of guests inside
the premises and whether the customers are above
18 years old when entering into the clubs. In order
to spot potential illegal activities such as fights,
drug abuse or theft at an early stage, 30 CCTVs are
installed inside the club premises. The security team
will attend the scene investigate immediately if any
suspicious circumstance arises or stop any potential
fight inside the premises once identified.

Development and Training

As part of the Group’s initiatives for improving
business performance and encouraging personal
development of the staff, the Group strives to provide
comprehensive development to the employees.

The Group has provided training across different
operational functions, including induction training
for new employees, technical training, and training
to enhance the employees’ knowledge, skill level
and quality when performing their duties. For the
bartenders and cooks, the Group encourages them
to take courses to further enhance their technical
skills. The senior management also gives regular
training to the staff in relation to customer service
skills.
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Supply Chain Management

Suppliers have a direct impact on the Group’s
sustainability performance. The Group’s suppliers
mainly include beverage and food suppliers.

The Group selects the major suppliers based on a
set of criteria which includes product and service
quality, cost, reputation, service, agility, delivery
efficiency, past performance and relationship with
the Group. Such supplier selection criteria ensure
that the Group can secure continual supply of
ingredients of consistent quality, identify the source
of supply promptly, and maintain flexibility in stock
levels. Generally, the Group would not procure from
the suppliers unless they pass the selection criteria.

The operating managers are primarily responsible
for monitoring the level of food and beverage and
making orders. Each of the outlets place purchase
orders with the procurement staff which then place
orders with the relevant suppliers. Upon delivery of
the items to the outlets, the staff checks the time of
delivery, the brand and type, quantity and quality
of deliveries against the delivery notes or invoices
and the orders before acceptance. The Group also
inspects the best-by date and condition of the food
ingredients, and if they fall below our quality control
standards, the Group would return them to the
suppliers.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not
experienced any significant problems with the quality
of beverage and food products provided by the
suppliers, any material limitations in the supply nor
any shortage of beverage and food products. The
Group believes that the supply chain management
and procedures can ensure the safety of the supply
chain.
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Product Responsibility

Considering the importance of continuous customers’
satisfaction and support, the Group is committed
to providing customers with high quality services
and products. The Group provides training and
guidelines to its staff on service-related areas
such as beverage and food handling and personal
hygiene to enhance the quality of services provided
to the customers. All frontline service staff are trained
to be courteous, competent and responsive and to
provide cordial hospitality to customers. The outlets
staff are required to be professionally uniformed
during all working hours. The operating managers
hold daily briefing sessions with all front-line service
staffs on the daily operations of outlets. In these
briefing sessions, the managers would review staff
performance and reflect the customers’ feedbacks.
Such daily performance reviews assist the front-line
service staff in maintaining and improving service
levels. The Group strives to promote customer
satisfaction through responding to their comments
and feedbacks. The front-line service staff are
required to treat customer requests, enquiries or
complaints promptly and seriously. In case of any
customer complaint in relation to beverage or food or
quality of services, the relevant operating managers
would take initiatives to investigate and resolve the
matter and attend to the customers promptly.

If any staff receives a complaint from a customer, he
shall report to his supervisor, usually the operating
manager, who would review and understand the
matter with the relevant customer and offer remedial
proposals to the customer. If the complaint cannot
be resolved on site or if a complaint has been
received through emails, the operating managers
will investigate the incident and file a report to the
management with solutions to improve or avoid
similar incidents in the future. An explanation will be
sent to the relevant customer to ensure the matter
would be resolved and to maintain a good customer
relationship. The Group’s management will review
the complaints and arrange necessary training to the
staff to consistently improve the operation of outlets.
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Data Privacy

The Group has implemented certain internal
control measures in ensuring the confidentiality of
the operation data so as to protect the suppliers,
business partners, customers and itself. The Group’s
employment contract, staff handbook and internal
control manual clearly define the requirements in
relation to protecting the Group’s data. For example,
i) staffs are only allowed to access, retrieve, store
and/or copy computer data that are necessary and
directly related to their work; ii) any unauthorized
access, retrieval, storage or copy of computer data,
as well as unauthorized transfer and disclosure of
data to third parties, are strictly prohibited and may
lead to summary dismissal; and iii) administrative
department is tasked with the implementation of a
practical and reliable mechanism to ensure security
of all data contained in computers and to protect
data against unauthorized access or retrieval.

Anti-corruption

Corruption, deception, bribery, forgery, extortion,
money laundering and any other kinds of business
fraud are strictly prohibited and fully investigated by
the Audit Committee. In every business operation,
employees and the management must demonstrate
integrity. No tolerance is given to fraud. According
to the staff handbook and internal control manual
established by the Group, policy is established to
govern investigation and follow-up procedures of
reported fraud incidents. To enhance the governance
of the Group, periodic and systematic fraud risk
assessments are conducted. Any abnormality should
be reported to the Audit Committee for investigation.
Whistle-blowing channel is also established for the
reporting of violations of professional conducts.

Community Investment

The Group cares about its community and is willing
to give helping hands to the needy in order to
promote harmony and stability of the society. The
management continues to focus on the needs of the
society and endeavour to enhance the sustainability
of the community.
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The Board presents its annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 May 2021.

COMPANY INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability. The address of its registered office is
located at Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The address of
its principal place of business is located at Floor 14, Bupa
Centre, 141 Connaught Road West, Sai Ying Pun, Hong
Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
Group is principally engaged in the operation of club and
entertainment as well as restaurant business in Hong Kong.

An analysis of the Group’s performance by the principal
activities and geographical locations of operations for
the year ended 31 May 2021 is set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
pages 81 and 82 of the annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of the business review are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
10 to 26.

RESULTS AND RESERVES

As at 31 May 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders comprising share premium
account plus accumulated losses. No distributable reserves
was available for distribution as at 31 May 2021 (2020: Nil).
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DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 May 2021 (2020: Nil).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group made no charitable donations during the year
ended 31 May 2021 (2020: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, the majority
of customers consist of retail customers from the general
public. As such, the Directors consider that it is not
practicable to identify the five largest customers of the
Group for the year ended 31 May 2021.

Our Group purchased approximately 39.6% of its total
purchases from the largest supplier during the reporting
period, who have maintained business relationship with
us since 2013. The largest supplier is one of the leading
champagne distributors in the industry and the credit
term granted to us was 30 days from the date of monthly
statement. Detail of the trade and other payables of the
Group as at 31 May 2021 are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements. Up to the date of
this report, the trade and other payables to the largest
supplier has been fully settled. For the procurement of
bulk commodities or services, the Group has set bidding
programme with strict implementation.
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The information in respect of the Group’s purchases
attributable to the major suppliers during the year ended 31
May 2021 are as follows:

The largest supplier B ARHERN
Five largest suppliers in aggregate T At J& & 4 51

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued Shares, had a beneficial
interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers and
customers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group for the year ended 31 May 2021 are set out
in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

BANK LOANS AND BORROWINGS

The total borrowings of the Group as at 31 May 2021
amounted to approximately HK$27.1 million (2020:
approximately HK$30.9 million). Particulars of bank loans
and borrowings are set out in notes 24 and 25 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements of share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 27 to the financial
statements.
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CHANGE OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OF
THE COMPANY

As disclosed in the Company’s 2020 interim report,
Aplus Concept Limited (“Aplus Concept”’, a company
incorporated in British Virgin Islands with limited liability
and is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Ng Shing Joe
Kester (“Mr. Ng”)), and Phoenix Year Limited (“Phoenix
Year”, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability and is wholly-owned by CSI Properties
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 497)) as vendors (“Vendors”),
Mr. Ng as guarantor, and Mr. Sze Ching Lau (“Mr. Sze” or
“Offeror”) and Mr. Wong Kui Shing Danny (“Mr. Wong”) as
purchasers, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
(“Sale and Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which (i)
Aplus Concept has agreed to sell, and Mr. Sze has agreed
to purchase 371,520,000 shares beneficially owned by
Aplus Concept, representing 38.70% of the entire issued
share capital of the Company; and (ii) Phoenix Year has
agreed to sell, and Mr. Wong has agreed to purchase
159,180,000 shares beneficially owned by Phoenix Year,
representing approximately 16.58% of the entire issued
share capital of the Company, for a total consideration of
HK$42,456,000 (equivalent to HK$0.08 per sale share of
the Company). The completion of the Sale and Purchase
Agreement (“Completion”) took place on 14 December
2020.

Immediately following the Completion, the Offeror and
parties acting in concert with him (including Mr. Wong) was
interested in an aggregate of 530,700,000 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 55.28% of the entire
issued share capital of the Company. Pursuant to Rule 26.1
of the Takeovers Code, upon the Completion, the Offeror
made a mandatory unconditional general offer in cash
(“Offer”) for all the issued shares other than those already
owned or agreed to be acquired by the Offeror and parties
acting in concert with him (including Mr. Wong).

The Offer period has commenced since 14 December 2020
and closed on 16 February 2021 and was not revised or
extended by the Offeror. Immediately after the close of the
Offer, the Offeror and his concert parties were interested
in an aggregate of 530,780,000 Shares, representing
approximately 55.29% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Details of the Sale and Purchase Agreement and the
Offer are set out in the Company’s announcements dated
17 December 2020, 7 January 2021, 22 January 2021,
16 February 2021 and the composite document dated
22 January 2021.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 May 2021 and up
to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Chi Yung (Chairman and chief executive officer)
(appointed on1 March 2021 as non-executive Director
and re-designation to executive Director on 12 July 2021)

Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray

Mr. Lau Sze Yuen
(resigned on 16 February 2021)

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester
(resigned on 16 February 2021)

Mr. Wong Kui Shing Danny
(appointed on 16 February 2021 and resigned
on 12 July 2021)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Kan Sze Man
(resigned on 16 February 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Hui Wai Hung

(appointed on 16 February 2021)
Mr. Jiang Qiaowei

(appointed on 16 February 2021)
Mr. Pong Chun Yu

(appointed on 22 January 2021)
Mr. Li Lap Sun

(resigned on 16 February 2021)
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy

(resigned on 16 February 2021)
Mr. Wong Sui Chi

(resigned on 16 February 2021)
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Pursuant to article 108 of the articles of association of
the Company (“Article of Association”), at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3),
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation, provided that each Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) will be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three (3)
years at the annual general meeting. The retiring Directors
shall be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to article 112 of the Articles of Association, the
Board shall have power from time to time and at any time
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so
appointed shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a
casual vacancy) or until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company (in the case of an addition to
the Board), and shall then be eligible for re-election. Any
Director appointed under this article shall not be taken
into account in determining the Directors or the number of
Directors who are to retire by rotation at an annual general
meeting (“AGM").

Accordingly, Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray, Mr. Wong Chi Yung,
Mr. Hui Wai Hung, Mr. Jiang Qiaowei and Mr. Pong Chun
Yu shall retire from office and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
27 to 28 in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Mr. Wong Chi Yung, being the executive Director, has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 12 July 2021 and shall
continue thereafter, unless terminated by either party by
giving not less than one month’s written notice to the other

party.

Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray, being the executive Director, has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 2 November 2018 and
shall continue thereafter, unless terminated by either party
by giving not less than three months’ written notice to the
other party.
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Each of Mr. Pong Chun Yi, Mr. Hui Wai Hung and Mr. Jiang
Qiaowei, being the independent non-executive Directors,
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 22 January 2021
(Mr. Pong Chun Yu) and 16 February 2021 (Mr. Hui Wai
Gung and Mr. Jiang Qiaowei) and shall continue thereafter,
unless terminated by either party by giving not less than
one month’s written notice to the other party.

None of our Directors, including those proposed for
re-election at the AGM, has entered or has proposed to
enter into any service agreement or letter of appointment
with us or any other members of the Group, which is not
expired or not determinable by us or any member of the
Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

All the independent non-executive Directors were appointed
for a specific terms subject to the relevant provisions of
the Articles of Association or any other applicable laws
whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their office.

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Save as disclosed below or in the Company’s 2020 interim
report or otherwise in this annual report, pursuant to rule
17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, there is no change to the
directorship and no updated information since the date of
publication of the 2020 interim report.

Mr. Wong Kui Shing Danny has resigned and ceased to be
executive Director, chief executive officer and compliance
officer of the Company with effect from 12 July 2021.

Mr. Wong Chi Yung, has been re-designated and appointed
as executive Director, chairman of the Board, chief
executive officer and compliance officer of the Company
with effect from 12 July 2021. He is no longer a licensed
representative under the SFO to carry out Type 6 regulated
activity (advising on corporate finance) in INCU Corporate
Finance Limited since April 2021.

Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray no longer has relationship with
any director, senior management or substantial controlling
shareholder of the Company because his brother, Mr.
Ng Shing Joe Kester, has disposed his entire shares on
14 December 2020, and ceased to be a Director of the
Company since 16 February 2021.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31 May 2021 and up to the date of
this Report of the Directors, the directors are indemnified
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices. The Company has taken out
and maintained directors’ liability insurance which provides
appropriate cover for the directors and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Group.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to rule 5.09(c) of the GEM Listing
Rules and considers all the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 May 2021 and up to the date of
this annual report, the Directors, including the independent
non-executive Directors, are not aware of any business or
interest of the Directors, the management of the Company
and their respective close associates (as defined under
the GEM Listing Rules) that compete or may compete with
the business of the Group and any other conflict of interest
which any such person had or might have with the Group.

On 14 March 2017, Aplus Concept Limited and Mr. Ng
Shing Joe Kester (collectively referred to as “Controlling
Shareholders”) have entered into with and in favour of the
Company (for itself and as trustee for its subsidiaries) the
deed of non-competition (“Deed of Non-competition”).

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the compliance by Controlling Shareholders during the
period from 1 June 2020 to 14 December 2020 (the date
of ceasing to be controlling shareholders of the Company).
The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed
that, as far as they can ascertain, there is no breach by any
of Aplus Concept Limited and Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester of
the Non-competition Deed given by them.

Following the disposal of their entire shareholding interests
in the Company on 14 December 2020, Aplus Concept
Limited and Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester are no longer
subject to the non-competition restrictions pursuant to the
Non-competition Deed.

BrEEERLR

YT W R X

REZE2021F5A3IBEFEREBEARE
EeREHHLE WEFTERTESEARD
JHRESBTBESEAMEBE I ERER
FrEtt - B8E 2 EMITANKTIESMES X
AEERBEXFR KA -BH BX-
BEERAY RAESEXBEEMN—FHEE
KRBz BEER GNP ERERSRH KB KR
RAEBEBEVHABEZTECRR  AESER
AEBEHBRAAIZEERBEERRE -

BYGHBERE
ARBAEEREZBILIFNTEFRIEGEM
ETRAESQC)KELZFERBLE M
MRAELARMEBLIAATESTORE
MAL-

EERERERRRGEXERNES

BE01F5ABMBLEFERBEARFRA
H EF(ERBUFATES)UEEDTARN
AAEF FEEBAREZSANETBREA
(7 % R GEM £ M £ ) 09 (F 7] X 75 3 # 25
SHARSEAEEXBEHF  REMZF
A B S BEE A R] R E A A E A

HER-

R 2017493 A 14 B » Aplus Concept Limited &
RBEEE(GHAIERRR)ZEHAR A
(BB RIFEMBRAAZETLAN)EILT
FEEZOTTFRFELY]) -

B IERITEEE BHIERKRER2020F
618 £22020F 124148 (B A A A 7
EHREREHHEETREZCER - B
MITEEEER LE S EM - Aplus
Concept Limited B R BHELEBBERBEF
FriEd 2 84 -

# Aplus Concept Limited 2 2 48 8 & £ ®
2020F12R14B HERNARB 2 2 B #
% FEETHBETIRFEBET IR
F PR &l o



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section head “RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTION” below and notes 34 and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report,
there is no contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which the Directors had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year or at
any time during the year ended 31 May 2021.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE” above and notes 25
and 34 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report, no other connected transaction nor related
party transaction of the Company has been carried out
during the year ended 31 May 2021. In relation to the loans
and transactions disclosed under notes 25 and 34 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report,
the loans and transactions are fully exempted connected
transactions under the GEM Listing Rules as they are
conducted on normal commercial terms and are unsecured
by the assets of the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (“Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolutions passed by the Company’s
shareholders on 14 March 2017 (“Adoption Date”) for the
primary purpose of granting options to eligible participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include any employees,
any executives, non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executives Directors), suppliers,
customers, advisers and consultants of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the Company
(excluding options lapsed pursuant to the Scheme and
any other schemes of the Company) must not exceed
80,000,000 shares, representing approximately 8.3% of the
issued shares of the Company as at the date of the annual
report.
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The total number of shares issued and to be issued to each
eligible participant under the Scheme in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the issued shares of the
Company unless approved in advance by the shareholders
of the Company in general meeting.

Any option to be granted under the Scheme to a Director,
chief executive or substantial Shareholder or to any of their
respective associates must be approved by all independent
non-executive Directors (excluding independent
non-executive Director who is the grantee). In addition,
any option to be granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive Director or to any of their
respective associates which will result in the shares issued
and to be issued in excess of 0.1% of the issued shares or
with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000
within any 12-month period is subject to approval by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

The offer of a grant of options under the Scheme may be
accepted within 21 days from the date of the offer and by
payment of HK$1.00 as consideration for the grant of an
option. An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme at any time during a period as to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
but shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the
date of the grant of option.

The Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on the listing date of the Company. The
remaining life of the scheme is seven years.

The exercise price is determined by the Directors and
shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant of
an option, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant of an
option; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.
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Share Option Movements BRESH

On 18 March 2021, a total of 68,800,000 share options 7202143 5 18H ' & 68,800,000 i %
were granted to directors, employees and consultants of IR FTARRESE B E MERM - 72021
the Company. As at 31 May 2021, there were a total of 45831 H » i & 77 & B X # 4 30,000,000
30,000,000 outstanding share options. Particulars and {5 - & £22021F3A31H It FE - B IE B K
movements of the share options granted under the Share IR LW BEREFIB L2 HEH R4
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2021 are A S mERM T8 #itan T -

set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements

and summarised as below.

Movement of share options granted to Directors during the RE E2021F5A31 At FERNAEEES
year ended 31 May 2021: RHMERES S -
Number of share options
BREHE
As at Granted Exercised As at
1 June during the during 31 May Exercise
Name of director  Date of grant 2020 year the year 2021 price  Exercise period
H2020% Ha021 %
3.3 RUAE 6A18 ERERH EREfE 58318 ke TEH
Mr. Jiang Qiaowei 8 March 2021 - 400,000 (400,000) - 0.385 8 March 2021 to
7 March 2026
BREiE 20153A8A 0215382
06%3A7H
Mr. Hui Wai Gung 8 March 2021 - 400,000 - 400,000 0.385 8 March 2021 to
7 March 2026
HREEE 20153A8A 0215382
06%3A7H
Mr. Pong Chun Yu 8 March 2021 - 400,000 - 400,000 0.385 8 March 2021 to
7 March 2026
BRETEL 2001%5388A A2153A8AF
06%3A7H
- 1,200,000 (400,000) 800,000
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Movements of share options granted to employees of the HR&E £2021F5A31 8 It FE M A% EFEM

Group during the year ended 31 May 2021: RHM R RS
Number of share options
BREHE
As at Granted Exercised Lapsed As at
1 June during during during 31 May Exercise
Date of grant 2020 the year the year the year 2017 price  Exercise period
#2020 F Ro021 %
RiBH 6A1H ERERL ERERE EREXM 5R31H %8 88
8 March 2021 - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000 0.385 8 March 2021 to
7 March 2026
02153780 02153880 %
0%6%3A7H

Movements of share options granted to consultants of the M & £20214 5 H 31 H 1L F [E A K & B FE &

Group during the year ended 31 May 2021: REOBEREZS :
Number of share options
BREHE
As at Granted Lapsed As at
1 June during  Exercised during during 31 May Exercise
Date of grant 2020 the year the year the year 2021 price  Exercise period
#020% Ro021 %
RHAH 6A18 FRERH FRERE EREAN 58318 ikl TRE
8 March 2021 - 57,600,000 (38,400,000) - 19,200,000 0.385 8 March 2021 to
7 March 2026
02143A8A NA1%3A8RE
06%3A7H
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Brief summary of the remuneration policy of the Group is set
out in page 38 of this annual report. Details of the Directors’
fee and remuneration of the Directors and the emoluments
of the five highest paid individuals during the year ended
31 May 2021 are set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

PENSIONS SCHEME

The Group’s principal retirement benefits schemes available
to its Hong Kong employees are defined contribution
schemes (including the Mandatory Provident Fund) which
are administered by independent trustees. Both the
Group and the employees contribute respectively to the
schemes sums which represent a certain percentage of the
employees’ salaries. The contributions by the Group are
expensed as incurred and may be reduced by contribution
forfeited for those employees who have left the schemes
prior to full vesting of the relevant employee’s contribution.

The contributions to pension scheme of Directors for the
year are disclosed in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES”’
INTERESTS IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 May 2021, none of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company or their
associates had any interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which are required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFQO); or (b) pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) pursuant to the rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:
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Long positions in shares of the Company

Name of Directors
EEHS

Capacity/Nature of Interest

B/ HEEME

Beneficial owner
En#EA A

Mr. Wong Kui Shing Danny
FEXREE

Mr. Jiang Qiaowei Beneficial owner
i

BBFELE T m B A

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time
during the year ended 31 May 2021 was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisitions of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate, and neither the Directors nor the
chief executive (including their spouse and children under
18 years of age) had an interest in, or been granted any
rights to subscribe for the securities of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO), or
had exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 May 2021, to the
best knowledge of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company, no person (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in shares of the Company

Name

wE/EB

Capacity/Nature of Interest

B HEEME

Mr. Sze Ching Lau Beneficial owner

MBI 5 A& EmEAA
BCI Group Holdings Limited SMEBEERAT

RAEXARGHAOEFR

Number of shares

and underlying Percentage of

shares shareholding
KRokHEEROGHER REBD L
99,230,000 9.93%

400,000 0.04%

EEREREROUEERZER

BRAFRAZEEEEIN AQRKE TN
BRaREE202145A318 Ik FE T A6
MBETITMZHE BEESTBEBKE
ARl EMEMEBRNROKERSE M
B BEEREaTBRAB(BERESZ
REEABISENTRX)MEERARALE
HE LB (TERESRPERFNESRF
BEITAED TEERTROTELMIR
BESFOER -

TERRRADARGD 2

Br Tt BT #E B E SN R 2021F5831H 0 Bt
BEERARAERSITHRABHM BEAL
(BREZHARQRAEZSITRABINRKRAR T
BHkiEEROPEELHENADARIE
BEMPEKPEIBETENETLMAD

R SK A

RAEXARGHOEFR

Percentage of
shareholding
REBD L

Number of shares

B & B

371,600,000 37.20%



PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the listed securities of the
Company during the year ended 31 May 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association or the laws of Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a prorate basis to existing shareholders.

REVIEW OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of
the Company and the Auditors, the accounting principles
and policies as adopted by the Company, the practices
of the Group and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 May 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest
standard of corporate governance practices. Information
on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 29 to 51 of this annual report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 13 August 2021, each of Castle Team Limited (an
indirect 51%-owned subsidiary of the Company) (“Castle
Team”) and the other six new investors entered into a
shares subscription agreement with Crown Grand Limited
(an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
(“Crown Grand”) and Lively World Limited (the direct
holding company of Crown Grand Limited) (“Lively World”),
pursuant to which Castle Team and the new investors
agreed to subscribe for a total of 30 new shares in Crown
Grand for a total subscription price of HK$6 million in cash.
The transaction completed on 20 August 2021, and since
then Crown Grand held as to 28% by the new investors and
72% by the Group (comprising 70% by Lively World and 2%
by Castle Team).

The proceeds from the transaction can provide Crown
Grand with additional funds to enhance its working
capital for the operation of Faye. Moreover, the Group
could leverage on the experience and network of the said
subscribers to tap into the sports-themed bar and club
market in Hong Kong. It is expected that the proceeds will
be fully utilised on or before 31 May 2022.
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For details of the above transaction, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 13 August 2021.

AUDITORS

BDO Limited was appointed as the auditors of the Group
in 2017 for conducting the audit works of the Group since
then.

BDO Limited shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, will offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of BDO Limited as the auditors of the
Group will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained
the sufficient public float under the GEM Listing Rules.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON WEBSITES

This annual report is available for viewing on the website of
Stock Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of
the Company at www.bcigroup.com.hk.

By order of the Board

Wong Chi Yung
Chairman

27 August 2021
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FIVEYEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
RFRBEHE

A summary of the results and of the liabilities of the Group
for the last five year financial years, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements in this annual

report and the prospectus, is set out below:

ATRASERKOABEMBRFENEE
rEEHE- Eﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁiiﬁmﬁ’]%&%&w
EUMBHREALBRER:

RESULT Ey
Year ended 31 May
BZES5ANALFE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
20215  2020F  2019F  2018F 20174
FEL TH¥T TFTHET TFHET TFHET
Revenue Yz 24427 50,397 81,889 85343 96,164
Finance income B & WA - 249 626 505 =
Changes in inventories FEZEH (5,127) (10,206) (17,739) (17,610) (19,117)
Other income and gains H A W A B e 55 19,066 1,861 858 377 73
Expense related to short term lease NEAERERY - (777)  (26,705) (25,180) (22,975)
Advertising and marketing expenses  EERMHERRX (3,591)  (7,310) (11,246) (14,094) (11,915)
Employee benefits expenses EERAAX (11,367)  (16,939) (23,180) (27,244) (18,311)
Fair value change on financial assets at Z A FEFAEZHNE A
fair value through profit or Loss EERATEEY - (15) 62 (446) =
Equity-settled share-based payments AR EZEEURMB AER 2
ES (15,676) = = = =
Depreciation of property, plant and ME -BERZEBEITE
equipment (4,131) (3,916) (3,942) (4,672) (4,253)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE (12,790)  (17,537) = = =
Listing expenses FARX - - - - (15,532)
Other expenses Hih X (14,212)  (15,665) (20,763) (20,639) (13,064)
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREESA - - (2,209 = =
Impairment loss on property, plantand 9% - BE &
equipment FEREESE (3,988)  (2,090)  (2,379) = =
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets £ F 1 & /& il {8 /&5 18 (8,369)  (8,555) = = =
Written off of trade and other hsE 2 5 K H A fE R IE
receivables (1,951) (2,988) (1,243) - -
Written off of amount due from a related #fi 5 & Uz B8 B 2 7]
company - (172) - - -
Provision for loss allowance on trade ~ Z 5 K& E i E U 18 2
and other receivables BEEE (226) (476) (862) = =
Finance costs BE KA (1,541)  (2,485) (873) (285) =
Loss before income tax BrATE T A B 1R (39,476)  (36,624) (27,706) (23,945)  (8,930)
Income tax (expense)/credit EHES),/Ke (10) 130 169 (1,828) (847)
Loss and total comprehensive income & A& 18 K&
for the year SEW BT (39,486) (36,494) (27.537) (25773)  (9,777)
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RFRBHE

Year ended 31 May
BE5AALEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
202145 20204 20194 20184 20174
FEx TFHET TFExT FErT FET
Loss and total comprehensive income WA T A LE(E F R E B
for the year attributable to: LEEREEE:
- Owners of the Company R WNEIE =N (36,873) (35,704) (26,780) (25,135)  (9,513)
— Non-controlling interests —IF IR (2,613) (790) (757) (638) (264)
(39,486) (36,494) (27,537) (25,773)  (9,777)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
Year ended 31 May
BZ5A31ALEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
20215  2020%F  2019%F 20184 20174
FExL TFHET TFErT FErT TFET
Total assets BmEE 64,679 47126 71,585 87,407 85,384
Total liabilities BeRE (75,674) (69,583) (57,548) (45,833) (18,037)
Total (deficiency in assets)/equity BEERBH)/ #R (10,995) (22,457) 14,037 41574 67,347
BCI Group Holdings Limited SMEBEERAT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHANRE

EEE : +852 2218 8288
{&H : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BCI GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(BEMEBEARLDA)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of BCI Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 92 to 204, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 May 2021, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 May 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA'’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants”
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Hong Kong

FEETHEEPI1115E
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BIEMEAMBRAR BEZBLFEN
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ERER URGAVBBRME(BEE
ZEHREME) -

EZERBE UERAVBREBERTE G
Mrg((E8RTMARDEROET BTG
REL(EBRBREENDEUNEER
ANAaMkE HHEBEKR202145A31HBE
AU BRAREBEEZBLFENRAYTE
RERBRAReRE YEEBEBQARK
Pl EREZERE -
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SHA - REZFEGTMAERMANEEXS
AEERTAMTFAD - EEBLIR &F
CYEETTAFNEMERERRT
EEHEGE BEEMEGNEMRERETREM
HEBSEENEREHER-

2021 Annual Report %

111 Connaught Road Central

83



84

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB R

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 3(c) to the consolidated financial
statements which indicates that the Group sustained a net
loss of approximately HK$39,486,000 during the year ended
31 May 2021, and as at the end of the reporting period,
the Group’s net current liabilities and net liabilities were
HK$21,820,000 and HK$10,995,000 respectively. These
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 3(c)
to the consolidated financial statements, indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the
matter described in the “Material Uncertainty Related
to Going Concern” section, we have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

As of 31 May 2021, property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of approximately HK$9,879,000
and HK$15,360,000, respectively, were relating to a
cash-generating unit engaged in the operation of club,
entertainment and catering business in Hong Kong.

The Group recorded the loss for the year ended 31 May
2021. The current economic environment and the impact
of COVID-19 pandemic since early 2020 and hence weak
consumer sentiment in the club, entertainment and catering
sectors have created uncertainties. In the view of above,
management considered that indicators of a potential
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
existed at the reporting date and performed impairment
assessment by assessing the recoverable amounts of each
identifiable group of assets that generate independent cash
flows (“cash-generating unit” or “CGU").

BCI Group Holdings Limited SMEBEERAT
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The management performed impairment assessments of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets for
each separate identifiable cash-generating unit with the
indication of impairment using the value in use model and
compared the aggregate carrying values of the respective
cash-generating unit being assessed. Based on the
impairment assessment, impairment loss of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of approximately
HK$3,988,000 and HK$8,369,000 were recognised for the
year, respectively.

Preparing discounted cash flow forecasts requires
management to exercise significant judgement, particularly
in relation to forecasting future revenue and estimating
future costs, the growth rates and the discount rates
applied in assessing the recoverable amount of each
cash-generating unit. An independent external valuation
performed by a management’s expert was obtained in
respect of the impairment assessment on property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets in order to support
management’s estimates.

We identified assessing impairment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets as a key audit
matter because the impairment assessments prepared by
management contain certain judgmental and subjective
assumptions which may be subject to error or potential
management bias.

Refer to Note 16 and 17 in the consolidated financial
statements and accounting policy in Note 4(m).
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BEBYABNASCELENM HBYWE K
BRERBNALERESEEETRENMG:
THBEERFIERSELEUNREAE-
ERBENGB AFEERVE -BEL
BEALREREEENREBERDY HIOS
3,988,0007% 7T K 8,369,000 JT °

REMHRRSARBINEREEBETERXN
H B 8 H R A B TR ORI R R e K b AT R 2R
KA BREERFHEEERSELEMARK
BEERRANERX -BERVE BER
BEAREREEEZREFENGSER
E—R2EFXMETZIHBILNBMEE  UXHF
EEEZfEE

EEHFEDE BELXBARERAEER
EZRERLSBRESFTH RAZREHEE
REMNREIREEETHBEERZBERR
AREFEHERNEEEEERE -

I A

2HEEMBERRMFI6RI7TH &K &F
Am) T AT UK ©

2021 Annual Report %

85



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB R

How our audit addressed the key audit matter:

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets including the
following:

° assessing management’s identification of CGUs
and the allocation of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and other assets to each CGU and
assessing the methodology adopted by management
in its preparation of the discounted cash flow
forecasts with reference to our understanding of
the Group’s business and the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

o for each CGU by comparing the assumptions
adopted by management with the historical
performance of the Group, recent trends and
externally available economic data;

o evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competence, capability and objectivity;

° comparing the actual revenue and operating costs
for the current year to the assumptions adopted by
management in the discounted cash flow forecasts
for the previous year in order to assess the historical
accuracy of the management’s forecasting process;

° performing analysis of the discount rates applied
and the assumptions for revenue adopted by
management in the discounted cash flow forecasts
to assess what changes thereto, either individually
or collectively, would result in a different conclusion
being reached and assessing whether there were
any indicators of management bias in the selection of
key assumptions; and

o assessing the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the assessment
of impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards.
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Provision for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) of trade
and other receivables

The Group had trade and other receivables of
approximately HK$17,108,000 as at 31 May 2021. The
balances were significant to the Group as they represented
approximately 26.5% of the Group’s total assets on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The collectability of the trade and other receivables are key
elements of the Group’s working capital management, which
is managed on an on-going basis by the management.
The Group determines the impairment of trade and other
receivables require the application of significant judgement
and increase complexity. It includes the identification of
exposures with a substantial deterioration in credit quality,
and assumptions used in the expected credit loss models
(for exposures assessed individually or collectively), such
as expected future cash flows and forward-looking factors.

We have identified ECLs assessment of trade and other
receivables as a key audit matter because the assessing
ECLs of trade and other receivables is a subjective area as
it requires management’s judgment and uses of estimates.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter:

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s judgment
and uses of estimates on ECLs assessment of trade and
other receivables included:

o reviewing and assessing the application of the
Group’s policy for calculating the ECLs;

o evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competency, capability and objectivity;

o evaluating techniques and methodology in the ECLs
model with reference to the requirements of HKFRS 9;

o assessing the reasonableness of management’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information
used by management to form such judgements,
including testing the accuracy of the historical
default data, evaluating whether the historical loss
rates are appropriately adjusted based on current
economic conditions and forward-looking information
and examining the actual losses recorded during
the current financial year and assessing whether
there was an indication of management bias when
recognising loss allowances;
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° evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls which govern
credit control, debt collection and estimation of
ECLs; and

° discussing with management the estimates of the
recoverable amounts for those significant loans
and accounts receivables over 90 days after the
reporting period, including customers’ payment
history and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Group'’s financial reporting process. The Audit Committee of
the Company (the “Audit Committee”) assists the directors
in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

- conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHANRE

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Wing Fai
Practising Certificate Number P05443

Hong Kong, 27 August 2021
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SRR FEEE-
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHHENSIVE INCOME
mEZHEBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2021 5 £2021F5H31H L&

2021 2020
20215 2020 F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
o 7t FET FAET
Revenue W & 7 24,427 50,397
Finance income B & WA 8 - 249
Changes in inventories FEZEY 10 (5,127) (10,206)
Other income and gains = NS & 9 19,066 1,861
Expense related to short term lease RHEEEBERX - (777)
Advertising and marketing expenses EERMGHEERERX (3,591) (7,310)
Employee benefits expenses EERMNMAX 10 (11,367) (16,939)
Fair value changes on financial assets & A F E 5t A Bz Y
at fair value through profit or loss TRMEEATFEEZS - (15)
Equity-settled share-based payments NREEEUARSD A
ER AR 28 (15,676) =
Depreciation of property, plant and mME BEX
equipment RERE 16 (4,131) (3,916)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREEENE 17 (12,790) (17,537)
Other expenses H bR (14,212) (15,665)
Impairment loss on property, plantand #1 % - B E &
equipment =% &R E B A 16 (3,988) (2,090)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets  {# fA# & & 5 E & 18 17 (8,369) (8,555)
Written off of trade and other receivables i 8 & 5 &
H b jE W R IE (1,951) (2,988)
Provision for loss allowance on trade and & 5 & E ) fig Uy 3t 18
other receivables B 18 B (226) (476)
Written off of amount due from a related i $5 F& U B8 B X &) 3 18
company - (172)
Finance costs B & K AR 12 (1,541) (2,485)
Loss before income tax BRFTS BRI BB 10 (39,476) (36,624)
Income tax (expense)/credit (AL He 13 (10) 130
Loss and total comprehensive income  F R E B &
for the year 2HE R =BT (39,486) (36,494)
Loss and total comprehensive income WA~ A T EBHERNEE
for the year attributable to: Ee2El =R :
— Owners of the Company - NEIE RSN (36,873) (35,704)
- Non-controlling interests — R RE R (2,613) (790)
(39,486) (36,494)
Loss per share attributable to owners of KX A % A A FEAg
the Company I g 1E
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —HEARREECGEW) 15 (3.87) (4.46)
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CONSO;LID!-\TED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
nv_\ézﬁ\ji%;lﬁiﬂl%

AS AT 31 MAY 2021 X202165H31H

=

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M it FET FET
Non-current assets EkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W -WERZE 16 9,879 6,690
Right-of-use assets FREZE 17(a) 15,360 5,293
Deposits b 19 3,042 =
28,281 11,983
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 18 545 522
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H W IR 19 15,489 11,149
Cash and cash equivalents BeBREZEY 20 2,504 6,424
Restricted bank deposits S BR ®I IR 17 17 3K 21 17,860 17,038
Tax recoverable Al Y B # I8 - 10
36,398 35,143
Current liabilities REBAEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & HMEN IR 22 17,508 21,843
Contract liabilities aHaE 23 586 582
Amounts due to directors T ZE =R 26 456 539
Amount due to a related company FE 1 28 B ’& IE 26 134 136
Amounts due to non-controlling FE T IE 4% Hﬁ%ﬁnz%’( 8
interests 26 2,720 -
Bank borrowings RAT1E R 24 17,858 17,035
Loan from an KE—BRBRERTRE
ex-shareholder/a shareholder ZEX 25 9,261 =
Lease liabilities HEAE 17(b) 9,695 15,570
58,218 55,705
Net current liabilities REBEaEFEE (21,820) (20,562)
Total assets less current liabilities REEB A EE 6,461 (8,579)
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Other payables H b fE 3R 22 1,230 =
Loan from an wE— LR R PER
ex-shareholder/a shareholder ZE®R 25 - 13,878
Lease liabilities HEAE 17(b) 16,226 =
17,456 13,878
Net liabilities EEFHE (10,995) (22,457)
2021 Annual Report %
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7

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BB R =

AS AT 31 MAY 2021 7¥2021%5H31H

2021 2020
2021 20204
Notes HKS$’ 000 HK$'000
Kt iF FET FET
Equity =
Share capital fi& < 27 9,988 8,000
Reserves i 1 29 (13,401) (27,888)
Equity attributable to owners ARARHEAEGEER
of the Company (3,413) (19,888)
Non-controlling interests FE 2 AR A 30 (7,582) (2,569)
Total deficiency in assets BEEBH (10,995) (22,457)
On behalf of the board of directors REEES
Mr. Wong Chi Yung Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray
FEBEXE REREE
Director Director
o o

94 BCI Group Holdings Limited SMEBEERAT



CONS_OLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
= REERBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2021 520215831 H L&

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAARAARS
Non-
Share Share  Accumulated  Share option Other controlling
capital premium# losses# reserved reservet Total interests Total

k% BfRRr  2iER: BREGRG:  HeBR it RERRE it
SO0 HKSODO  HKSO00  HKSOO  HKSOO0  KKSOD  HKSOMO  HKSO0D
f&x f&x T&x f&x f&x f&x f&x f&xn

(Noie27) — (Noe29@)) — (Note29c)) — (Note29(a))  (Note 29(¢)) (Note 30)
W#z)  Wane)  (KEoe)  Waow)  (BEe) (#30)
Balance as at 1 Jung 2019 RA019E6 A1 B R &5 8,000 56,52 (48,709) - - 15,816 (1,779) 14037
Loss and total comprehensive ERBER2ENEEE
income for the year - - (35,704) - - (35,704) (790) (36.494)
Balance as at 31 May 2020 and BN0ESAIIAR
1June 2020 NNECRIAMES 8,000 56,525 (84.413) - - (19.888) (2569) (22.457)
Loss and total comprehensive ENEER2ENEAE
income for the year - - (36.873) - - (36.873) (2613) (39,486)
Issue of ordinary shares by placng ~ BEEEENEER 1,600 18734 = = = 20,334 = 2033
Partal isposal of & subsidiary PALE-BHELR - - = = 2400 2400 (2.400) .
Equiy settled share-based NRESENRHAER,
transactions (note 28) i3k s) = = 15676 = 15676 = 15,676
Issue of ordinary shares upon BREENFEITEAR
evercised of share options (noie 28)  (##28) 388 2,391 = (8.841) = 14938 = 14938
Balance as at 31 My 201 R E5AYIAHEY 998 W& (12128 685 200 B4y 05 (109

# The total of these balances represents “reserves” in the consolidated # HE#HMAEEESVBERAEZRO[HEE] -
statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERTRER =

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2021 5 £2021F5H31H L&

2021 2020
2021 2020 %
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Cash flows from operating activities RETHMBRERE
Loss before income tax BRFTISELRTE B (39,476) (36,624)
Adjustments for: B E
Bank interest income H|ITH B WA (26) (423)
Interest income on financial assets REBHEK AT ENE R
measured at amortised cost BEEMNB WA (91) =
Finance costs Bl & Bk A 1,541 2,485
Exchange loss e X &8s - 55
Fair value change on financial assets BAVTETFAERD
at fair value through profit and loss EHMEEATEE - 15
Equity-settled share-based payments LA S B AR D &
Btz R 15,676 -
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BMEREENE
equipment 4,131 3,916
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREEENE 12,790 17,537
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME--HERZERE
equipment &5 18 3,988 2,090
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEERBERAE 8,369 8,555
Written off of trade and other receivables MHE S & HE M E R FIE 1,951 2,988
Provision for loss allowance on trade and o5 hHEMEKIBEEIE
other receivables & 1E 226 476
Written off of amount due from a related il 5 FE U Bk R B GRIE
company - 172
Written off of property, plant and equipment H#iE¥ % «- = & & - 789
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME BE MEHEN
plant and equipment (M=), B 18 (200) 128
Gain relating to the lease termination FREEER I EN K= - (130)
COVID-19-related rent concession 2019 BMESHAEBEE S
BE (12,754) =
Reversal of provision of long service RHRBSHRBEERD
payment 57 =
Provision of annual leave FREE (32) (110)
Operating (loss)/profit before working EEESEFHAKLE(BR)
capital changes i Fl (3,850) 1,919
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEM,w > (23) 172
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B REMBERFKEOGEM,
receivables A (9,936) 295
Decrease in financial assets at fair value EAFETFTABERD
through profit or loss EREERD = 12,921
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other B REMBERNKECD),
payables 380 (760) 5,931
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities EHEEL M CRD) 4 (1,506)
Decrease in amounts due to directors FETE ERIER D (83) (129)
Decrease in amount due to a related company F& 1< B8 B A &) 2% 8 5 2 (10)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations & & (FfiH) FiB8HE & (14,650) 19,593
Income tax paid BB - (53)
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{CO‘NSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ml_\éiﬁrﬁ‘;)zﬁ%%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2021 520215831 H L&

o

2021 2020
2021 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Net cash (used in)/generated from REZTH(FMA), / FBES
operating activities FH (14,650) 19,540
Cash flows from investing activities RETBMBRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B E®W %  BE L& H (11,380) (622)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BEEIE
plant and equipment Fr 18 ;1A 272 20
Interest received 2k F B 26 423
Net cash used in investing activities RETBMARESFHE (11,082) (179)
Cash flows from financing activities MEITBMERERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings, secured RITERFERE(EER) 315,825 247,575
Repayments of bank borrowings, secured BRRITER(EER) (315,002) (261,631)
Proceeds from an TR, ME R E AT 18 KA
ex-shareholder/a shareholder loan 15,214 13,776
Repayments of an BENRE BWEEX
ex-shareholder/a shareholder loan (19,831) (4,898)
Repayments of principal portion of BEEHEAELRESH D
the lease liabilities (7,053) (18,020)
Interest paid EAFE (1,541) (2,485)
Increase in restricted bank deposits PR i 88 17 77 F 4 a0 (822) (7,565)
Repayments to non-controlling interest M) JE ¥ AR = B X (250) =
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BERERTERRME
by placing IR 20,334 =
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BRERTERETLTE
upon exercised of share options % BT 15 K18 14,938 =
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMEZTBHMES (FFREBES
financing activities FH 21,812 (33,248)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents B R EHSEEBYRL FE (3,920) (13,887)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUREREAEEEY
of the year 6,424 20,311
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRESRESEEY
of the year 2,504 6,424
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALﬁSTATEMENTS
e VI RR M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2021 EZ2021F5H31H L&

98

GENERAL

BCI Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands, as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies
Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands. Its shares
are listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The address of its registered
office is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands
and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is
located at Floor 14, Bupa Centre, 141 Connaught
Road West, Sai Ying Pun, Hong Kong. The Company
is an investment holding company and the Group
is principally engaged in the operation of club,
entertainment, catering business and securities
investment in Hong Kong. The Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the
“Group”.

Pursuant to the announcement of the Company
dated 17 December 2020, Aplus Concept Limited,
which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Ng
Shing Joe Kester, and Phoenix Year Limited, the then
substantial shareholders of the Company, and acting
by receivers as its attorney, entered into the sales
and purchase agreement deed on 14 December
2020 to sell 371,520,000 shares and 159,180,000
shares of the Company (representing 38.7% and
16.6% of the then entire issued share capital of the
Company), respectively, for a total consideration of
HK$42,456,000 to Mr. Sze Ching Lau (“Mr. Sze")
and Mr. Wong Kui Shing Danny (“Mr. Wong”).
Upon completion of the sale on 14 December 2020,
Mr. Sze and Mr. Wong become substantial controlling
shareholders of the Company.

BCI Group Holdings Limited SMEBEERAT
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NOTES TO..TH‘E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2021 520215831 H L&

=

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 June 2020

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants has issued a number of new or
amended HKFRSs that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the Group:

Amendment to HKFRS 3
BEEMBRELENFEIRUSFTR)
Amendment to HKFRS 1 an HKAS 8
BEEMBRELENEIRREES SR
R E 8 (BFTA)
Amendments to HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and
HKAS 39
BEEMBRELERNETR BEUBRS
ERE o kB E & 5T 2B F 395 (18 5] A°)
Amendments to HKFRS 16

BEMBHRELEANE165 (EFTAX)

The application of other amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material effect on the amounts reported in
these consolidated financial statements and/
or disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has not early applied any new or
amended HKFRSs that are not yet effective for
the current accounting period except for the
amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021.
Impact on the applications of the amended
HKFRS is summarised below.

EmEB0KEBREERN(EBH
&2 )

(a) BEHFT EEITEEMER
EER-MN2020FE6 A1 B £ X
EEQHMASEEME TR
AEBERMSHBERAERAER
MBI BHRE
ZE B -

Definition of a Business
X¥BHTE R
Definition of Material

BERANEE
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
Ml S oy 2

201978 i 75 = % -Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

202156 H30H 2 & M 20198 MK 7m F &
HEESESR

BB SIS
B2 EETHRSRANS
SEVEL PES SYET T
BAMBRERE 2 HE L&
EApE-

BB B RS ERE 165 (8
] AN) - 2021F 6 A30H 2 % 8
2019 RESHREERSER
N AN E B K IR AT E BT M
RE R EAR MR E A
AR BB BREER -
ERAEBHBHREEINEIT A
MEERRmT-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALﬁSTATEMENTS
e VI RR M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2021 EZ2021F5H31H L&

100

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

(a)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 June 2020 (continued)

Early adoption of amended standard -
Amendment to HKFRS 16 — COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021:

The Group has early adopted Amendment
to HKFRS 16 — COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions retrospectively from 1 June 2020.
The amendment provides a practical expedient
to lessees in accounting for rent concessions
arising as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic,
by including an additional practical expedient
in HKFRS 16 that permits entities to elect
not to account for rent concessions as
modifications. The practical expedient applies
only to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
only if all of the following criteria are satisfied:

(a) the change in lease payments results
in revised consideration for the lease
that is substantially the same as, or less
than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

(b)  any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2022; and

(c) there is no substantive change to
other terms and conditions of the
lease. Rent concessions that satisfy
these criteria may be accounted for
in accordance with this practical
expedient, which means the lessee
does not need to assess whether the
rent concession meets the definition of
lease modification. Lessees shall apply
other requirements of HKFRS 16 in
accounting for the rent concession.

BrEEERLR

RWAFT RETEBT KR
4 % Bl —A2020E6 A1 H £ X%
€))
EERNEIETER-F B
BHEER E165 (1557 7&) —
202146 H30H 2 # #2019
MEEFEHEELER

RAEED 52020566 A 10 217
RPEPRKBTEY B HREER
165 (& 7] &) —2019E M &
ERERESEER - ZEBT
H2019EB R mERRBE LN
HeBERABRARHER#
BARETEFREE BBE
REZBMBHREERF165
TOAREFEREETIRES
BE(EREET) &R A I
ERBESZ-BEREE DA
EEREATHERENER
T 5 A ERAR A R20198E iR
FERRBNERERRMESL
MESES:

() MENFEHEFHE
REBMENR MEEBHK
RHEREEREHNEE
REXRHER HPRE
EESEERE:

(o) & FEE AR IEE
FERIHH AE2022F6
A30B &K 2RI &

(c) T E R E &R KK
VTEEEEZS - TAK
FREENHESEEAR
FRERBELEETS
FHEIE - BHREABEAAL
PHBHEHEEBEREN
EHEEHMESR &AM
AERZTEMBHRE £
Al E165E /9 B fb 1R
LimEeEBET A
B2 3 e
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NOTES TOJTH‘E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2021 520215831 H L&

=

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”)
(continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 June 2020 (continued)

Early adoption of amended standard -
Amendment to HKFRS 16 — COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions: Extension of Practical
Expedient (continued)

Accounting for rent concessions as lease
modifications would have resulted in the Group
remeasuring the lease liability to reflect the
revised consideration using a revised discount
rate, with the effect of the change in the lease
liability recorded against the right-of-use
asset. By applying the practical expedient, the
Group is not required to determine a revised
discount rate and the effect of the change in
the lease liability is reflected in profit or loss in
the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the rent concession occurs.

The Group has elected to utilise the practical
expedient for all rent concessions that
meet the criteria. In accordance with the
transitional provisions, the Group has applied
the amendment retrospectively, and has not
restated prior period figure. Rent concessions
totaling HK$12,754,000 have been accounted
for as negative variable lease payments and
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 May 2021
(see Note 9) with a corresponding adjustment
to the lease liabilities.

As the rent concessions have arisen during
the current financial period, there is no
retrospective adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings at 1 June 2020
on initial application of the amendment.

Mﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%

RGP Fel 1RIETEBT KR
4 H - R2020E6 A1H £ X
(&)
EERANEIETER -F B
BHREEBEI65 (KT &) —
2019 R B ERHEHZEZE
(4%&)
HEHeEREATBEETET
EHEE BeERAEEHK
AEETMBAEREHEHEAGEE
TEHFTE URBEEITR
B ITHHEEABEEHINTE
ARV AFERABEEE - BBE
BEBREER L NEBEHA
ETEETREER mHAE:R
EEHMF LRI BHESE
BEREENMKRAEEPENIE
=R

AEECEBEHMARARE
NESCERRAEBREIT -
BREBEGRN AEBE B Y
FERZBEET BN AREYBE
HEEE -4 £12,754,000% 7T
WELEERCDARIIEG ATE
MENK LREZE202155H
STARMaADILEFENGZEEE
TRER THBEEAEEED
HEAE-

HREEEETRE A B
MEL WRNIKEBZER
e A ¥ R 2020F6 H1H IR B
BN GEHRIELBEYAER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALﬁSTATEMENTS
e VI RR M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2021 EZ2021F5H31H L&

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”)
(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group. The Group’s current intention is to
apply these changes on the date they become
effective.

Amendments to HKAS 1

BEAGHERE1RUBITE)
Amendments to HKAS 8
BB ERNESR(EETA)
Amendments to HKAS 12

BB G EBFE 125 (B A)
Amendments to HKAS 16

BB ERE165 (BFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 37

BB EREI7H(UEFTA)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

ERMBHRESERE10% REE S5 EL
5285k (& 5T &)

Amendments to HKFRS 3

EREMBRESERNEIHR(EFTAR)

HKFRS 17

EEMBHREERNE7HR

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

BRI EREIR EEVBERS
HREAR BEEMBRELEMNE7HR
ERVBRELEANZIORREEGH
WEERE 16K (BFTA)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020 Cycle

H2018F E2020F BM e ERBU B HRE
% Rl ) F U8
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(b) ECHEMEMREMNHFIT K
CHE LR R &Y
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”)
(continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022

8 Effective for business combinations for which the
date of acquisition is on or after the beginning
of the first annual period beginning on or after
1 January 2022

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023

5 The amendments shall be applied prospectively
to the sale or contribution of assets occurring in
annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost basis.

(b)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(c)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Going concern assumption

The Group continues to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing its consolidated
financial statements. During the year, the
Group sustained a net loss of approximately
HK$39,486,000 (2020: HK$36,494,000) and
at the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
net current liabilities and the net liabilities
were HK$21,820,000 (2020: HK$20,562,000)
and HK$10,995,000 (2020: HK$22,457,000)
respectively. In addition, the operation of the
Group’s club, entertainment and catering
business have been hit by the outbreak
of Coronavirus (“COVID-19"), a series of
precautionary and social distancing measures
have been implemented by the Hong Kong
Government since 2020. The Group had been
especially impacted by the mandatory closure
orders, including night clubs, gyms, sports
grounds and bars during the reporting period.
The limitations are currently in place for the
group gatherings, dining in at the restaurants
though relaxation of the social-distancing
rule and “vaccine bubble” requirements were
released by the Hong Kong Government.
During the year, the Group closed one
restaurant and one club. This situation created
uncertainties in relation to the financial
performance of the Group.

These events or conditions indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, and therefore
it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(c)

Going concern assumption (continued)

In view of these circumstances, the
Directors of the Company have given careful
consideration of the liquidity and future cash
flows of the Group in assessing whether the
Group will have the ability to continue as a
going concern. For this purpose, management
has prepared a cash flow forecast, which
covers a period of 18 months from the year
end date of 31 May 2021 (the “Forecast
Period”), that takes account of the following:

(i)

(if)

As of 31 May 2021, the Group had
an undrawn loan facility granted by
an ex-shareholder for an amount
of HK$15,739,000 from a total
of HK$25,000,000, out of which
HK$9,261,000 was already drawn down
(Note 25). In respect of the drawn down
amount, an ex-shareholder further
undertook that he will not request the
Group to repay the outstanding amount
of HK$9,261,000 until 30 November
2022;

In August 2021, the Group entered into
a loan facility agreement with a licensed
money lender in Hong Kong for an
amount of HK$25 million for 18 months
(the “Loan Facility”) and pursuant to
the terms of the Loan Facility, funds are
exclusively for the Company and made
available upon its request;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

()

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Going concern assumption (continued)

(i)  The Directors will strengthen to
implement measures aiming at
improving the working capital and cash
flows of the Group, including closely
monitor the general administrative
expenses and operating costs; and

(iv)  The different possible outcomes of the
COVID-19 pandemic and its impact to
the cash flow forecast.

Based on the above, the Directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group will
have sufficient headroom in its working capital
to finance its operations and to meet its
financial obligations over the Forecast Period.
Accordingly, the Directors considered that
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue as
a going concern, adjustments would have to
be made to reduce the values of the assets
to their net realisable amounts, to provide for
any further liabilities which might arise and to
classify non-current assets and liabilities as
current assets and liabilities respectively. The
effects of these potential adjustments have not
been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(d)

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"),
which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company and its subsidiaries, and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousands,
except when otherwise indicated.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
comprise the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”).
Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition
or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of
the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

The Group accounts for business combinations
using the acquisition method when the acquired
set of activities and assets meet the definition
of a business and control is transferred to the
Group. In determining whether a particular
set of activities and assets is a business, the
Group assesses whether the set of assets and
activities acquired includes, at a minimum, an
input and substantive processes and whether
the acquired set has the ability to produce
outputs.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group'’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
if any, is re-measured at acquisition-date fair
value and the resulting gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
to measure the non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.
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(continued)

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the acquirer is recognised
at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent
adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they
arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All
other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the gain or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest
and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to
the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying
amount of non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the
subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interests’ share of subsequent changes
in equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to owners of the
Company. Profit or loss and each component
of other comprehensive income is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling
interests even if this results in those
non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control of the subsidiary are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amount of
the Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The
Company controls an investee if all three of
the following elements are present: (i) power
over the investee, (ii) exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the investee, and (iii) the
ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts
and circumstances indicate that there may be
a change in any of these elements of control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the
Company has the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee without
holding the majority of the voting rights. In
determining whether de-facto control exists
the Company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances, including:

- The size of the Company’s voting rights

relative to both the size and dispersion
of other parties who hold voting rights;

- Substantive potential voting rights held
by the Company and other parties who
hold voting rights;

- Other contractual arrangements; and

- Historic patterns in voting attendance.
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(continued)

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries (continued)

In the Company’'s statement of financial
position, investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less impairment loss, if any. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost
of property, plant and equipment includes
its purchase price and the costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
so as to write off their cost net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

20% and the lease
term, whichever is
the shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

Leasehold
improvements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is
higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable
amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable
and are recognised as other revenue, rather
than reducing the related expense.

Leasing
Accounting as a lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating
leases or finance leases) are required to
be capitalised in the statement of financial
position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, but accounting policy choices
exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise
(i) leases which are short-term leases and/
or (ii) leases for which the underlying asset
is of low-value. The Group has elected not
to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for low-value assets and leases for
which at the commencement date have a
lease term of less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have
been expensed on straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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(continued)

(e)

Leasing (continued)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories. The
Group measures the right-to-use assets at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability. The Group
accounts for leased building which is held for
own use under HKFRS 16 and are amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate
can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Leasing (continued)
Lease liability (continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use
the underlying asset during the lease term
that are not paid at the commencement
date of the lease are considered to be lease
payments: (i) fixed lease payments less any
lease incentives receivable: (ii) variable
lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at commencement date; (iii) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise
price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option;
and (v) payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date,
the Group measures the lease liability by:
(i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications, or to reflect revised
in-substance fixed lease payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the
term of any lease (because, for example,
it re-assesses the probability of a lessee
extension or termination option being
exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount
of the lease liability to reflect the payments
to make over the revised term, which are
discounted using a revised discount rate. The
carrying value of lease liabilities is similarly
revised when the variable element of future
lease payments dependent on a rate or index
is revised, except the discount rate remains
unchanged. In both cases, an equivalent
adjustment is made to the carrying value
of the right-of-use asset, with the revised
carrying amount being amortised over the
remaining (revised) lease term. If the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset is adjusted
to zero, any further reduction is recognised in
profit or loss.
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(continued)

(e)

Leasing (continued)
Lease liability (continued)

When the Group renegotiates the
contractual terms of a lease with the lessor,
if the renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an amount
commensurate with the standalone price
for the additional rights-of-use obtained,
the modification is accounted for as a
separate lease, in all other cases, where the
renegotiated increases the scope of the lease
(whether that is an extension to the lease
term, or one or more additional assets being
leased), the lease liability is remeasured
using the discount rate applicable on the
modification date, with the right-of-use asset
being adjusted by the same amount. With the
exception to which the practical expedient for
COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions applies
(see note 2 (a)), if the renegotiation results
in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both
the carrying amount of the lease liability
and right-of-use asset are reduced by the
same proportion to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease with any difference
recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability
is then further adjusted to ensure its carrying
amount reflects the amount of the renegotiated
payments over the renegotiated term, with the
modified lease payments discounted at the
rate applicable on the modification date and
the right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same
amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Financial Instruments

()

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant
financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. A trade receivable without
a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales
of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established
by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their
entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.
(continued)

(f) Financial Instruments (continued)

()

(i)

Financial assets (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised
cost. Financial assets at amortised
cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method.
Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group measured loss allowances
for expected credit loss (“ECLs”")
on trade and other receivables and
financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The ECLs are measured on either
of the following bases: (1) 12 months
ECLs: these are the ECLs that result
from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date: and
(2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that
result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Financial Instruments (continued)

(ii)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Impairment loss on financial assets
(continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive.
The shortfall is then discounted at an
approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

The Group measured loss allowances
for trade receivables using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other debt financial assets,
ECLs are based on lifetime ECLs
excepts when there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the
allowance will be based on the 12
months ECLs.

When determining whether the credit
risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information analysis, based
on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.
(continued)

(f) Financial Instruments (continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(continued)

The Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is more than 30 days
past due.

The Group considers a financial asset
to be in default when: (1) the debtor is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by
the Group to action such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the
financial asset is more than 90 days
past due.

Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the credit
risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information analysis, based
on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. TE&S:BE(E)
(continued)
(f)  Financial Instruments (continued) f SWMIAEE)
(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (i) =2HEEZREEAE)
(continued)
Significant increase in credit risk 15 B B b 7 Z 12 0 ()
(continued)

KRR EFGEEERR
ETAELAE AEH
eEBUTER

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

120

BCI Group Holdings Limited

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in
external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the
credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

existing or forecast adverse
changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.
(continued)

(f) Financial Instruments (continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(continued)

Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the
above assessment, the Group presumes
that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates
otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past
due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management,
the Group considers an event of default
occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full. Irrespective of the
above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than one year past due
unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate. For the year ended
31 May 2021, all trade receivables are
more than 180 days past due to be
considered an event of default and fully
credit-impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Financial Instruments (continued)

(ii)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Impairment loss on financial assets
(continued)

Definition of default (continued)

A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events of default
that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the
following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower,
for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation.

The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance
account.

BrEEERLR

4.

e

FESHBEXE)
H ==WMIAE
(i) =2HEEZREEAE)

E R E #E(B)

ERLUIREENG
AARAXREREELETD
MEEN-—EXZEE
MENGZE ZTREE
BHBREERE -©RE
EFERENERER
VAR 5 4 B9 F] B 2R BUR -

(a) FEITARBRAR
A B E B IR

(by EBREH HlwmE
M=t

(c) MEBHRAMERAHL
5 A B 55
HEBONKEERE
#IREA - WA E R
ABRTERARK
TEEENER:
%

(d) ERARTBEKRESNL
AT @%ﬁé@

rEBBRBHAEBETRE
EMKREENEZR P ®E
REAETHR I ANRE

WaHskEE EEH RE
fit & W SR IBBR SN - UL 1B

AT FHRBEEABES
BEERRER -



§

NOTES TO..TH‘E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2021 520215831 H L&

=

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.
(continued)

(f) Financial Instruments (continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has
been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over 180 days
past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired
financial assets is calculated based
on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance)
of the financial asset. For non
credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Financial Instruments (continued)

(iii)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial
liabilities, depending on the purpose
for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are initially measured at
fair value and financial liabilities at
amortised costs are initially measured
at fair value, net of directly attributable
costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss include financial liabilities
held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses
on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or
more embedded derivatives, the entire
hybrid contract may be designated
as a financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss, except where
the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows
or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivative is prohibited.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.
(continued)

(f) Financial Instruments (continued)

(iii)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (continued)

Financial liabilities may be designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss if the following
criteria are met: (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the
liabilities or recognising gains or
losses on them on a different basis;
(ii) the liabilities are part of a group of
financial liabilities which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management strategy;
or (iii) the financial liability contains an
embedded derivative that would need
to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise, except for the gains and
losses arising from the Group’s own
credit risk which are presented in
other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the
statement of profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Financial Instruments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
including trade and other payables,
bank borrowings, amount due to a
director, loan from a shareholder and
lease liability issued by the Group are
subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate,
a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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=

(continued)

()

(9)

Financial Instruments (continued)

(vi)  Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial
asset when the contractual rights to
the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred
and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised
when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost,
and subsequently at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost comprises all costs
of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services
is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added taxes or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and
the laws that apply to the contract, control
of the goods or service may be transferred
over time or at a point in time. Control of the
goods or service is transferred over time if the
Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that

the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers
over time, revenue is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of
that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the goods or
service.
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(continued)

(h)

Revenue recognition (continued)

When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the customer a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception.

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.
For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a) Sales of food and beverages

Revenue from sales of food and
beverages is recognised at a point
in time when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the
products. There is generally only one
performance obligation. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately
when the food and beverages are
transferred to the customers.

The prepayment from the customers
in respect of the membership scheme
operated by the Group, which are
considered to be unearned at the
reporting date are shown as contract
liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position. Contract liabilities
are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position until the
credit balances are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Revenue recognition (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Revenue from services

Revenue from services (including tips,
event rental services income, entrance
fees and cloakroom fees) is recognised
over time as the customer.

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income is recognised at
point in time when the promotion events
have been held; the services have been
rendered, and it is probable that the
sponsorship income will be granted and
the amount can be measured reliably.

Entertainment income

Entertainment income is recognised
over-time when services transferred
to the customers. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately
when services are provided to
customers.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a
time-proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the
Group’s obligation to transfer services
to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the
customer.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FTESTHREE)
(continued)

(h)  Revenue recognition (continued) (hy WEwIAE)
(e) Interest income (continued) (e) FEYAE)

Contract costs & R AR

The Group recognises an asset from the AEEBEZEREAFTAE

costs incurred to fulfil a contract when THFRBIHEER  FRE

those costs meet all of the following TEHWREAHKAF

criteria: MR -EHEE:

(a) the costs relate directly to a (a) BREEHSRL
contract or to an anticipated & 42 ] DA PR RE A R
contract that the entity can MIEEE R A -

specifically identify;

(b)  the costs generate or enhance (b) PR 4 o3
resources of the entity that FA R R (sk # &
will be used in satisfying BIT)RKREBHE
(or in continuing to satisfy) BHEBER: K&
performance obligations in the
future; and

(c) the costs are expected to be (c) TEE KA T
recovered. [ o

The asset recognised is subsequently EEREEHKERSA

amortised to profit or loss on a KEAEBEBZEFPN

systematic basis that is consistent EmokREAE—BHE
with the transfer to the customer of EEE B ZEER
the goods or services to which the BZETRENH -

cost relate. The asset is subject to
impairment review.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax
and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowable for income tax
purposes and is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period. The amount of
current tax payable or receivable is the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be
paid or received that reflects any uncertainty
related to income tax.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of
temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding
amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes and
initial recognition of assets and liabilities
that are not part of the business combination
which affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, deferred tax liabilities are recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised, provided that
the deductible temporary differences are
not arises from initial recognition of assets
and liabilities in a transaction other than in
a business combination that affects neither
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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(continued)

(M

Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which
the carrying amount of the asset or liability
is realised or settled and that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period, and reflects any uncertainty
related to income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income tax
levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss
except when they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income in which
case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or when they relate to
items recognised directly in equity in which
case the taxes are also recognised directly in
equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()]

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by Group’s entities
in currencies other than the currency of the
primary economic environment in which it/
they operate(s) (the “functional currency”)
are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items, and on the
translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect
of which gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income, in which case,
the exchange differences are also recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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(continued)

()]

Foreign currencies (continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items
of foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case,
the rates approximating to those ruling when
the transactions took place are used. All
assets and liabilities of foreign operations
are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity as foreign exchange reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
Exchange differences recognised in profit
or loss of group entities’ separate financial
statements on the translation of long-term
monetary items forming part of the Group’s net
investment in the foreign operation concerned
are reclassified to other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as foreign
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative exchange differences recognised
in the foreign exchange reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit
or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation on or
after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the
foreign exchange reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k)

U

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid
annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred, and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(ii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised
on the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving
the payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to
employees and others providing similar
services, the fair value of the services
received is measured by reference to the
fair value of the options at the date of grant.
Such fair value is recognised in profit or loss
with a corresponding increase in the share
option reserve within equity. The fair value
is determined by an external valuer using a
binomial model, further details of which are
given in note 28 to the financial statements.

Where the terms and conditions of options
are modified before they vest, the increase
in the fair value of the options, measured
immediately before and after the modification,
is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.
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(continued)

(m)

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following
assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

o property, plant and equipment;
° right-of-use assets; and
o investment in subsidiaries

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of
the fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under the
HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another HKFRS, in which case the reversal
of impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase under that HKFRS.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m)

(n)

(0)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets) (continued)

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from the
asset or cash generating unit, discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the
acquisition, construction or production of any
qualifying asset which require a substantial
period of time to be ready for their intended
use or sales, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets.

Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on those assets is deducted from borrowing
cost capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, which it is probable
will result in an outflow of economic benefits
that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.
(continued)

(p) Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over
the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii)  is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are
members of the same group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iiiy ~ Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p) Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if
any of the following conditions apply:
(continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified
in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a) (i)
has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the group
or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that
person’s spouse or domestic partner.
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o

(continued)

(a)

0]

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at
bank and in hand, and short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decision
about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The
business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors
are determined following the Group’s major
product and service lines.

The measurement policies the Group use
for reporting segment results under HKFRS
8 are the same as those used in its financial
statements prepared under HKFRSs, except
interest income, unallocated finance costs,
and unallocated corporate expenses, which
are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment, are not
included in arriving at the operating results of
the operating segment.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
the directors are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Given COVID-19 pandemic has created
and may continue to create significant uncertainty.
Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

(a) Critical judgements in applying accounting
policy
(i) Lease term and discount rate
determination

In determining the lease term,
management considers all relevant
facts and circumstances that create
an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a
termination option. Extension options
(or periods after termination options)
are only included in the lease term if
the lease is reasonably certain to be
extended (or not terminated). Potential
future cash outflows have not been
included in the lease liability because it
is not reasonably certain that the leases
will be extended (or not terminated).
The assessment is reviewed if a
significant event or a significant change
in circumstances occurs which affects
this assessment and that is within the
control of the lessee.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5 EASHHERGEFFIBRERSR

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION WEERRE)

UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(b) The key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) HATHEERENETERER
In addition to the information disclosed BRira M BHRERANEMI DA
elsewhere in these consolidated financial BEAH HMORSHREHAR
statements, other key sources of uncertainty EERER AJTEEWEAEYHT
at the end of each reporting period, that B BREEEERABGECEE
have a significant risk of causing a material BEEEAFAEHNTIEERAZR
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets MEZRBR - FREROAT

and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below:

(i)  Critical judgement going concern () EBHEFEELEEENERX
basis EN-
As disclosed in note 3(c), the WK FESC)FIEE 456
consolidated financial statements have MR DEBEFELE
been prepared on a going concern AEGR -EERBHER
basis. The appropriateness of the SERKEFTE MR
going concern basis is assessed RER(BEAEEEREZR
after taking into account all relevant 2022411 A30H H & &
available information about the future RemEadElrg BE
of the Group, including the cash flow KEEWM 2 EEME®
forecast of the Group covering a period e RN E B ERKM
up to 30 November 2022. Such forecast BoZERFEARKREA
about the future, at a particular point ARG KRR
of time, about the future outcome of ERAFPRERRR
events and conditions, which inherently MTAHEEE REEARRQ
involves various assumptions and AlcBEERBAK ZEF
uncertainties. In the preparation of the R EEFEBLF K
cash flow forecast of the Company, BAFLIHERBEH
the Director assumed that the loan EHEREELRE BB &
facility agreement with an independent TRITHEBRER &
licensed money lender in Hong Kong BERATETEE K E
would be granted until the Group is able B RBELKEBRIANREAE
to meet its obligations. Actual results ERFE

could differ significantly, and hence it
may cast significant doubt in relation to
the going concern assumption.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5 EASHEEGAGITRERSE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION M EERIRGE)
UNCERTAINTY (continued)
(b) The key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) RFAFTHRERENETERRGE)
(continued)
(i)  Impairment loss for trade and other (i) BB REMMEWKEH
receivables =¥ %
The Group estimates impairment losses & E R B M A AT
of trade and other receivables resulting HedREHARERPR
from the inability of the customers EMmEBARERRE
and other debtors to make the NRMEANE S RE
required payments in accordance with fhJE Y SR IE R (B B 4R o R
accounting policy stated in Note 4(f)(ii). S BRI EWNRIELE®
The Group bases the estimates on the MR EHEANEER
ageing of the receivable balances, BAMELCRIEL A #
debtors’ creditworthiness and historical hEteMEP REBKAD
write-off experience. If the financial BRSO B = B
condition of the customers and debtors = Pl EF e
were to deteriorate, actual write-offs
would be higher than estimated.
(iii) Impairment loss for non-financial (i) HEHEEHMEFAE

144

BCI Group Holdings Limited

assets

The Group assesses at the end of the
reporting period whether non-financial
assets suffered any impairment in
accordance with accounting policy
stated in Note 4(m). The non-financial
assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds its
recoverable amount. The determination
of recoverable amount requires an
estimation of future cash flows and the
selection of appropriate discount rates.
Changes in these estimates could have
a significant impact on the carrying
value of the assets and could result
in additional impairment charge or
reversal of impairment in future periods,
where applicable.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(b) The key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(iii)

Impairment loss for non-financial
assets (continued)

Determining whether an item of
property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets is impaired requires
an estimate of the recoverable amount
of the relevant cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs, which is the
higher of the value in use or fair value
less costs of disposal. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit
and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less
than expected or change in facts and
circumstances which results in the
downward revision of future cash flows,
a material impairment loss may arise.
Details of the recoverable amount
calculation for the cash-generating
units in respect of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are
set out in note 16 and 17, respectively.

The impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets during the year ended
31 May 2021 was HK$3,988,000 (2020:
HK$2,090,000) and HK$8,369,000
(2020:HK$8,555,000) respectively. As
at 31 May 2021, the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets was HK$9,879,000
(2020: HK$6,690,000) and
HK$15,360,000 (2020: HK$5,293,000)
respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(b) The key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(iv)  Provision for reinstatement costs

Provision for reinstatement cost is
estimated at the inception of leasing
property with reinstatement clause
and reassessed at the end of each
reporting period with reference to
the latest available quotation from
independent contractors. Estimation
based on current market information
may vary over time and could differ
from the actual reinstatement cost
upon closures or relocation of existing
premises occupied by the Group. As
at 31 May 2021, the carrying amounts
of provision for reinstatement cost are
approximately HK$1,230,000 (2020:
HK$1,630,000).

(v)  Equity-settled share based payments

The Group determine the costs of
the share-based payments on the
basis of the fair value of the equity
instruments at grant date. Determining
the fair value assumes choosing the
most suitable valuation model for
these equity instruments, for which
the characteristics of the grant have a
decisive influence. This assumes also
the input into the valuation model of
some judgements, like the volatility. The
judgements made and the model used
are further specified in note 28.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker is defined as
executive directors of the Company. The Group
has identified its operating segment based on
the regular internal financial information reported
to the Company’s executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation and review of
performance.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. IWERGE)
The Group has two reportable segments. The AEBREREITE2HKS B - AR F
segments are managed separately as each business EBPEENER KRB ARMFASH
offers different products and services and requires E¥BEBT— BREIHFNOHEE
different business strategies. The Group has B AREBEEHRNMERZ2mD I

identified two reportable segments:

. The operation of club, entertainment and . MBS IR BERER
catering business

o Securities investment D BEKE
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with KREHEREPIVUZENREMEKIFER
customers and other sources is as follows: WazmoHFmT
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FEIT
Revenue from contracts with EEBUBREER
customer within the scope of FEIGHWEET -
HKFRS 15: REEFEHAMNKE:
Operation of club, entertainment and #F & & F « R4 I
catering business BRET 24,427 50,397
Revenue from other sources: REEMFEEHRA
Securities investment BHEEE - 249
Timing of revenue recognised under HKFRS 15: BEEEMBRELENEISHEER
U 25 B A
Operation Operation
of club, of club,
entertainment entertainment
and catering and catering
business business
2021 2020
bR # g e T
IR R IR 2L K
EREK BERER
2021 F 2020 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
At a point in time PE — R B 19,324 44,317
Over time 5 B 5,103 6,080
24,427 50,397
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 2TWERE)
(a) Segment loss, profit or loss, assets and (a) HHEE B BEERESE
liabilities
Operation
of club,
entertainment
and catering Securities
business investment Total
mgef.
BRER
ENER BERE by
HK$’ 000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
TET TAx TEZ
For the year ended 31 May 2021 BZ201 558 ALEE
Revenue from external customers NEEP WS 24,427 - 24,427
Reportable segment loss NEEHHESR (14,175) (591) (14,766)
Other income and gains =N € 18,891 16 18,907
Advertising and marketing expenses BERTHERRX (3,409) - (3,409)
Employee benefits expenses EERMAY (10,365) - (10,365)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% - BRE k&R EiF & (4,081) - (4,081)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE (12,790) - (12,790)
Other expenses A% (9,682) (23) (9,705)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment #1% - BE R X EHEESSE (3,619) - (3,619)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEERERRE (8,369) - (8,369)
Written off of trade and other receivables MIBE S RHEMERTIE (1,866) - (1,866)
Reversal of loss allowance on trade and ESREnERFEER
other receivables BEED 2,740 - 2,740
Finance costs BEKA (925) (584) (1,509)
Additions of non-current assets REERDEE (38,726) - (38,726)
As at 31 May 2021 R202155R831 0
Reportable segment assets NERAPEE 32,179 17,932 50,111
Reportable segment liabilities NERHHBE (48,207) (24,515) (72,722)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. IBERE)
(a) Segment loss, profit or loss, assets and ) HHBEE B BEERAESE
liabilities (continued) (&)
Operation
of club,
entertainment
and catering Securities
business investment Total
meefm.
RER
EHEH FHERE &t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FE7 FEL FAT
For the year ended 31 May 2020 BZ202055A3ALEE
Revenue from external customers M E P 50,397 249 50,646
Reportable segment loss NEEHHESR (32,177) (764) (32,941)
Other income and gains LY ONIT ¢ 1,439 226 1,665
Expenses related to short-term lease BHAERBET (777) = (777)
Advertising and marketing expenses BERMBHERY (7,310) = (7.310)
Employee benefits expenses EERMAY (16,939) = (16,939)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% - BRE KR Ei & (3,916) = (3,916)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE (17,537 = (17,537
Fair value change on financial assets at BATEFABRN R
fair value through profit or loss EEATEE = (15) (15)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment #1% - BE L X EHEESSE (2,090) = (2,090)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEEREEE (8,555) = (8,555)
Written off of trade and other receivables WEE S RHEMERTIE (2,988) = (2,988)
Written off of amount due from a related company i $5 7 Wt B B 2 1 5008 (172) = (172)
Loss allowance on trade and other receivables ~ Z 5k E R AE B
B 684 2 686
Other expenses kT (13,107) (299) (13,406)
Finance costs BERK 1,100) (927) (2,027)
Additions of non-current assets REERDEE (1,089) - (1,089)
As at 31 May 2020 ®202055R8 31 A
Reportable segment assets NEEHHEE 25,149 18,721 43,870
Reportable segment liabilities NERABEE (36,229) (31,255) (67,484)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 2WERE)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment loss, (b) AEHSHEE BEZ BER
profit or loss, assets and liabilities EEYHER
2021 2020
20215 20204
HKS$’ 000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Loss before income tax MRATBBATEE
Reportable segment loss AE2MmoEBEIE (14,766) (32,941)
Other income and gains H A R W= 159 196
Advertising and marketing BEERMGH#HERX
expenses (182) -
Employee benefits expenses BB ®F A (1,002) =
Equity-settled share-based AR & E AR D A
payments A2 (15,676) =
Depreciation of property, mME--HE X
plant and equipment BB E (50) =
Impairment loss on property, WE--BE KR
plant and equipment BEC RIS (369) =
Written off of other receivables  #fl 8 £ b & U 3k 18 (85) =
Loss allowance on other Hth fE IR IB B 18
receivables B # (2,966) (1,162)
Other expenses H X (4,507) (2,259)
Finance costs B & B A (32) (458)
(39,476) (36,624)
Additions of non-current assets B IET B E E (2,431) =
2021 2020
2021 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets AERSBEE 50,111 43,870
Unallocated corporate assets KD Bl (b ¥ & &E 14,568 3,256
Consolidated total assets REBEE 64,679 47,126
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEBGE)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment (b) AEH/HEERE BEZ BER
loss, profit or loss, assets and liabilities EEHERE)
(continued)
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Liabilities & &
Reportable segment liabilities A 2 5 38 & & (72,722) (67,484)
Unallocated corporate liabilities & 2 Bt (& ¥ & (& (2,952) (2,099)
Consolidated total liabilities maeBE (75,674) (69,583)

Management determines the Group is
domiciled in Hong Kong, which is the location
where the Group principally operates. All
revenue of the Group for the reporting period
was derived in Hong Kong. All its non-current
assets are located in Hong Kong.

In addition, the customers of the Group,
based on the locations at which the services
were provided, are all located in Hong Kong.
No revenue from transactions with a single
customer amounts to 10% or more of the
Group’s revenue.

EEEREASENMEL D
FEE NMAAEENETELE
WwE- AEBERBREHHENMR
BRmBKREERE MEMA
ERBEEHUNEE -

SO RIBEREAEE D
AEBOMBEEFPHUNERE -
BEEE -ZTPETRSINK
mEAEBREMNI0%H A L o
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7. REVENUE 7. Y &=
Revenue represents the amount received or W EHEE R o &Ko B Uk sk g K
receivable from the sales of food and beverages, H-AZE BBPWA REWARHE
entrance fees, sponsorship income, entertainment o
income and others.
Revenue from the Group’s principal activities during REBRBEHANETIEZER =N
the reporting period is as follows: N
2021 2020
2021 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue from: LATNIE B A Es
Clubs and entertainment operation GRT MR G & E
Sales of food and beverage EmAk#AREE 14,755 36,311
Entrance fees R 34 905
Entertainment income e N 4,381 4,520
Sponsorship income Z A - 1,084
Others H 1,042 1,330
20,212 44,150
Restaurants operation BELE
Sales of food and beverage EmAk#AREE 4,214 6,221
Others H A 1 26
4,215 6,247
Total revenue PNl 24,427 50,397
The following table provides information about trade TRIEHEEWEFIRERRFRELREFRES
receivables and contract liabilities from contracts NEEBEHNER -
with customers.
2021 2020
2021 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&ET
Trade receivables (Note 19) Z 5 & WK IE (M 7 19) 782 1,921
Contract liabilities (Note 23) A#H B &M E23) 586 582
Approximately HK$582,000 of the contract liabilities HZE2020F6 81H1E © 4582,0008 T4
as of 1 June 2020 has been recognised as revenue HEFEEWERAH EZ2021F5A311EF
for the year ended 31 May 2021. B -
152 BCI Group Holdings Limited SMEBEERAT
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8. FINANCE INCOME 8. ®WEWA
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FETT
Interest received from financial asset B W% A F &zt A
at fair value through profit or loss BEamemEENER - 249
9. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 9. Hibr A KW=
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FETT
Bank interest income RITHF B WA 26 423
Interest income on financial assets LB R ED
measured at amortised cost TREEFB WA 91 =
Government grants (Note a) BT 7 B (B sk a) 5,334 640
COVID-19-related rent concession 2019 B MR im =S /m MH 8
(Note b) He BB ED) 12,754 =
Charity subsidy 2 E A Ah - 240
Others H 1ty 861 558
19,066 1,861
Notes: B 5E -
(a) The government grants represents anti-epidemic fund, (a) BB EEBRMAE2019E kK 5 R
catering business (social distancing) subsidy scheme and EBETETOREES BHREMGER
employment support scheme granted by the Hong Kong EE A ERRMETE -

Government under COVID-19 pandemic.

(b) AEECRARABEEMBREELF

(b) The Group has early adopted amendment to HKFRS16 and BB AW RBATRESE T
applied the practical expedient not to assess whether a FEE019E R ESHEBmMERE S
rent concession occurring as a direct consequence of the MNZEHEBERTERBREEBNK -

COVID-19 pandemic is a lease modification.
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10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. KRFABBAEE
Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/ BRETSHATBRIIENER(Ee) A
(crediting): THEE®B/H:
2021 2020
2021 £ 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
o i FHETT FAET
Changes in inventories recognised MR ABRIXNHFSE 2
as expense b))
— Clubs and entertainment operation —& fff & 1R 44 & & 3,896 8,512
- Restaurants operation —BEEE 1,231 1,694
5,127 10,206
Auditors’ remuneration % AT B &
— for the year —RFE 609 479
— under provision in prior year - BAFEREIR 100 -
Gain relating to the lease termination T2 & #& I Wz 17 - (130)
COVID-19-related rent concession 2019 @R E SR HE A
B= 9 (12,754) =
Written off of property, plant and MEME BEREKE
equipment 16 - 789
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWHE BERKEZ
plant and equipment (=) B8 (200) 128
Professional fee EXEH 3,505 1,608
Staff costs (including directors’ BEINA(BRES
remuneration (Note 11)) HEN (BT EE11))
- Wages, salaries and other benefits —T & - # & &
H b 78 7 10,996 16,299
— Contribution to defined contribution — 52 & it 7% 3R 1K
retirement plans &1 8l 3 371 640
11,367 16,939
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 11. EEFHMRIAEEESHFMA L
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) EEEH
ARREZFHMEIN BT :

The remunerations of the directors of the

Company are set out below:

Contribution
to defined
Salariesand  contribution
other retirement
Fees benefits plans Total
REHRR
HeR IS |
e Bt % ag
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$’ 000
TEx TEx FEx TEx
Year ended 31 May 2021 BENNESANALEE
Executive directors #EZ
Mr. Wong Kui Shing Danny (note 1 T4 5 (M 3D - 208 6 214
Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray RERLE 21 182 9 42
Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester (note il REHE KA - 37 2 39
Ms. Lau Sze Yuen (note i) B8 it £ (W i) 82 21 11 314
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Wong Chi Yung (note i TEEEEM i) - 324 5 329
Mr. Kan Sze Man (note iv) BERAE (W) 54 - - 54
Indiependent non-executive directors BUFHGEE
Mr. Pong Chun Yu (note v) BRFAE(MY) 61 - - 61
Mr. Hui Wai Hung (note vi) S8 1 5 A (B i) 52 - - 52
M. Jiang Qiaowei (note vi) BBEL L) 52 - - 52
Mr. Wong Sui Chi (note vi) B 0 (W 3 vil) 54 - - 54
Mr. Li Lap Sun (note vi) 23 31 5% 4 (W 3 vil) 54 - - 54
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy (note vi) T B 2 % 4 (33 vil) 54 - - 54
684 972 3 1,689

2021 Annual Report %
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2021 EZ2021F5H31H L&

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 11.
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a)

EEFMREEESFRAL(E)

EEHm(E)
ARREEHMEIMT : (B)

The remunerations of the directors of the
Company are set out below: (continued)

Contribution
to defined
Salariesand ~ contribution
Fees  other benefits  pension plans Total
RE 3
X RiRE
e Hit A 3% g
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TET FET FET FET
Year ended 31 May 2020 HEW0F581ALEE
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester REALE 82 3% 4 121
Ms. Lau Sze Yuen HBmat 476 - 16 492
Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray REELE 307 2% 14 347
Non-executive director FHTEE
Mr. Kan Sze Man BrRE4E 104 = = 104
Indlependent non-executive directors BUFHGEE
Mr. Wong Sui Chi EhnbiE 104 = = 104
Mr. Li Lap Sun FUMkE 104 = = 104
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy MEELE 104 - - 104
1,281 61 34 1,376
Notes: B 5E -
0) Mr. Wong Kui Shing Danny was appointed as an (i) TR A S £ R2021F2 A 16 B &

RERMTESE -

executive director on 16 February 2021.

(i) Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester and Ms. Lau Sze Yuen (ii) SMEALERZ BB TR
resigned as executive directors on 16 February 2021216 HBIEHITESE -
2021.

(iii) Mr. Wong Chi Yung was appointed as a (iii) T EBELEAENR2021F3/1H %

non-executive director on 1 March 2021, ZERFHDITES -

(iv) TR EEN2021F2A16H &

(iv) Mr. Kan Sze Man resigned as a non-executive

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

156
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director on 16 February 2021.

Mr. Pong Chun Yu was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 22 January
2021.

Mr. Hui Wai Hung and Mr. Jiang Qiaowei were
appointed as independent non-executive directors
on 16 February 2021.

Mr. Wong Sui Chi, Mr. Li Lap Sun and Mr. Ng Kwok

Kei Sammy resigned as independent non-executive
directors on 16 February 2021.

BrEEERLR
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

During the current and prior years, none of
the Directors waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration and there were no emoluments
paid by the Group to any of the Directors as an
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office. The
executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group. The independent
non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as the
Directors.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest-paid individuals whose
emoluments were the highest in the Group
included 2 executive directors and 1 former
executive director (Note 11(a)) of the Company
for the year ended 31 May 2021 (2020: 1
executive director), whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis as shown above. The
remuneration of the remaining highest paid
individuals is as follows:

M. ESFHRIEESHFMAL(E)

(a)

(b)

ESHEM(E)
RAFERNEFE BEE
EREIREBEBREEMHH
7N 5 B T A AL A E ST
T ERFEMAREE RN
ARHER HIESREBED
ME - LXATIATESEOH
MEZPRBEEREEARARA
RASEEEMRHEDORS -
EXRRBIFRTEETNH
MEZBSRBEFFER/REEMIE
A R %5 -

TEREHEMAL

HE2021F5A31HIEEE 1
AEEFHEERNNAEAR
BHEMALTBEEARRFBN2H
MITEZRIBATRITE F(H
iE11(a)) (20204F : 1% # 17 &
B EENFHRBEA LA S
MA-BTHEREFTMALHIE
B a0 T -

2021 2020
20214 2020 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F#E T
Salaries, allowances and benefits Fe - =FZME
in kind T AE 699 1,787
Contribution to defined contribution AEHFRIKEE
retirements plans 3K 30 64
729 1,851
2021 Annual Report %
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 11. EEFMEIEEESFMAL(E)

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(b)  Five highest paid individuals (continued) (b) EERBHFMAL(E)
The remuneration fell within the following EBATHHEMNFATEHE:
band:
2021 2020
20215 2020 F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = £ 1,000,000/ JT 2 4
(¢) The emoluments paid or payable to (c) ERNHENEREEENEN

members of senior management were within
the following band:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = £ 1,000,000/ 7T

MENFUTEHER:
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 4

- 2
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FINANCE COSTS 12. BMERF
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings, BB RITERF L
secured (note 24) (Bt 3£ 24) 374 1,046
Interest on loan from an AR BRI MHZ
ex-shareholder/a shareholder B R F B (M E25)
(note 25) 328 339
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE
(note 17(b)) (3£ 17(b)) 839 1,100
1,541 2,485
INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 13. Fi8HiEx%X (ER)
The Group is subject to income tax on profits arising NREBERRNEFTFELEXEHWEFTEE
in or derived from Hong Kong, being its principal HEHEEBRERNRMNMERTER 4
place of business. The income tax expense/(credit) in ArEWBFRANNFAEHRBE S (K R)
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income ¥ -
represents:
2021 2020
2021 % 20204
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current income tax — Hong Kong MHAREH - EMNGEH
Profits Tax
— tax for the year —F RN IE = =
— under/(over) provision in respectof —BEFEBEE TR/
prior years (EBRE#1E) 10 (130)
Income tax expense/(credit) Fremif s (H%) 10 (130)
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman BEFEFENEZHARRN A& EH
Islands, the Group is not subject to any taxation BEARHESESR AR BMNTMHB
under the jurisdictions of the Cayman lIslands. B -BEBMNEBR DA ERT R T
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the R16.5% M) B HEHH -
estimated assessable profits.
Income tax has not been provided by the Company HRARBRFEFRAREETMER
as the Company did not derive any assessable i | IS ) i NN I 2 N e T
profits during the year (2020: Nil). &5 (2020 : #&) -
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13.

160

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continued)

A reconciliation of the income tax expense/(credit)
applicable to loss before income tax at the statutory
tax rate to the income tax expense/(credit) at the
effective tax rate is as follows:

13.

.

Fra BB (3 %) (40)

12k T B 5 E R R B 13 B AT S
BHFEHAY (Ee) RREBRMK
EHENFERBY GER)HEHE
mF

2021 2020
2021 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Loss before income tax bBRATE AR (39,476) (36,624)
Tax at the statutory rate of 16.5% LA TE B £16.5%
(2020: 16.5%) (20204 : 16.5%)
TEMHIA (6,514) (6,043)
Tax effect of non-deductible AR BB
expenses A 4,206 660
Tax effect of non-taxable income 1578 &R B U & B B A
T a8 (975) (216)
Tax effect of temporary differences KERERMZH K
not recognised MBEE 45 2,302
Tax effect of tax losses not RERMIEE BRI
recognised A 3,240 3,355
Under/(over) provision in respectof BEFERETE,
prior years (BER®) 10 (130)
Utilisation of tax losses MEBEEEZHA (2) (58)
Income tax expense/(credit) FrEfmt/ (Ke) 10 (130)

The Group has accumulated tax losses arising in
Hong Kong of approximately HK$77,610,000 as at
the year end 31 May 2021 (2020: HK$57,986,000).
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of this loss as it is not probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. The tax loss
can be carried forward in Hong Kong indefinitely. In
the opinion of the directors of the Group, there are
no other deferred tax asset which have a significant
impact to the Group.

BCI Group Holdings Limited SMEBEERAT

HE2021FE5A31BILEE - A& H
EBHERFH AT IEEIE 77,610,000
7 7T (2020 4F : 57,986,000 7T) ° M7
FARAEESEHERTEF B UE
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14. DIVIDEND 14. RE

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the year ended
31 May 2021 and 2020, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

KA R E E20214F & 202045 A 31
B 1EFE B E R TR R IR k&
BRARE  MBEREBRURINE
BRIKMEMES -

15. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 15. ZXATBEEAELEBRER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
2021 2020
2021 & 20204
Loss attributable to owners of the KAGHEB AELEBE
Company (HK$'000) (F%&mT) (36,873) (35,704)
Weighted average number of BASHESREREE
ordinary shares for the purpose of /Y 3 3 AR o0 BE 19
calculating basic loss per share (F 1)
(in thousands) 951,648 800,000

The number of ordinary shares for the purpose of
calculating basic loss per share has been determined
on the assumption that loss attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$36,873,000 (2020:
HK$35,704,000) and on the basis of the weighted
average number of 951,648,000 (2020: 800,000,000)
ordinary shares.

The effects of all potential ordinary shares are
anti-dilutive for the year ended 31 May 2021 (2020:
Nil). Accordingly, the diluted loss per share is the
same as the basic loss per share for the year ended
31 May 2021 and 2020.

FESREABENETBRHE
DREARNDAEARAEMGLEBEEY
36,873,000/ T (20204 : 35,704,000
BL)EERLTBRMNME FHTH
951,648,000 % (2020 4F : 800,000,000
&%) & € °

HE2021F5A831BILFE - A B
LRl AERREE T Z(2020%F :
) o [ It B £20214F N 202045 A
JTEEFEE SRE#EITBEEDHAER
EXEBEIEER -

2021 Annual Report &3} 161



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALﬁSTATEMENTS
e VI RR M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2021 EZ2021F5H31H L&

16.

162

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

e

7

16. YM¥ BERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment  Motor vehicles Total
BE %8
BEWEES k& RE @t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FE FET TET
Cost: KA
At 1June 2019 R2019%6 818 23,044 10,661 = 33,705
Additions NE 870 219 = 1,089
Disposals RE = (242) = (242)
Written-off M (1,006) (862) = (1,868)
At31May 2020 and 1June 2020 120205 A 318
202056818 22,908 9,776 = 32,684
Additions RE 7,319 1630 2,431 11,380
Disposals EE - (275) S (275)
Written-off fifi 38 (11,859) (6,554) = (18,413)
At 31 May 2021 1 2021%5A31H 18,368 4577 2,431 25,376
Accumulated depreciation: RitHE:
At 1June 2019 20196818 13,671 7,490 = 21,161
Charge for the year FRY 2,839 1,077 = 3,916
Disposals RE = (94) = (94)
Written-off ik (314) (765) = (1,079)
Impairment loss REBE 1,567 523 = 2,090
At31May 2020 and 1June 2020 120205 A 318
202056818 17,763 8,231 = 25,994
Charge for the year ERFE 3,229 852 50 4131
Disposals RE - (203) = (203)
Written-off i 38 (11,859) (6,554) = (18,413)
Impairment loss REES 2,666 953 369 3,988
At 31 May 2021 1 2021%5A31H 11,799 3,279 419 15,497
Carrying amount; REE:
At 31 May 2021 1202195 A 318 6,569 1,298 2,012 9,879
At 31 May 2020 1 2020%5A 318 5,145 1,545 = 6,690

BCI Group Holdings Limited
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Impairment assessment for property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Due to the current economic environment and
the impact of COVID-19 pandemic since early
2020 and hence weak consumer sentiment in the
club, entertainment and catering sectors have
created uncertainties. The management of the
Group concluded there was the indication for
impairment and conducted impairment assessment
on recoverable amounts of certain assets of the
club, entertainment and catering business segment
which represented property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Note 17(a)) with carrying
amounts (after impairment) of HK$9,879,000 and
HK$15,360,000 respectively in the CGU.

The recoverable amount of CGU has been
determined based on a value in use calculation.
That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by the management
of the Group covering a five-year period. The
discount rate used for the value in use calculation
is 13.1% with reference to the valuation carried
out by Norton Appraisals Holdings Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculations related
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows include
gross budgeted sales with zero growth rate for both
revenue and gross margin.

Based on the result of the assessment, the
management of the Group determined that the
recoverable amounts of CGU are lower than the
carrying amounts. The impairment amount has
been allocated to each category of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets such that
the carrying amount of each category of asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
cost of disposal, its value in use and zero. Based
on the value in use calculation and the allocation,
impairment losses have been recognised against the
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of HK$3,988,000 and
HK$8,369,000, respectively.

16.

M¥E BERRBGE)

¥ BERBREUAREAEEEW
W18 3P

B R4S IR 38 2020 4F ¥ LA R 201978

MEESHEBOTE U REEK
MEM RERERTEHEEERS
RBRELAEZITEREE AEEHEE

BRAEGEREDS  WHEH K
BMREBERERSBNETEENTI
EleRmETRETGH ZEEERE
BeELEURABCETRER) D
Al £9,879,0007% T K& 15,360,000 T
MNE BEERSEBREAEEEC
F17(a)) °

ReEFBEUMNAROEEERERE
REBESEZET Rt HEEAEAN
ReEnEBBANDERAEEEEE
Frat ESFHIRN M BEE - FHE
BEAEEZMERANMEXR131%
N2EBILIAREREXMGEMEHEH
RABERAAETOLE - ERAE
BEFEZEZNHEMETZERIXSIERASKE
A/ MEBGEE HhaEEERE
WA ENENTEEHEERE -

REFHEER A5EHEEEEER
TELABEUNATKRESRENRER
BE-RESHRCOIEESREYWE W
EhIEmUAREREEE WEEE
BENREAEIGRIEERERYF
EREEXRS EERAEERE=FH
WZ%E% REBEEREEAEZLZR
NEECCHRME BEREENURE
%%é?%%@ﬁ 7 7 528 B &5 1B
3,988,0007% 7T % 8,369,000 % Tt ©
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17. LEASES 17. #H &
(a) Right-of-use assets ) FAEEE

As at 31 May 2021, the Group leases 3 (2020: R2021F5A31H - A BEEHE
5) buildings in the districts from which it 4 BT AT M (R FH & 31 (2020 FF
operates. The leases have initial period of S5R)IEEY) - R2021F5831H -
non-cancellable leases between 2 and 3 years ZHEEMYIB A EHEEER
as at 31 May 2021 (2020: 1 and 3 years). B2E3F(2020F : 1E3F) o
The carrying amounts of the Group’s FAREBEFTRAEEEZRE
right-of-use assets and the movements during CHEREHNOT :

the year are as follows:

Leased

buildings

HEESE

HK$'000

FE T

At 1 June 2019 R2019%F 6 B 1H 33,589
Depreciation e (17,537)
Effect of lease modification HEBRZEE (1,326)
Lease termination HE®KLE (878)
Impairment BB (8,555)
At 31 May 2020 and 1 June 2020 72020465 A 31 B % 202046 A 18 5,293
Additions NE 26,735
Depreciation & (12,790)
Effect of lease modification HEER 2w E 4,491
Impairment B (8,369)
At 31 May 2021 7202145 A 318 15,360
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17. LEASES (continued)

(a)

(b)

NOTES TO..TH‘E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2021 520215831 H L&

17. #HE(E)

Right-of-use assets (continued) a) FERAEBEEE)
The Group has lease arrangements for AEEBEHHEREWENHER
the leased buildings. The lease terms are BE o HHE — M A B2 = 34 (2020
generally ranged from 2 to 3 years (2020: 1 to FAE2F) MEHELEM
2 years). Leases include an option to renew BEAEGKREEEAENE
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. B
During the year ended 31 May 2021, an HZE2021F5A31BEFE 4
impairment of approximately HK$8,369,000 8,369,000/% JT.(20204F : 8,555,000
(2020: HK$8,555,000) was recognised in profit BTN BECEEZPRER-
or loss. Details of the impairment assessment BB EBOFFBEH N 16
are set out in note 16.
Lease liabilities by HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the FAHEaGE RO RENRE
movements during the year are as follows: E RN
2021 2020
20215 2020 %
HKS$’ 000 HK$'000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 June R6A1BZEEE 15,570 35,924
Additions NE 25,733 =
COVID-19-related rent 201978 M % F 7% A8
concession (note) HeEEE T (12,754) =
Lease termination MEKIE - (1,008)
Interest expense FEMX 839 1,100
Effect of lease modification HEBEHRZEE 4,425 (1,326)
Payments - 3Kk (7,892) (19,120)
Carrying amount at 31 May REA3MAZEEE 25,921 15,570
Note:  During the year ended 31 May 2021, certain lessors Ms: # £2021%F5A31H I & & -
of the leased buildings provided rent concessions EFHEREYHNEBABB
to the Group through rent reductions. These rent WAL MAEERERASE
concessions occurred as a direct consequence of Ho A010B HESHLERB

COVID-19 pandemic and met all of the conditions
introduced by the amendment to HKFRS 16, and
the Group applied the practical expedient not
to assess whether the changes constitute lease
modifications. The effects on changes in lease
payments due to forgiveness or waiver by the
lessors for the relevant lease of approximately
HK$12,754,000 were recognised as negative lease
payments.

EREERNNZEHRSERR
EERBVBRESEANF 165K (B
AIAR)SI AWM AERE AEE
ERAAITEEFETTHEB
BHELCBEBRAEE R -BRE
MAREBEAERRKB LY
12,754,000 JC ﬁﬁz%ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬂ*&
FNTERRABRAENRK
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17. LEASES (continued) 17. #HE(E)
(b) Lease liabilities (continued) by HEEEBEE)
Future lease payments are due as follows: RRBMESKBBBEROT :

Future lease
payments Interest  Present value
AREEMNNK AE RE
31 May 2021 31 May 2021 31 May 2021
2021554318 2021F5H31H 2021F5H31H

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FAET
Not later than one year TR —F 10,333 (638) 9,695
Later than one yearand —F LA EETBBME
not later than two years 12,286 (299) 11,987
Later than two yearsand ®WE LA FEATHBAF
not later than five years 4,269 (30) 4,239
26,888 (967) 25,921
Future lease
payments Interest Present value
RIRHEE [ P, BE

31 May 2020 31 May 2020 31 May 2020
20205 H31H 202065H31H 202045H31H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
Not later than one year NEB—F 15,841 (271) 15,570
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17. LEASES (continued) 17. #HE(E)
(b) Lease liabilities (continued) by HEEEBEE)
The Group discounts the lease liabilities at #H E2021F58318 IFt F &
the incremental borrowing rates ranging from N & B LT H2.86%%E3.22%
2.86% to 3.22% for the year ended 31 May MIZEERNETHEESEE
2021 (2020: from 4.56% 10 4.66%). 77 37 3 (2020 F : M R 4.56% =
4.66%) °
The present value of future lease payments RREMENKNRES T A

are analysed as:

31 May 2021 31 May 2020
2021 F5H31H 202096 5H31H
HKS$’ 000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current liabilities mEBAE 9,695 15,570
Non-current liabilities EmBEE 16,226 =
25,921 15,570
18. INVENTORIES 18. 7§

2021 2020
2021 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Beverage X om 545 522
For the year ended 31 May 2021, the cost of HE2021F5A831IBILFE - -HBRA
inventories recognised as an expense includes X7 E KA B 4427,000% 7T
a write-down of inventories of approximately (2020 F : 431,000 7o) &) 17 & #URL

HK$427,000 (2020: HK$431,000), which was ZMBEEGEE 2 EH R ER -

recognised in changes in inventories.
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19.
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e

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. ESZRHMEKKE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HKS$’ 000 HK$'000
B &t FET FET
Trade receivables 2 5 W RIA (a) 782 1,921
Other receivables H b fE W RRIE (b) 19 2,183
Prepayments BT RIA 1,423 823
Deposits bi-gca (c) 16,307 6,222
18,531 11,149
Less: Non-current portion & : % & 3E BN ER 46
of deposits (c) (3,042) -
Trade and other B 5 Kk HMEWRNKIEA
receivables 15,489 11,149
Notes: B 5 -
(a) Trade receivables (a) g5 EW%RE

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Majority of the Group’s revenue is attributable to sales of
food and beverages via cash and credit card. There was no
credit term granted to the customers.

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables at the
end of the reporting period, net of impairment, based on
invoice date is as follows:

AEEARBOWRBEDREUNRS REM
TXAMRGRRAREE - AEBTE
AEPEREHEES-

AEBERBFESHRNE S R FAG
BREEXREZAHMOREOTOT

2021 2020

2021 F 2020 F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FA&ET

0-30 days 0E30H8 618 728

31-60 days 31E60H 89 36

61-90 days 612908 62 33

91-180 days 91Z=180H 13 1,124
181-365 days 181E365H -

782 1,921

As at 31 May 2021, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$405,000 (2020: HK$1,532,000), which are
past due as the reporting period. Out of past due balance
HK$1,745,000 (2020: 1,780,000) has been past due
180 days or more and is considered as in default as the
Group considered such balances could not be recovered
based on repayment history. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are
set out in note 38(b).

BrEEERLR

R2021F5A31H  AEEHNE 5 E I
R 4 84 B 4E AR H (B 48 88 73 405,000 % JT
(2020 % : 1,532,000 T ) # FE Uk 3% 1B
HERBEHBEH aRAE@EIRBRIE
ERLaReunSatamEikE al
4 # # 1,745,000 T (2020 4F : 1,780,000
BB B E180KR KA LW HR BED -
AEBVRUZEERTAETMERS -

BHERFEBORETGFBEHRME
38(b) °
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19.

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b) Other receivables
The balance as at 31 May 2020 of approximately
HK$3,000,000 was loan receivables which was secured by
the assets of the borrower, interest-free within the first three
years from the drawn down date and had no fixed terms of
repayment.

(c) Deposits
The above balance of deposits as at 31 May 2021 and
2020 mainly represents the rental deposits and the earnest
money to suppliers as procurement of liquor for the future
development needs. Where applicable, an impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting period by applying
the general approach to providing the expected credit
losses of deposits and other receivables prescribed by the
HKFRS9. The expected credit losses rate for deposits is

ESRHEMEBRKREGE)

B &E ()

(b) H i & U 5% 18
7202045 A 318 ) & # £3,000,0007#
TRERER AUBRANEEREE
FoERDAYEFE=FRE B&

(c) ®Re

bt A 20214 R 20205 A31E W iR &
EHRTIEEBASESRINTTHERD
BEL EFAAREEFTENHERE -
EHAMNBRT RERSHETRE
AT BRA-—MRAEEABEEMBERE L
AR MEMNEE REMERKED
BHEEFEFELBEG - KSNBHE
BEEBEEREM-

minimal.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 200 BERBESEEY
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FEIT
Cash and cash balances He kB &% 2,001 5,930
Time deposits TE B 17 5K 503 494
Cash and cash equivalents BeBREZEY 2,504 6,424

Cash and cash equivalents represented cash at
banks and in hand. Cash at banks earns interest
at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and time
deposits are deposited with credit worthy banks with
no recent history of default.

BeRBASEEDERTRFER
T-RITREREHRITHERAN KRG
HEOZHMNEBEDMANE - EHEHRF
RE-—BHE=ZFAHPRIAF IR
SENAKRSFRME XEEZAH
B B E B E KA R BRERM B o SR AT
RRLREHMERAFRREERGFALD
HAI R 2 O RC SRV IR 1T ©
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RERBEEEENW(E)

ROTEREBFALAEERSERS
EBYRIATINEE-

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 20.

Bank balances, included in cash and cash
equivalents of the Group, are denominated in the
following foreign currencies.

2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FE T
—EUR —B T 1 -
) -7 64 1,674
21. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 21. ERFRTHER
Restricted bank deposits represented cash at bank % ﬁi @J’ﬁ 17 % Ejg Ff /28 /A/_ET fF R
held by a subsidiary secured for bank borrowing IT fEROERMBFEORTER (N
(Note 24). £24) o
22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. ESRHMENKE
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 4F
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$'000
o3 FET FE T
Trade payables 2 5 RIA (i) 1,450 1,968
Accruals and other B ERMEMEN
payables KIE 15,991 18,153
Provisions B (ii) 1,297 1,722
Total 48t 18,738 21,843
Less: current portion B BN EREf o (17,508) (21,843)
Non-current portion JE BN H =6 9 1,230 =
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22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 22, EZREMESRE(E)

2021 2020
2021 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
0-30 days 0= 30H 878 800
31-60 days 31260H 393 205
Over 60 days HBiEe60H 179 963
1,450 1,968
() The average credit period of trade payables (i) HRHEEERR B EBN
ranged from 30 to 60 days (2020: 30 to 60 BESRNHKEBENTIFHEERAR
days) in relation to the provision of sales of 30E60H (20204 : 30E£60H) °
food and beverage.
(i) Provision (i) B
Reinstatement costs
& 18 K AR
(Note)
(Kt &)
HK$ 000
FHE T
Balance at 1 June 2019, 31 May 2020 and M2019F6 18 -
1 June 2020 20205 A318 &
20204 6 A1 H 1 & & 1,630
Additional provision RE N 600
Over provision in prior years BEFEBERE (400)
Amount utilised during the year FRESHALE (600)
Balance at 31 May 2021 202145 A31H K 4 &k 1,230
Note:  The Group provides for reinstatement costs for its Me: AKRERABR FEHFRRES
nightclubs and entertainment studio, as estimated U REERARE BB H
based on past experience of the actual cost Ty IR B £ R IR R 1 i@*ﬁf ®
incurred. The estimation basis is reviewed on an BRAFH A - Bt BB EFEY
ongoing basis and revised where appropriate. The A6 3 3 15 R R E B ET - R
timing of outflows is expected to be utilised in two HERBEAR -_E=FRHHM -

or three years.
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23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23. EHAEE
2021 2020
2021 F 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE&ET
Contract liabilities arising from: UTEEEEANEGNE
f& :

Billing in advance of performance J& 49 19 78 55 2 | (B 52 (1))

(note (i)) 586 582

Note: B 5 -

(i) Contract liabilities represent the receipts in advance from (i) AHBEERASEMELAN ST S
customers in respect of the club membership schemes FEELARMERPBBMARE - AEEE
operated by the Group. The Group operates the LdeEtd TEUEBBEYEBIED
membership scheme where customers accumulate points AEBEEDIMAA BEEIREHE
for purchase made which entitle them to discounts on future AEVIREER=ZBAARER -
purchased and the credits is valid within 3 months after the
date of initial sale of membership scheme.

Movements in contract liabilities: AHBEEEE:

2021 2020
2021 F 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FETT FE&ET
Balance as at 1 June ReA1HM & 582 2,088
Decrease in contract liabilities as AHEBEBEFRNERR
a result of recognising revenue FHFAEHEBED
during the year that was included W 2 3R R 18
in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (582) (2,088)
Increase in contract liabilities as AHBERFAELEX
a result of billing in advance A 3R S R
revenue during the year 586 582
Balance as at 31 May RN5A31HA A& 586 582
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BANK BORROWINGS

Current Bl B8
Bank loan due for repayment within
one year (Note (a))

AR —FAEENRT
&M &£ (a))

i
a0
oE
2

2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
17,858 17,035

(a) The bank borrowings of HK$17,858,000
for the year ended 31 May 2021 (2020:
HK$17,035,000) was secured by a restricted
bank deposit placed by the Company and a
subsidiary in the bank. Interest is charged at
1.00% per annum for the year ended 31 May
2021 (2020: 1.07% per annum).

(b) As at 31 May 2021, the restricted bank
deposits of HK$17,860,000 (2020:
HK$17,038,000) was a security of bank
borrowing, placed by a subsidiary in the bank.

The above banking facilities of the loans are
subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to
minimum requirement of restricted bank deposits
and compliance of the bank’s administrative
requirements, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions in Hong
Kong. If the Company and a subsidiary were to
breach the covenants, the drawn down facility would
become repayable on demand.

At 31 May 2021 and 2020, the bank borrowings were
scheduled to repay within one year or on demand.

The Group regularly monitors the compliance with
these covenants and the scheduled repayments
of the loans and does not consider it probable that
the bank will exercise its discretion to demand
repayment for so long as the subsidiary continues
to meet these requirements. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in
Note 38(c). As at 31 May 2021 and 2020, none of the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been
breached.

(a) B ZE2021F5A318 It F E®W
$R 17 & X 17,858,000/% 7T (2020
#F 17,035,000 7t ) Jh LA K &
Ak —HEKBARTHRRERT
B BR SR 1T 17 B 18 - F
B E E2021F5A318 1 F
B F A &£1.00% st & (20204 :
FEFE1.07%) °

(b) M2021F5H318  ZRHIET
17 #17,860,0007 7T (20204 :
17,038,000 7t) /b & — B Kt B
ARTFEBRRIBITHRTERZ
Ev i

EREFNBETHREATERAIR
ROTFFOZREBERRETRITITR
BREMNREERRTAFEE ZFR
FEAREEBERMEBIYNEER
L - WARBRKELRER R
AERDBERARERER-

R 20214F & 202045 A31H R 17 &
REBER —FRARZEREE-
AEEBTHERHETZERERIE
HEEEFRNBERL UTREREWES
RRABBEBETZERT  RITTKA
RETFENERERER - BEEAL
SERPDESRREENE —FPHEB
B 7 B 5E38(c) ° 20214 KX 202045
A31B AEEHEEREBEAERR
BB R R -
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25.

26.

174

LOAN FROM AN EX-SHAREHOLDER/A 25.

SHAREHOLDER

Loan from an
ex-shareholder/a shareholder

IR R RIRHE 2 &

e

ARR/BRREBEZER

2021 2020
2021 4 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T

=
9,261 13,878

The loan facility was granted by an ex-shareholder,
Mr. Kester Ng for an amount of HK$25,000,000 (2020:
HK$25,000,000). The loans are unsecured, bear
interest at 4.48% per annum.

As disclosed in note 1, there has been a change of
controlling shareholders during the year. Mr. Kester
Ng is no longer the shareholder of the Company as
of 31 May 2021.

Total current and non-current loan from a corporate
shareholder was scheduled to repay as follows:

ZERME AR ERGHEL MK
¥ 4 %8 /&25,000,000/8 JT (20204 :
25,000,000 7T) c Z E X A& E K |
BHEFIRL448%:T B -

K IR FARAERBEERA
FEoRGELEEREE2021F5 A
SIEBETHAARAKRE-

KB —HRBARRNAHRIFENBE
KB ERMTHAEE

2021 2020

2021 £ 2020 %F

HKS$’ 000 HK$'000

FET FE T

On demand or within one year EEXRHK—FNK 9,261 =
More than one year, but not BE—F BTBBEWF

exceeding two years - 13,878

Total current and non-current portion Bl 8§ & 3E BN HA 20 /> 42 %8 9,261 13,878

AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS, A RELATED
COMPANY AND NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

The amounts due were non-trade in nature,
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

BCI Group Holdings Limited SMEBEERAT
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SHARE CAPITAL 27. B&X
Number
of shares Amount
i 10 & B -
HK$'000
FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each M E0.017 T
B B A 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
At 1 June 2019, 31 May 2020 and 1 1R 2019F6 A1H -
June 2020 2020 5H31H &
2020%F 6 A1H 800,000,000 8,000
Issue of ordinary shares by placing i@ i & 317 & B
(Note a) (ft s a) 160,000,000 1,600
Issue of ordinary shares upon EREETERETY
exercised of share options A% (Bt 3Eb)
(Note b) 38,800,000 388
At 31 May 2021 R2021F5H31H 998,800,000 9,988

Notes:

(a)

On 30 June 2020, the Company entered into a Placing
Agreement with the placing agent on connection with the
placing, an aggregate of 160,000,000 new ordinary shares
of the Company of HK$0.01 each were issued at the placing
price of HK$0.13 per share. The placement was completed
on 18 August 2020 and the premium on the issue of shares,
amounting to approximately HK$18,734,000, net of the
placing commission and other related transaction costs of
HK$466,000 was credited to the Company’s share premium
account.

On 8 March 2021, the Company have granted 68,800,000
share options to its employees and consultants, of which
the exercise price is HK$0.385 per share. During the
year ended 31 May 2021, 38,800,000 share options have
been exercised and bought cash inflows of approximately
HK$14,938,000 to the Company.

=
By

(a)

(b)

MR2020F6A30R A AR HAEEEHE
HRERBITIVREEHE KEEES
f%0.137 7T % 17 & ££160,000,000 f& AN 2
AIEREEIIB IMFHEER -BE
B R2020F8 A18H E AL » B 1T R 1D %
B #4918,734,0008 T (KK EEM S K
H b M8 B X 5 AKX 4 466,000/ 7)) B 5 A
RRARRGDEERE-

MR2021F3A8H AR A ERMEREE K
B8 R % T 68,800,00017 #8 A% # - E 17 {F
& & & i%0.3857% Jr o & £202145 A 31
A It & E > 38,800,00017 8 I% £ © & 17
&+ B QA A R 4914,938,000% Tt H)
BWERA -
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28.

176

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to a resolution in writing
passed by all shareholders on 14 March 2017. The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to the eligible participants for
their contribution to the Group’s operation. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group and
consultants. The Share Option Scheme became
effective on 8 March 2021 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for five
years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue at the Listing
date. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the Share
Option Scheme within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue up to
the date of grant. Any further grant of shares options
in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

On 8 March 2021, options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 11,200,000 shares of the Company
were granted by the Company to the existing
directors and employees of the Group under the
Share Option Scheme. All the share options can be
exercisable without specified vesting conditions and
requirements.

In March 2021, the Company entered into
separate services contracts with 6 individual
consultants to provide advisory services to the
Group. In consideration of the services provided
by consultants, who providing similar services
as employees, the Company granted in a total of
57,600,000 share options to them.

The share options do not confer rights on the holders
to dividend and to vote at shareholders meetings.

BCI Group Holdings Limited SMEBEERAT
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URESEEUROBER AN

BIEL2EBRENV2017E3A14B BB
MEERZR AQARMN—BER
A E(BRESTE]) - B RES S
EHEYHAERL2EEAAEREEM
EERG THRESERE -ZiTdl 24
ERSEEAEARANEZ(BEB
VIHENTESR) AEEEMEERE
o B AL RE 5T 21 0 2021F3 A8H £ 3 -
BRIESTTFUFHENKBRT TRIER
ZHEBERAFHEFAR-

REBRESS BHEEERTZR
TEBERZIEZHETTEBAN L
MEHEHTHRNDAHZ10%  RE
W+ —EAREA BREFSAR
BRTEBERAER2BEZEBREN
ABTZEZRHDEBEIRRARQF
EERBBHMEETRONZ1% - BT
ERBBLRE L BREAESER
REERRE LA -

MR2021F3A8H » AR Al IR & B8 A% #E
FEMASEREESREERDE
B4 7] & £ R B A 2 711,200,000
PR TEBRBEHLTITE  BE
ETHEBERGERE K-

R2021F 3R AR Al » Al EHe% [ A
BEERmASEREERRBEI LS
VYhRBEH -1ERER({EREBRRM
HURBRERBORE  XAFM
®E KA $£57,600,0001 8 A #E -

BERBIERTHEAARDBRERER
BRAGEREMERN -



§

NOTES TOHTHI_E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= e T AR R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2021 520215831 H L&

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28. LUREZELURGOGEER 2T
(continued) (%)

Set out below are details of movements of the TREHEE2021F58318LFE
outstanding options granted under the Share Option BEBREFTIELOERITERR
Scheme during the year ended 31 May 2021: RHEBFE:
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
Exercise as at during the during the during the as at
price 1 June 2020 year year year 31 May 2021
2020 2021 %
6818 5831A
ke HATE FREH ERTR EREH HATE
HKS$ 000 000 000 000 000
B & & & & &
Share Option Scheme BEixtEata
Directors X 0.385 - 1,200 (400) = 800
Employees E8 0.385 - 10,000 - - 10,000
Consultants B 0.385 = 57,600 (38,400) - 19,200
Total Bt = 68,800 (38,800) - 30,000
Share options and weighted average exercise price WEHANBERERNEELSTEE
are as follows for the reporting periods presented: E5mT:
2021
2021 %
Weighted
Number of average
options exercise price
BREHE METLHTEE
‘000 HK$
F R BT
Outstanding at 1 June K6 A1 EKRITHE - -
Granted B &% 68,800 0.385
Exercised [REGRE (38,800) 0.385
Lapsed Bk - -
Outstanding at 31 May M5 A31H K EKITHE 30,000 0.385
Exercisable at the end of the year RERAITHE 30,000 0.385
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28.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(continued)

All of the company’s share options are exercisable at
grant date. The options outstanding at the end of the
year have a weighted average remaining contractual
life of 5 years and the exercise price of HK$0.385
per share.

During the year ended 31 May 2021, the Group
recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$15,676,000 (2020: Nil) in relation to share
options grants by the company to grantees and
others providing the similar services.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of the share options granted was
estimated as at the respective date of grant, using
the Binominal Option Pricing Model. The following
key inputs were used in the valuations:

Fair value per option at the grant date

28.

RELBEHENEREZATFE

Exercise price fTEE
Contractual life & #EBR
Expected volatility T8 HA % 18

Dividend yield
Risk-free rate

B B g 3% %
= @ I | %

e

ARBEHARD BB 2K
A D F) A R TR B
£  4F 5 4 5K 17 6 1 A 4 4 A0 T 29
Tl 6k & 4 B IR A5F + 171 8 50,385
BT

—~

REE2021FE5A831HEFE A&
EEREBEAARMARARREE
LURENEMAIE FTERENAX
42 HE 4915,676,00078 7T (2020 F « &) »

BRELFERRBR
EREBREZATFEIRZERY
FEHMEA_AANREBRLMAAE
H-HEMBIEHAENT :

Share Option
Scheme
g AR i Gt 2l

HK$0.2278
HK$0.3850
5 years
102.98%
0%

0.79%

The volatility assumption, measured at the standard
deviation of expected share price returns, is based
on a statistical analysis of daily share prices over
the last 3 years. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28.
(continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

Set out below are details of the share options granted
to the consultants:

(i All share options are granted with an exercise
price of HK$0.385 per share;

(ii) All holders of share options are exercisable at
the grant date;

(i)  There were 38,400,000 share options
exercised during the year ended 31 May 2021
(2020: Nil).

As of date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 30,000,000 share options
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which
represents approximately 3% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at reporting date.

é«)ij)ﬁ%%%ﬁl«iﬂﬁfﬁ%gﬁZﬁ%k
BRELFERBR(E)

TXHIETRZEBERANBREFSE

() FMEERTEERENTFEEN
AT 0.385% It ¢

(i) FMEBERESBEAHAREH
BHEATE

(i) HBE2021F5A31BILFE B
77 18£.38,400,000 17 B A% # (2020
Fo|E) o

BERTWBERRZEBY  XAQF
% A B8 A #& 5t 8/ 77 T 30,000,000 17 i
ARITENBERE WEBSEHAR
AIEHITHRMDA3% -
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29. RESERVES 29. f#fE
Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves REBNRBEZHFBIRNGEER
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes BEhk o
in equity.
Movements on the Company’s reserves are as RARWEEESHOT
follows:
Share Capital Accumulated  Share option
premium reserve losses reserve Total
% & E IR G RitER EBRERE @t

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

At 1 June 2019 R2019E6A1H 56,525 34 (21,849) - 34,710
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FAEBER2EN=ZHBE
income for the year - - (41,608) - (41,608)

At 31 May 2020 and 1 June 2020 202054310 ]

20206 A 1H 56,525 34 (63,457) - (6,898)
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREER2ERFLE
income for the year - - (53,466) - (53,466)
Issue of ordinary shares by placing BBE S &7 L BR 18,734 = = = 18,734
Equity settled share-based DRELEENRD A
transactions S AE - - = 15,676 15,676
Issue of ordinary shares upon ~ BEREE{TEEET
exercised of share options TaR 23,391 = = (8,841) 14,550
At 31 May 2021 2021F5R30H 98,650 34 (116,923) 6,835 (11,404)
(@) Share premium (a) BHOEE
Share premium represented the amount HhEBEERABRASEBRD
subscribed for share capital in excess of HEKH -

nominal value.

(b) Capital reserve (b) BAXREE
Capital reserve represents the difference BAFEBEERNRERQ T EH
between the fair value of consideration paid FTENBAREEAEZESN
and the carrying value of the subsidiaries EE e
acquired.

(c) Accumulated losses (c) ZE&FEE
Accumulated losses represented the R EEREREBEETIERNE
cumulative net losses recognised in profit or FFEERE -
loss.
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RESERVES (continued) 29.
(d) Share option reserve

The share options reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to
employees and consultants of the Company
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for equity-settled share-based
payments in note 4(l) to the consolidated
financial statements.

(e) Other reserve

Other reserve represents the difference
between the consideration and the carrying
amount of the net liabilities attributable to the
reduction of interest in a subsidiary being
disposed to non-controlling interests.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 30.
Summarised financial information in relation to

the NCI of City Silver Limited, before intra-group
eliminations, is presented below:

& (&)

) BHREEE
BRERBEETAAAES
R 2 i 5 1T 60 0 AR
S BE 2 ATE BER
AMBERRMEANARBLEE
PR AR REHNE
HEREE TR

(e) HitfE#k
Hih s mr gzt e
MEBARMRERRZKEA
AIMERZR L MENZBEF
HETEZEE-

FERER

A B City Silver Limited 3F 1% P& # 25 (5
AEBANRARBHABEZAZHBKE
Bt 25 0T :

2021 2020
2021 2020 %
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&E T
For the year ended 31 May BZE5A31MHLLFE
Revenue g - 1,328
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive 4 A% ¥,/ (B 1#8) & 2 @
income for the year U 2% 48 5B 131 (1,975)
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI PEEEFERER 2
& A, (& 18) 53 (790)
Dividends paid to NCI EXfNTHEERERZ
B B - -
For the period ended 31 May BZE5A31HILLHM
Cash flows from operating activities &2 EFBMEREARE (150) (365)
Cash flows from investing activites & EZHFABRESRE - 779
Cash flows from financing activites F&EEBMERESARE 147 (468)
Net cash outflows WE&mLFE (3) (54)
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30.
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e

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)  30. JFi#ZERE = (&)
2021 2020
2021 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T

As at 31 May Mm5H31H

Current assets mBEE 8 17
Non-current assets EMEBEE - -
Current liabilities mEEE (6,298) (6,438)
Non-current liabilities FmEBBERE = =
Net liabilities BEFHE (6,290) (6,421)
Accumulated non-controlling interests 2 5t JF #% i% # 2§ (2,516) (2,569)
On 5 June 2020, the Group disposed of in aggregate R2020F6 A5 AEBE DR MBI
of 49% of an issued share of Castle Team Limited F-F RBEEBEERATGRERME
to independent third parties, Good Champion % &£ & H & i Castle Team Limited B
International Limited and Mr. Huang Edward Yale, BITRM49% c NEE BRI ERE

respectively. The Group recognised a decrease in
non-controlling interests of HK$2,400,000 and an
increase in equity attributable to owners of the parent
of HK$2,400,000. Set out below is summarised
financial information for each Castle Team Limited
that has non-controlling interests that are material to
the Group. The amounts disclosed for Castle Team
Limited are before inter-company eliminations.

BCI Group Holdings Limited SMEBEERAT

=8 42,400,000 T R & R A H A
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NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)  30. J#ZEREZR(E)
2021
2021 F
HK$000
FET
For the year ended 31 May BZES5A3MBILLEE
Revenue I = 4,837
Loss and total comprehensive income forthe FARNEE KR 2K FE 5
year (5,440)
Loss allocated to NCI SEEFEREZZEIR (2,666)
Dividends paid to NCI EXfFIEEREZ ZBRE -
For the period ended 31 May BZES5AIBHILLEMH
Cash flows from operating activities BEFFMEBRENE 1,188
Cash flows from investing activities KREFTMEBRENE (2)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEFBASEEAE (1,049)
Net cash outflows e FE 137
2021
20214
HK$000
FEL
As at 31 May ®5A31H
Current assets mEE E 557
Non-current assets FEmBEE 419
Current liabilities mE A E (8,867)
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (2,447)
Net liabilities BEFHE (10,338)
Accumulated non-controlling interests Z2EFEERE RS (5,066)
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31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31.

At the 31 May 2021 and 2020, the Group had no
significant capital commitments.

BAREE
H20214F k202065831 H & &
WHEEKRKEREE-

32. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 32. #ZRATHBMBEMRRR
FINANCIAL POSITION
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries REBARNIKRE - -
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables b fE WK IE 322 3,151
Cash and cash equivalents RehBREEEY 2 37
324 3,188
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables E b fE 5008 1,740 2,086
Net current (liabilities)/ RE(EE) EE
assets F (1,416) 1,102
Net (liabilities)/assets F(EE)EBE (1,416) 1,102
Equity &=
Share capital fig 2 27 9,988 8,000
Reserves & 29 (11,404) (6,898)
Total (deficiency in assets)/ & (& EE4L) %
equity (1,416) 1,102
On behalf of the board of directors REESZS

Mr. Wong Chi Yung

Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray

FEEEE RAEZBEE
Director Director
EFE -l
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33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. MEBLAAFE
The following are the details of the Group’s KEBEMNBRFR2021F5A8318 K0
subsidiaries at 31 May 2021: EAER NN
Country and date of incorporation/ Issued
establishment and form of business and paidup  Attributable equity Principal activities
Name structure share capital interest and place of operations
AMKL/HIARR BRTR EF:33 9
1 AREXBERYA ARRA EiERE EXHE
Direct  Indirect
E# A&
BCI Group Holdings (BVI) The British Virgin Islands US$10 100% - Investment holding, Hong Kong
Limited (the “BVI"), 6 February 2013,
limited liability company
BCI Group Holdings (BVI) RAERAES(RBELER]) 10FT  100% - REER-BE
Limited 201352R68 ERAA
BCI Group Enterprises Limited  Hong Kong, 28 November 2012, HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
limited liability company
BCI Group Enterprises Limited &8+ 2012511 f28H - R A F 1% - 0% REZR BE
Group Best Investment The BVI, 26 April 2013, limited liability US$10,000 = 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
Holdings Limited company
Group Best Investment EERTBE 201354820 10,000% 1T - 0% REZR BE
Holdings Limited ARAT
Legend Vision Limited Hong Kong, 8 April 2015, limited HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
liability company
HBRARRAA EE 01554088 BRAT 1% = 100% REBR &
Bannock Holdings Limited The BVI, 4 February 2014, limited US$1 - 100%  Security investment, Hong Kong
liability company
Bannock Holdings Limited RBRLHES 201452R4R E - 100% BHERE A
ARAT
Buzz Concepts Management ~ Hong Kong, 17 February 2014, limited HK$1 = 100%  Provision of public relations services,
(H.K.) Limited liability company Hong Kong
Buzz Concepts Management &7 * 2014524170 AR AT 187 - 100% REABRY FE
(HK.) Limited
Lively World Limited The BVI, 2 January 2015, limited US$1 - 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
liability company
Lively World Limited EERLBE 20151528 1% - 0% REZR BE
ARAT

2021 Annual Report &3} 185



7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALHSTATEMENTS
e VI RR M =

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2021 EZ2021F5H31H L&

33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 33. KB RA TS5 (E)

The following are the details of the Group’s AEBEMWEB 2 F KR2021F58318 K
subsidiaries at 31 May 2021: (continued) HBWT (8)
Country and date of incorporation/ Issued
establishment and form of business and paidup  Attributable equity Principal activities
Name structure share capital interest and place of operations
ARRIL/HIERE BRTR TEEBR
1 AHREBERYA BERE ErRE EXuy
Direct  Indirect
E# k3
Group Best Investment Limited  Hong Kong, 9 July 2004, limited HK$100,000 - 100%  Operation of club, Hong Kong
liability company
BEREARRA Bk 2004%7R98  BRAA 100,0007% ¢ - 100% BEerm FE
Grand Diamond Limited Hong Kong, 13 February 2008, limited HK$2,030,750 - 100%  Operation of club, Hong Kong
liability company
HEERAA £k 2008%F2R 138 ERAH 2,030,750/ 7T - 100% BEerm FE
Litton Global Limited The BVI, US$1 - 100%  Trademark holding, Hong Kong
4 February 2014, limited liability
company
Litton Global Limited EERLES 201452848 1% - 100% BRER FE
BERAF
Joint Ace Limited Hong Kong, 18 March 2015, limited HK$1 = 100%  Inactive
liability company
Joint Ace Limited BB 201553A18R  BRAA 187 - 100% EEEX
Crown Grand Limited Hong Kong, 20 November 2014, HK$1 - 100%  Operation of entertainment and club
limited liability company business, Hong Kong
Crown Grand Limited B 014F118208  BRARF 1T - 100% BEREREHEHK -FE
City Silver Limited Hong Kong, 12 October 2013, limited HK$625,003 - 60% Inactive
liability company
City Silver Limited F% 20135108128 AR A 625,003 7 - 60% EmEZ
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33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 33. MIB AR HIE(E&E)
The following are the details of the Group's KEEWE QR R2021F5H31H &
subsidiaries at 31 May 2021: (continued) HBWOT (8)
Country and date of incorporation/ Issued
establishment and form of business and paidup  Attributable equity Principal activities
Name structure share capital interest and place of operations
AMRL/HIARE BEAR TEEER
1 AEEBERYA BERR EiRE R
Direct  Indirect
E# &
Ace Gain Limited Hong Kong, 5 May 2016, limited HK$1 - 100%  Operation of restaurant, Hong Kong
liability company
Ace Gain Limited &% 201655850 BRAA 187 - 100% BEEE-ER
Maximus (HK) Limited Hong Kong, 7 July 2017, limited HK$100 - 100%  Operation of entertainment business,
liability company Hong Kong
Maximus (HK) Limited A 07ETATR BRAA 1007 T - 100% BEREEH FA
Castle Team Limited Hong Kong, 25 January 2018, limited HK$100 - 51%  Operation of entertainment and club
liability company business, Hong Kong
Castle Team Limited BA 2018518258 BRAF 100 70 - 51% MEREREGMEH FAE
KLSK Holdings Limited Hong Kong, 21 September 2016, HK$1 - 100%  Inactive
limited liability company
KLSK Holdings Limited BB 016598218 ERAA 137 - 100% EEmE%
Sage wonder Limited The BVI, 26 February 2021, limited US$50,000 100% - Inactive
liability company
Sage wonder Limited EERTEE 20215282R 50000€7L  100% - EmE%
BERAR
Party Alc Limited Hong Kong, 9 February 2021 limited HK$10,000 - 100%  Inactive
liability company
BREERAF B 202152898 BRAT 10,000% 7T - 00% EEE%
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BEAIXRS
(a) Related party transactions (a) EBEBEIXS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the B4 & B 1% ok H &= 8 FT B
consolidated financial statements, the Group TEEIN NEBRF A ERE B
had the following material transactions with FETUTERRS

related parties during the year:

Related party identity Type of transactions Notes 2021 2020
BELD D XEER it 2021 & 2020 4F
HKS$’000 HK$'000

FET TFET

Model Genesis Marketing and promotion fee (i) & (ii) 908 985

R 58 X MEHBEREEER (i) & (ii) 908 985

Mr. Kester Ng Loan interest (iii) 328 339

R@BATLE ERFE (iii) 328 339

Notes: B & -

0 The transactions were conducted at terms and (i) RS TEMEE T M E W E D
conditions mutually agreed between the relevant BERRGEHET - NRARESER
parties. The directors of the Company are of REZERB ARSI REAE
the opinion that those related party transactions HEXBBEPET-
were conducted in the normal ordinary course of
business of the Group.

(ii) Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray, being an executive (i) ARABRTEFRARELER
director of the Company, held beneficial interests BEM AR EEERERZ -
in the related company.

(iii) Mr. Kester Ng, being an ex-shareholder and a (ii) RBEXERARAABR R
former director of the Company. RIEES-

(b) Compensation of key management (b) FTEEBAEMNEHMH
personnel

Remuneration for key management personnel AEBENFEEBABHFHCS

of the Group, excluding amounts paid to the BEKE(QMBEENE MR

directors of the Company as disclosed in Note NRAEEHE)INT

11(a), is as follows:

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FE T
Salaries, allowances and e RMEREWER
benefits in kind - 850
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MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Except as disclosed in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements, no contracts of significance
to which the Company’s subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company or an entity
connected with a director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at
the end of the financial year.

NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

(a) Major non-cash transaction

During the year ended 31 May 2021, the
Group entered into the sales and purchase
agreement with independent parties, Good
Champion International Limited and Mr. Huang
Edward Yale for acquiring the shares of Crown
Grand Limited, approximately HK$2,400,000
share of loss recognised to non-controlling
interests and reallocated approximately
HK$2,970,000 from other payables to amount
due to non-controlling interests.

During the year ended 31 May 2021, the
Group entered into a new lease contract
for the use of club operations. On the lease
commencement date, the Group recognised
an aggregate HK$600,000 of restoration
provision.

The difference between fair value and present
value of long-term deposits was recognised
in right-of-use assets, approximately
HK$468,000.

35.

36.

M

iﬁé?&%‘ ZHEREHNWEK

BB RRMEIMIMEESEIN
BMEARAKNBARMIZAKRAR
EEREETNHEERBNETERRX
MERBEARGNERSORYP K
FEHMRAIERBDABR -

SFEHERBRHMEE

@@ TEXBLRH

H Z202145A31H It &F
CAEBEBIE=ZF K
HEERARRERMBEE
A1V B B & W U BECrown
Grand Limited®) i& 19 @ # R 4
2,400,000 T BHE DT A IE
PR A% #E = I #% 492,970,000 JT
BHEMENREETSEREZE
RFETERR BE &S 3R IE o

oy it 5%

REE2021FE5A31HILFE -
AEBET—HFOARER
¥¥MHEESAR - RHEERR
HE AEBE@EREEREESL
%4 600,000/ 7T °

AFEREHREFERREZBEH
EZRA468 0008 TREREE
ERHR-
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36. NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 36. #4&
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b)
financial activities

RERBERMWEE)

MEZDFELENEBEYHR

The table below detail changes in the Group’s
liabilities from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities

TRADAEERE TS TE
THNEEEH(BERASTRIER

190
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arising from financing activities are liabilities SED) - BRARDAEENA
: BEARLABCEXRRRS
for which cash flows were, or future cash flows R eRNAEENSAES

will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows from financing

MERD iﬁi‘%nﬂiéf/ﬁibﬁﬁ TR

o TMENEE
activities.
Total
liabilities
Loan from from
Lease an ex- Bank financing
liabilities ~ shareholder ~ borrowings activities
REEH
RE-%H FIEER
HEEE REMER BITER Bafk
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§000 HK$000
Tz FET Tz FET
(Note 17(b)) (Note 25) (Note 24)
(K #1706)) (#f##25) (fi7224)
As at 1 June 2020 1202056 A1R 15,570 13,878 17,035 46,483
Changes from cash flows: REeREET:
Proceeds from new loans HERMERE - 15,214 315,825 331,039
Repayment of loans EBEER - (19,831) (315,002) (334,833)
Repayment of principal portionof ~ BEEHAEEEXLHH
lease liabilities (7,053) - - (7,053)
Interest paid BRI E (839) (328) (374) (1541)
(7,892) (4,945) 449 (12,388)
Other changes: Hih g
Increase in liabilities from entering  #J UM AEELNEFEEM
into new lease 25,733 - - 25,733
Rent concession e (12,754) = = (12,754)
Lease modification REBH 4,425 = = 4,425
Interest expense MERX 839 328 374 1,541
Total other changes A2 84 H 18,243 328 374 18,945
As at 31 May 2021 M202155R31 A 25,921 9,261 17,858 53,040

BrEEERLR
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36. NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 36. ZE8BE&REXRMIT(H)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b)
financial activities (continued)

MEFBRELENRBEHRGE)

Total
liabilities
from
Lease  Loanfroma Bank financing
liabilities ~ shareholder ~ borrowings activities
WEED
RE-% FrEEM
HEER RROHER BITER Bafk
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§000 HK$000
Tz FET TEx TET
(Note 17(b)) (Note 25) (Note 24)
(B t17(b) (Hit2s) (Hiitos)
As at 1 June 2019 1201956 A1R 35,924 5,000 31,091 72,015
Changes from cash flows: BeRESE:
Proceeds from new loans HERMENA - 13,776 247 575 261,351
Repayment of loans EEER = (4,898) (261,631) (266,529)
Repayment of principal portionof ~ BEEHAEEERL TS
lease liabilities (18,020) - - (18,020)
Interest paid BRFE (1,100) (339) (1,046) (2,485)
(19,120 8,539 (15,102) (25,683)
Other changes: A5
Termination of lease HEXE (1,008) = = (1,008)
Lease modification HEEY (1,326) = = (1,326)
Interest expense MERX 1,100 339 1,046 2,485
Total other changes Hugaas (1,234) 339 1,046 151
As at 31 May 2020 1202055R 31 A 15,570 13,878 17,035 46,483
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37.

192

—

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 37. REREINELREERERE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BEHME
The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated RAEMBHRAIREVNNEMESENLT
statements of financial position relate to the following TREELRSRABGEENER-

categories of financial assets and financial liabilities.

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Financial assets SRMEE
Measured at amortised cost: B AR E
Trade receivables, deposits BZREWBRE EHeRkE
and other receivables 1 & W IR 17,108 10,326
Cash and cash equivalents e kBREEEY 2,504 6,424
Restricted bank deposits PR ® R 17 15 3K 17,860 17,038
37,472 33,788
Financial liabilities cREE
Measured at amortised cost: HEHEK A2
Trade and other payables E 5 N H e 5B 18,738 21,843
Bank borrowings fE TR 17,858 17,035
Loan from an KE—BABRERRE
ex-shareholder/a shareholder BB & 9,261 13,878
Lease liabilities HE&E 25,921 15,570
Amount due to a related FE < BE Bt~ B SRR
company 134 136
Amounts due to directors ERESRE 456 539
Amounts due to non-controlling & < FE 3% A% Eﬁ & E
interests 2,720 -
75,088 69,001
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s financial assets that derive directly from
its operations are trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and
restricted bank deposits. Principal financial liabilities
of the Group include trade and other payables, and
amounts due to related parties. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group does not enter into or trade
financial instruments for speculative purposes.

(a) Currency risk

The Group mainly operated in Hong Kong with
most of the transactions settled in Hong Kong
dollars and did not have significant exposure
to risk resulting from changes in foreign
currency exchange rates.

At 31 May 2021 and 2020, one of the Group’s
borrowing are denominated in the functional
currency of the entity taking out the loan or,
in the case of group entitles whose functional
currency is Hong Kong dollars, in either Hong
Kong dollars or United States dollars. Given
this, management does not expect that there
will be any significant currency risk associated
with the Group’s borrowings.

The Group’s financial risk management policy
seeks to ensure that adequate resources are
available to manage the above risks and to
create value for its shareholders.

38.
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38.

194

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to its trade and other receivables (note 19).
There are no significant concentrations of
credit exposure to the Group. It is spread over
a diversified portfolio of customers.

Due to the unprecedented nature of the
COVID-19 pandemic, its effect on the Group’s
customers and their ability to meet their
financial obligations to the Group is difficult
to predict. As a result, the Group’s judgments
and associated estimates of expected credit
losses might ultimately prove, with the benefit
of hindsight, to be incorrect.

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from trade receivables in connection with club
business is limited because the counterparties
are major financial institutions in Hong Kong,
for which the Group considers to have low
credit risk.

In respect of trade receivables relating to the
provision of individual credit evaluations are
performed on the customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay
and take into account information specific to
the customer. Typically, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers, except for
the deposits received from the membership
scheme.

BrEEERLR
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

38. HMIH¥RAMERER(E)

Credit risk (continued) (b)y FERBGE)
Trade receivables (continued) BEZENEE)
The credit risk of the Group’s other financial AEBEMESREE(ZTERRE
assets, which mainly comprise of cash and RekReFEYWUREME
cash equivalents and other receivables, arises WHRE)WEERBRREREYEFH
from potential default of the counterparties, MEBEENTR = RBA
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying ERZSEIANEEE B#R
amounts of these instruments. Credit risk in ReFEREETRERSNR
cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank TR RBESCEFEMUR
deposits are mitigated as cash is deposited in XBRHBETFRANEERRS
the bank with high credit rating. VAR #% ©
The Group measures loss allowances for trade TEEBESREKRENEER
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime HBAEERE2BEREEBE
ECLs, which is calculated using a provision MeBEadE EDEBEER
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss FE -BARASEEMNBEEE
experience does not indicate significantly FEELBITARAXATRAETERL D
different loss patterns for different customer HesgaXATRBAEN X
segments, the loss allowance based on past REBRENBEBREESETHER
due status is not further distinguished between AEBTRABEFPEAR 2 HE—
the Group’s different customer bases. FEoy e
The following table provides information about TRE#HASEMFEHEER
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs BMEESBERFENEHREER
for trade receivables: BB &R
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
2021 loss rate amount allowance
2021 BHERE KREOAE BFERE
% HKS$’ 000 HK$’000
% FET FET
Current (not past due) BV EA (FE % HF) - = =
1-30 days past due @ HI1E30H 1.0 624 6
31-90 days past due # #3122 90 H 5.3 159 8
91-180 days past due # #3191 =180 H 69.5 44 31
181-365 days past due 7 #9181 & 365 H - - -
827 45
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. BIXEAMRERE(E)

(b)  Credit risk (continued) (b) fFERRGE)
Trade receivables (continued) BEZEWREGE)
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
2020 loss rate amount  allowance
2020 % EHEEE REAE BERG

%  HK$000  HK$'000
% FET TAET

Current (not past due) BN EA (FE % A7) - = =
1-30 days past due @ HI1E30H 0.2 730 2
31-90 days past due # #3122 90 H 4.2 72 3
91-180 days past due # #3091 =180 H 22.2 1,445 321
181-365 days past due # #9181 E 365 H = = =
2,247 326
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss EHEEERDENBESFEH
experience over the past 5 years. These rates ERBESCRET RS X
are adjusted to reflect differences between B R AR AT & E L
economic conditions during the period over BRESHEALEMRRL B
which the historic data has been collected, RO K A 65 B ¥ R U SRR 78 BB
current conditions and the group’s view of FHOKERANEE 2 BB
economic conditions over the expected lives ZRo
of the receivables.
The Group has adopted the general expected REBCHEMEWRKRIBREA
credit loss model for material financial assets WERERMEERMN —KEH
in relation to the other receivables. A summary FEBBEEX -IRAEEE
of the assumptions underpinning the Group’s HEEEBEENBREBENT :

expected credit loss model is as follows:
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38.

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Other receivables

Category
EHl

Performing

Underperforming

(2p=3

Non-performing

TR

Write-off

38

Company definition
of the category

AEHEREIINER

Customers have a low risk of default and
a strong capacity to meet contractual
cash flows

EPEABRRREEBRNELAD
EXMBR TR

Loans for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk; as significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if
interest and/or principal repayments
are 30 days past due

EXNGEREBBELEN: BFEAR/
KA ERBHEBRIOKNETER
ERARBZEEM

Interest and/or principal repayments are
60 days past due
FER/SA&ERSHBER
60K

Interest and/or principal repayments are
180 days past due and there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

FleER/ /A ERAYBBISOXA
WA Y EEE -

Other receivables include the amount due from

a related company and non-interest bearing
loan receivables at amortised cost.

The Group accounts for the above items’
credit risk by appropriately providing for
expected credit losses on a timely basis. In
calculating the expected credit loss rates,
the Group considers historical loss rates for
each category of customer, and adjusted for
forward-looking macroeconomic date. The
Group provides for credit losses against loans
and other receivables are as follows:

BHERRERE(E)
by FEERRBE)
H b EW 5 E

The basis for recognition of expected
credit loss provision

BRABRMGEFARBHNERE

12 month expected losses. Where the
expected lifetime of an assets is less
than 12 months, expected losses are
measured at its expected lifetime.

REANESRERE URERFERE
RERZAMEERSRBEEEREY
FEHHE-

Lifetime expected losses

EHEHER

Lifetime expected losses

EHEHER

Asset is written off

MEEE

H Al & WK IA B R R W B B
AR R BIHK AT ERIE
FFERKER-

rAEEEBRKRAEHREEED
BESREBEBE/LAERW
EERRAR - FERHMEE
BEREXE AEEHSHENE
FHELERXETEZE I
HAEMELZBERBEETRAE
& E AW E R N AR K
REWEEBHBRARERET
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. BIXEAMRERE(E)

(b)  Credit risk (continued) (b) fFERRGE)
Other receivables (continued) H i fE g 5% (&)
2021 2021 %
Carrying amount
Basis for recognition Estimated gross (net of
Expected credit of expected creditloss  carrying amount impairment  Basis for calculation of
Company internal credit rating loss rate  provision at default provision) interest revenue
BARHGE it &R FEE HEAS
AARBEEFR RAGEFE: BRBANEE REAE (MRAERK) UWANEE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
FExn FEr
Performing 0.14% 12 month expected losses 16,332 16,309  Gross carrying amount
L% 0.14% 1REANEHER 16,332 16309 RALE
Underperforming 98.9% Lifetime expected losses 1,513 17 Gross carrying amount
Bi %9% 2HBHER 1,513 17 RAAE
Total deposits and other receivables 17,845 16,326
RERAMELRRLE 17,845 16,326
2020 20204
Carrying amount
Basis for recognition Estimated gross (net of
Expected credit  of expected credit loss carrying amount impairment  Basis for calculation of
Company internal credit rating loss rate ~ provision at default provision)  interest revenue
BARBGEE fhatEd BEE FENE
RARBEEFR BHEEER: BEBGNAR RELAE (HRHERE) WANEE
HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Performing 0.97% 12 month expected losses 415 6,353 Gross carrying amount
L% 097% 1REANEHER 415 6353 BEAME
Underperforming 31.65%  Lifetime expected losses 3,002 2,052 Gross carrying amount
B 3165% LHEHER 3,002 2052 BHAHE
Total deposits and other receivables 9417 8,405
RERABERTELE 9417 8,405
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. HMIH¥RAMERER(E)

(b)

Credit risk (continued) (b)

Other receivables (continued)

No significant changes to estimation
techniques or assumptions were made during
the reporting period.

The closing loss allowance for deposits and
other receivables reconciles to the opening
loss allowance for that provision, and the
gross carrying amounts are as follows:

EERREGE)

Hfth W 4B ()
RBEEHHE GAEEDERRE
MEERE -

RehHEMEBURERRER
BReazBeBzBEBRRRE
HEE BEERmAEENAT:

Under-
Performing performing Total
EE B 5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Gross carrying amount for M2021FE5A31BHRE R
deposits and other receivables  E b fE M R IB R H 4 &
as at 31 May 2021 16,332 1,513 17,845
Opening loss allowance as R2020%6 A1 B K HI
at 1 June 2020 BREAE 62 950 1,012
(Reversal of)/provision for loss ~ F A&t W EE(ERE),/
allowance for the year ] (39) 546 507
Closing loss allowance as at 2021531 B HI R
31 May 2021 BEEE 23 1,496 1,519
Net carrying amount for deposits #2021 F5 831 HME & &
and other receivables as at 31 Hih B HIERE&E
May 2021 16,309 17 16,326
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38.

200

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38.

(b)  Credit risk (continued)

e

M REREGE)
(b) FERARGE

(c)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Other receivables (continued) H i fE g 5% (&)
Under-
Performing  performing Total
- Z7pss mEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TETT FET
Gross carrying amount for R2020F5A31BEMEE &
deposits and other receivables b & Ut 30 18 Bk M 48 (B
as at 31 May 2020 6,415 3,002 9,417
Opening loss allowance as R2019%6 A1 R & Hi 7]
at 1 June 2019 BRAE 18 160 178
Loss allowance provided for the & AR &Y BB B
year 44 790 834
Closing loss allowance as at 31 R 202045731 H M H K
May 2020 EBEEE 62 950 1,012
Net carrying amount for deposits % 2020F5 831 HME & &
and other receivables as at 31 Hih B HIERE&E
May 2020 6,353 2,052 8,405
Liquidity risk (c) R"BELAR

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the
Group will not be able to meet its obligations
associated with its financial liabilities. The
Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect
of settlement of trade payables, accruals
and other payables, amounts due to related
parties and amounts due to non-controlling
interests, and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group’s objective is to
maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major banks and financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer terms.

BrEEERLR
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The liquidity policies have been followed by
the Group during the year ended 31 May 2021
and 2020 and are considered to have been
effective in managing liquidity risks.

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic and
the social-distancing measures imposed by
the Hong Kong government placed stress on
the Group’s liquidity position as the revenue-
generating activities were restricted during
the year ended 31 May 2021. The Group has
taken and shall continue to take actions to
mitigate the impact as set out in note 3(c) to
ensure, as far as possible, that the Group will
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when they fall due.

The following table details the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rates at the
end of the reporting period.

38. HMIH¥RAMERER(E)

()

REBESEKRGE)

A& B R E =2021F 20204
S5AIBEFE —EHEEBRH
BeHX YRAEBBEHHER
RBESRERBREEFENTLE
R o

019U EEREBHEER
BEERNEBENRF LB
EHEAEENTBHES KRR
BEREN BAEAIWEBLNE
E2021FE58318 IFF E F 5
FR&le NEE B FRI G EE
BROER 77 B K R R B sE3(c) AT it
FE LEUEBRAEEHE
BRARBDESRE HEEES
HEB&E-

TRHALAEEREBEENR
BRAWBR - TRREEAEA
EONRERREREBERAE
BANZTNRFEHRE - &
IETEEREBENINHAET
ERBEERBH - TREH
MERAEHESRE - MHNE
MEBFBHMNEX AIRERS
BRBERROMETHE -
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38.

202

—

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  38. Bf #% & b & = (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) () "BESLABE)
Total More than More than
contractual ~ Within one  one year but two years
Carrying  undiscounted yearoron lessthantwo  but less than
amount cash flow demand years five years
RN 3

BefE -ERg BE-F BEWE
BEE ag EEX fIRRE EHREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
A7 A7 FE TE TETL

At 31 May 2021 R2021E5A 317
Trade and other payables BEREMERFE 18,738 18,738 18,738 - -
Bank borrowings RITEH 17,858 17,87 17,87 - -
Loan from an ex-shareholder RE-ZARENER 9,261 9,488 9,488 - -
Lease liabilities HEAR 25,01 26,888 10,333 12,286 4,269
Amount due to a related company EREELEHNE 134 134 134 - -
Amounts due to directors ERESHE 456 456 456 - -
Amounts due to non-controlling interests B TR EZ A 2,720 2,720 2,720 - -
75,088 76,295 59,740 12,286 4,269

At 31 May 2020 R2020557 317
Trade and other payables BAREAMENTE 21,843 21,843 21,843 = =
Bank borrowings RITER 17,035 17,049 17,049 = =
Loan from a shareholder RE-ARENER 13,878 15,024 677 14,347 =
Lease liabilities HEAR 15,570 15,841 15,841 = =
Amount due to a related company ERBBAANE 136 136 136 = =
Amounts due to directors L EEE S 539 539 539 = =
69,001 70,432 56,085 14,347 -

BCI Group Holdings Limited SMEBEERAT
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s bank deposits bear
floating interest rates. The Group has no cash
flow or fair value interest rate risk as there are
no borrowings which bear fixed or floating
interest rates.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objective when managing
capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and maximising the return to
stakeholders.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group actively and regularly reviews the capital
structure and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of debt to equity ratio.

The debt to equity ratio at reporting date was as
follows:

38.

39.

MEERERGE)

(d) F=EkR
MERBYIREBTARTE
FRERERAMBHNEESHM
KB ER AEENRTHE
RBEIFHNEFE -BRAK
B3R EE R BN RER
MER RABRSREXRD
FEMERR -

EXEKRER
AEEEEAANISEMRREA
EENBACLENTRERESHE
EEE

BEBIHEASLR ARERY
AEARIEHOELLE  ARR
R AR AT H R I A DR

PERK-
AEEEBENEHNEARE L E

REAANBEHARELARE - XK
BREEGES L FEREEARE -

RBE MO EBESL TN :

2021 2020

2021 2020 F

HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

FET FE&EIT

Bank borrowings AT B 17,858 17,035

Loan from an ’E—BARE/RE

ex-shareholder/a shareholder HNE R 9,261 13,878

Lease liabilities HEBE 25,921 15,570

53,040 46,483

Total deficiency in assets A E A (10,995) (22,457)

Debt-to-equity ratio BB R X 1:(0.2) 1:(0.5)
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40.

41.

204

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 13 August 2021, a subsidiary of the Company,
Castle Team Limited (“Castle Team”) and other six
independent third parties (the “purchasers”) entered
into a share subscription agreement with wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, Crown Grand
Limited and Lively World Limited (the “vendors”),
pursuant to which the purchasers unconditionally
agreed to subscribe for a total of 30 new shares in
Crown Grand Limited for a total cash consideration
of HK$6 million.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
27 August 2021.

BCI Group Holdings Limited SMEBEERAT
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MH2021F88138 A A " — MW
B A FlCastle Team Limited ([ Castle
Team )R EteEBLE=FHTERF])
AR QA2 E W B AR F Crown Grand
Limited X Lively World Limited ([& 75 1)
FYTKRORBERZE B EFE
BHEREZBRsREEEB TR
8 Crown Grand Limited& 5+300% #7 A% °

¥ fE B 3% R
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TG BHRE -
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